[y

N

10.

11.

& CITY OF MILES CITY
AGENDA
Regular Council Meeting July 23, 2024
) City Council Chambers 6:00 p.m.
S and online at zoom.us (ID- 4062343462 Passcode- 59301)
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL

REQUEST OF CITIZENS & PUBLIC COMMENT

APPROVAL OF COUNCIL MINUTES/COMMITTEE MINUTES

Regular City Council Minutes 07/09/2024
Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 07/15/2024

SCHEDULE MEETINGS

STAFF REPORTS

CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS

MAYOR COMMENTS

BID OPENINGS

CITY HALL JANITORIAL CONTRACT

BID AWARDS

PAVING BID

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A.

APPROVE ADDITIONAL LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS AROUND
GAZEBO AT RIVERSIDE PARK.

NEW BUSINESS

A.

B.

C.

E.

APPROVE INSTALLATION OF MEMORIAL BENCH AT SPOTTED EAGLE.
ACCEPT PLAYGROUND IMPROVEMENTS AT WIBAUX PARK.

RESOLUTION NO. 4571 - A RESOLUTION PURSUANT TO §7-6-4006 OF
THE MONTANA CODE ANNOTATED, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT OF
FINAL BUDGET FOR FY 2023-2024 TO INCREASE THE BUDGETED
AMOUNT IN VARIOUS FUNDS FOR VARIOUS UNBUDGETED REVENUES
AND EXPENDITURES.

RESOLUTION NO. 4572 - A RESOLUTION DECLARING A STATE OF
DISASTER AND LEVYING AN AMOUNT UP TO TWO MILLS FOR
DISASTER RELIEF.

APPROVAL OF JUNE CLAIMS

ADJOURNMENT

Council Agenda 2024 0723 Page 10of 2



Minutes



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING July 9th, 2024
6:00 p.m.
CALL TO ORDER

The Regular Council meeting was held Tuesday, July 9th, 2024, in the City
Hall Conference Room at City Hall, 17 S. 8" Street, Miles City, Montana and online
at zoom.us. Mayor Dwayne Andrews called the meeting to order. Council Members
present were Pamela Bovee, Ed Pulecio, Rick Huber, Kevin Thomason, Don Simpson
and Brant Kassner. Council Members Trevor Power and Karissa Nissen were not
present.

Also present were, Police Chief Doug Colombik, Interim Fire Chief Ed
Kanduch, Building Inspector Gabe Martinsen, Dispatch Director Lyne Anderson,
Public Works Director Samantha Malenovsky and Deputy City Clerk/Minute
Recorder Jody Kinsey.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Mayor Andrews led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance.

REQUEST OF CITIZENS & PUBLIC COMMENT

Ken Stein spoke on behalf of Keep Miles City Beautiful. They would like the City to
approve allowing them to install a drip system at Riverside park and continued
landscaping. Action on this request will take place at the next council meeting.

Samantha Malenovsky spoke on behalf of Eva Stokes. She would like the have a
memorial bench placed at Spotted Eagle for her father. Action on this request will
take place at the next council meeting.

APPROVAL OF COUNCIL & COMMITTEE MINUTES
Regular City Council Minutes: 6/25/2024

i Councilperson Pulecio moved to approve the minutes of the Regular Council
Meeting of June 25, 2024, subject to any changes, and seconded by
Councilperson Kassner. The motion passed by unanimous consent, 6-0.

Public Service Committee Minutes: 06/04/2024

*E Councilperson Simpson moved to approve the minutes of the Public Service
Committee Meeting of June 4th, subject to any changes, and seconded by

Councilperson Kassner. The motion passed by unanimous consent, 6-0.
e ,e—e—————eYeeee—————————
Council Minutes 2024 0709 Page | of 4



SCHEDULE MEETINGS
The following meetings will be held in the City Hall Conference Room:
Finance Committee Meeting July 15, 2024 5:30 pm
City/County Meeting July 18, 2024 5:30 pm

APPOINTMENTS

None

PROCILLAMATIONS

None

STAFF REPORTS

Interim Fire Chief Ed Kanduch spoke about a training that is coming to town
and will have thirty participants. Bronson Walter was recognized as completing his
probationary period. He is now a confirmed fire fighter.

CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilmember Pulecio has received calls about properties in his ward. There
is a building on Knight street being used as a commercial business. He and
Councilmember Pam Bovee received emails with pictures of equipment being used
very late into the evening. Police Chief Colombik added that this is an ongoing issue
and he is aware of it. Councilmember Huber noticed a large mess at Bender Park after
the fireworks. He stated that maybe the rules should be stricter in the future. He also
received calls about vehicles being parked too close to intersections making it hard
for people to sce.

MAYOR COMMENTS

Mayor Andrews announced that he asked directors to submit an anonymous
performance appraisal on him. The interlocal agreement is ongoing. Budget issues
are still ongoing.

BID OPENINGS

-CITY HALL JANITORIAL CONTRACT

There were no bids.

-PAVING PROJECT

Two bids were received. Top Gun entered a bid of $720,000 and Century entered a
bid of $492,000. It was referred to finance for review.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A. APPROVE FLOODPLAIN ADMINISTRATOR/PLANNER
ASSISTANT POSITION DESCRIPTION. (HUMAN RESOURCES
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS APPROVING).

HECE Councilperson Simpson moved to approve the position and seconded by

Councilperson Kassner. The motion passed by unanimous consent, 6-0.

Council Minutes 2024 0709 Page 2 of 4



*ok

B.

APPROVE AWARDING THE FULL COST OF PARKING LOT
PAVING AND RELATED CONCRETE WORK, WHICH
WOULD REPRESENT ABOUT $51,000.00 BASED ON LOW
BIDDER TOP GUN ASPHALT’S MARCH 2023 PROPOSAL.
(TIF BOARD RECOMMENDS APPROVING).

&k Councilperson Huber moved to approve the award, and seconded by
Councilperson Simpson. The motion passed by unanimous consent, 6-0.

C.

APPROVE AWARDING SEVENTY-FIVE PERCENT OF THE
COST OF REPLACING SIDEWALK ADJACENT TO THE 600
CAFE, AND THE BACKFILLING OF UNDERGROUND SPACE
BENEATH THE SIDEWALK, WHICH WOULD REPRESENT
ABOUT $13,875 BASED ON THE LOW BIDDER DOUBLE J
CONCRETE’S OCTOBER 2023 PROPOSAL. (TIF BOARD
RECOMMENDS APPROVING).

Councilperson Pulecio moved to approve the award, and seconded by
Councilperson Simpson. The motion passed by unanimous consent, 6-0.

NEW BUSINESS

A.

RESOLUTION NO. 4564 - A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
THE CITY OF MILES CITY TO ENTER INTO AN
AGREEMENT WITH THE MONTANA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION FOR STREET SWEEPING FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025.

**  Councilperson Huber moved to approve the resolution read by title only,
seconded by Councilperson Bovee. On rollcall vote the motion passed 6-0.

B.

RESOLUTION NO. 4566 - A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE
WORK PLAN AND BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025
FOR BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 101, AND
PROVIDING FOR HEARING THEREON.

*k Councilperson Pulecio moved to approve the resolution read by title only,
seconded by Councilperson Thomason. On rollcall vote the motion passed

6-0.

C.

APPROVE SENDING TERMINATION NOTICE TO
MIDRIVERS FOR TELEPHONE SERVICES.

**  Councilperson Kassner moved to approve the letter, seconded by

Council Minutes 2024 0709 Page 3 of 4



Councilperson Pulecio. On rollcall vote the motion passed 6-0.

D. RESOLUTION NO. 4567 - A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN IP
VOICE SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH RANGE, A MONTANA
CORPORATION, TO PROVIDE A TELEPHONE SYSTEM TO
THE CITY OF MILES CITY AND TO PROVIDE
MAINTENANCE OF SUCH PHONE SYSTEM.

& Councilperson Pulecio moved to approve the resolution read by title only,
seconded by Councilperson Simpson. On rollcall vote the motion passed 6-
0.

E. RESOLUTION NO. 4568 - A RESOLUTION GRANTING A
REVOCABLE LICENSE TO EMMA MEIDINGER FOR A
FENCE ENCROACHMENT UPON CITY OF MILES CITY
RIGHT OF WAY FOR BUTLER STREET FOR THE BENEFIT
OF LOTS 1 THROUGH 3 IN BLOCK 28 OF THE HIGHLAND
PARK ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MILES CITY,
COMMONLY KNOWN AS 900 SOUTH STREVELL AVENUE.

i Councilperson Pulecio moved to approve the resolution read by title only,
seconded by Councilperson Thomason. On rollcall vote the motion passed
4-2 with Councilpersons Huber and Thomason voting against.

F. RESOLUTOIN NO. 4569 - RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
PARTICIPATION IN THE MONTANA BOARD OF
INVESTMENTS OF SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT POOL AND
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF
DOCUMENTS RELATED THERETO.

s Councilperson Pulecio moved to approve the resolution read by title only,
seconded by Councilperson Huber. On rollcall vote the motion passed 6-0.

ADJOURNMENT

s Councilperson Huber moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by
Councilperson Pulecio and passed unanimously.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:36 p.m.

Dwayne Andrews, Mayor Jody Kinsey, Deputy City Clerk

L
Council Minutes 2024 0709 Page 4 of 4



Finance Committee Meeting
July 15, 2024

The Finance Committee met Monday, July 15, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. in the Miles City, City Hall
Conference Room and online at zoom.us. Present were Committee Chair Rick Huber and
Committee Members Pamela Bovee, and Donald Simpson. Committee Member Brant Kassner was
absent.

Also present were Mayor Dwayne Andrews, Council Member Kevin Thomason, Police Chief
Doug Colombik, Public Works director Samantha Malenovsky, Interim Fire Chief Ed Kanduch,
and City Clerk/Recorder Mary Rowe.

Committee Chair Huber called the meeting to order.

1. Request of Citizens and Public Comment

None

2. Review & Recommend Paving Bids.

Director Malenovsky explained that there were two bids received, but only one of them
met the bid requirements. Top gun had an overall bid of $720,000 and did not have the full bid
packet nor a bond present. Century had an overall bid of $492,300 with everything broken down.
They did include the entire bid packet and were bonded. They added in their bid packet that they
would do street leveling if needed at $275/ton. She explained that both companies have done
work for the city before and both have done good work. She recommends Century as their bid
came in close to her original estimate.

*ok Committee Member Simpson moved to recommend Century, seconded by Committee
Member Bovee, and passed unanimously, 3-0.

3. Budget Discussion

Clerk Rowe gave a brief overview of the meeting between the city and the union
presidents including once figures are nailed down, they will consider renegotiations. After their
next meeting they will report back to the Finance Committee.

Pool hours, the windfarm, governor’s assistance, and a hiring freeze were discussed. It
was announced that all current vacant positions will remain vacant at this time. There are three
Fire Department vacancies, but one will be filled leaving two vacancies, one Police Department
vacancy, and one Parks Department vacancy.

4. Adjournment
ok Committee Member Simpson moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Committee

Member Bovee and passed unanimously, 3-0.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:05 p.m.

Rick Huber, Chairperson Mary Rowe, Clerk/Recorder

Finance Minutes 2024 0715 Page 1 of 1



Public Utilities Staff Report
For June, 2024

Current work:

Utilities Crew — Performed 242 Locates. Performed all weekly and monthly sewer inspections. Replaced 4
curb stops and responded to 2 sewer calls. Smoked the sewer line that goes to Bullard Lift Station. Replaced
lfireon Moorehead hydrant and removed 1 fire hydrant for the 7" ST project. Water break on 5™ and Hubble.
Water break on Atlantic and 10™. Prepped and asphalted service cuts in streets.

Water Treatment Plant — Normal operation and maintenance tasks.

WWTP — Normal operations and maintenance at the plant and lift stations.

Water Office — Normal duties.

Current Projects:

N 7™ Street —Project currently underway and slightly ahead of schedule. Sewer and storm sewer complete.
Approximately % of project complete.

WTP Painting — Reviewed submittals. Waiting for project schedule

WWTP Generator Replacement —Received one quote, requested another. No update

Fill Station — Nothing new to report.

Southgate Storage Tank- Project will begin July 9TH.

Carbon Hill & Riverside Park Tanks — Inspections completed.

Projects (2-5 yrs) Preliminary Planning Phase:

Darling Addition Phase IV and V — Considering beginning the engineering for this project this summer.

North Montana Sewer Line — Working with SEMDC for funding through EDA

Tongue River Force Main — Was part of previous project. Will most likely get split out and become a project on
its own in order to reduce the size of the proposed EDA project.

Soil Stabilization/Erosion repair on east side of Southgate Tank Hill — KLJ is working on ideas for this.

WTP Intake replacement — PER complete. Looking for funding. This will be approximately 5-6 million dollar
project.

Major Equipment Purchases Next 6 months:
None

Page 1 of 1



Staff Report for Public Works & Parks Departments

1.Primary focus of current work underway throughout the city and challenges related to it.
-Public works and Parks crews have been busy cleaning up trees from the wind storm.
Mechanics are repairing equipment and servicing trucks, police, and fire equipment.

-Road Improvements, curbing, ADAs, and new sidewalk work will be started soon depending on
the weather and availability of contractors.

2. Status of all contracted work underway throughout the city and challenges related to it.
-Tongue River Slough project anticipation date is 2024-2025 with preliminary design completed.
Project is waiting on reviews and approval on various permits.

-New valley gutters and curbs work are being done along Tompy before any paving is
completed. Finance committee recommendation of Century to pave marked streets, paving is
anticipated to begin spring/early summer of 2025.

3. Status of projects in the planning phase.
-A Capital Improvement Plan is underway by Great West Engineering and the scope of the work
has been approved by the council.

4. Information about State, County, and utilities projects throughout the city.

-MDU is currently working on its 3" year of repairing gas lines. MDU and communications
companies have been working with the City to try and get any power or communications lines
back in place. The City has been helping by removing trees for easier access.

5. Budget variations exceeding current budgeted ceilings, including overtime expenditures.
-No budget variations currently for the Streets.
-Budget cuts have been made to Parks.

6. Major equipment purchases anticipated in the next 6 months.
-None

7. Performance improvement measures primarily selected by the officer but including the # of
overtime hours paid the last calendar month preceding the date of the report.

-Our department’s goal is to be safe and efficient operators and perform the tasks that arise.
-Park, Public Works and Utilities will have overtime ours due to damage from the storm that
occurred on Saturday.

Staff Report for July 23, 2024 Council Meeting



MILES CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT 419 N. 7% Street
Doug Colombik, Chief of Police Miles City, MT 59301
Phone: (406) 232-3411
Fax: (406) 234-4270

To: City Council

From: Chief Colombik
Ref: June 2024 Council Report

Officer Van Fossen is back on the rotation after graduating from the police academy. We are
holding off on hiring the 17' position and are currently working through the pending budget to
see where we sit and what services will be cut.

As of 7/16/24, we are at 78 felony case investigations, an increase of 8 cases since the June
report. Two of these cases were very serious including a kidnapping that ended up out of state
and involved a serious assault, and 4 suspects entering an apartment and assaulting the tenant
while it was being recorded on a phone. The last involved multiple warrants from our detectives.
These are very time-consuming cases.

Child abuse

Identity Theft

Theft (checks)

PFMA felony (PFMA is partner/family member assault)
Drugs

Theft

Child abuse

Assault

9. PFMA assault on a minor
10. Theft

11. PFMA

12. Child porn

13. Child exploitation

14. Fraud

15. Theft

16. Theft

17. Theft

18. Theft

19. DUI felony 4™ offense
20. Theft of MV

015 O SR IR



21.
22.
23.
24,
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.
Sl
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42.
43.
44.
45.
46.
47.
48.
49.
50.
51.
525
53.
54.
55.
56.
57.
58.
59.
60.
61.
62.

MILES CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT
Doug Colombik, Chief of Police
Drugs
Assault with a weapon
Child abuse
Sexual Assault
DUI felony
Sex assault
Exploitation of an elder
Drugs
Elder abuse/exploitation
Domestic (F)
Domestic (F)
Theft (F)
Fraud
Sexual assault
Burglary
Child abuse
Threats/felony intimidation
Elder abuse
Drugs (F) distribution
Drugs (F)/distribution
Child criminal endangerment
DUI (F)
Warrant (F) drugs
Warrant/Attempted homicide assist with Stillwater County S.O.
Sex Assault
Sex Assault
Assault with a weapon
Custodial interference
Identity theft
Child abuse
Identity theft
Burglary;
Domestic/Firearm threat
Drug raid, narcotic investigation
Fraud
Sexual Assault
Fraud
DUI Felony
Child abuse
Assault with a weapon
Criminal Distribution of Dangerous Drugs
Theft



MILES CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT
Doug Colombik, Chief of Police

63. Sexual Assault

64. Assault with a weapon

65. Sexual Assault/Privacy in Communications
66. MV Theft

67. Assault with a weapon

68. Theft

69. Fraud

70. SIWC (sexual intercourse without consent)
71. Theft

72. Theft

73. Aggravated burglary, assault 4 suspects and multiple charges
74. Theft

75. Criminal endangerment

76. Child abuse

77. Kidnaping

78. Assault with a weapon

As always, if you have any questions please contact me at work or 853-1802. You are always
welcome to stop by the building and visit. Thank you.

Doug Colombik
Chief of Police
Miles City Police Department



Bids Received



RECEIVED

\1 mo&\% AWM,, Mm?m@ﬂ .
0Bk =
%/m\w OA\/)\NM ( \UNY

B mz "o Mainerance
DA * 20t ¢ 200



Top Gun Asphalt E Sti m ate
Miles City, MT 59301
(406) 941-1068 Date Estimate #
www.topgunasphalt.com 1/6/2024 1893
Name / Address
City Of Miles City
Samantha Malenovsky
Miles City, Mt. 59301
P.O. No. Terms Due Date Project NOTE:
7/6/2024
Description Qty Rate Total
Travel With Equipment & Employees 0.00 0.00
MillOut To Prep For New Asphalt Hot Mix & Haul To Disposal 0.00 0.00
Site
Sweep & Tack With CSS1-H To Prep For New Asphalt Hot Mix 0.00 0.00
Haul & Place New Asphalt Hot Mix Approx. 2,600 Tons & Roller 720,000.00 720,000.00
Pack
We look forward to doing business with you. Please call John @ 406-941-1068
Total $720,000.00

*+¥Please Note- This estimate and the pricing in this estimate is only good for 30 days.

Signature




TOE6S LIN ‘ALID STTIN

0T6 X049 0d ‘13341s ni8 HLNOS /4T
d4012341a s¥YoM d11gnd ‘N11v
ALID ST 40 ALD

TESLH O LN

LSP6S LA ‘umolsimay
6.5 X0g 04
U] ‘sajuedwio) Ainjuay




CITY OF MILES CITY

2024 CITY STREET PAVING
BID PACKAGE




II.
IT1.
IV.
V.
VI.

VII.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Invitation to bid

Information for Bidder

General Specifications

General Conditions

Montana Prevailing Wage Rates

Project Description

Bid Sheet

VII. Proposal

IX.
X.
XI.

XII.

Contract
Performance & Payment Bond
Notice of Award

Drawings




NOTICE

INVITATION TO BID

The City of Miles City will receive sealed bids until 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, July 9th, 2024 for the
purpose of milling, mixing, paving, overlaying, rolling, blading, compacting, hauling and the doing
of all other necessary and incidental to the performance of said work.

Bid tender forms, bid instructions and technical specifications may be obtained from the City
Engineers office, City Hall, 17 South 8® Street, PO Box 910, Miles City, MT, 59301 (phone 406-
234-3493).

Sealed envelopes containing bids must be plainly marked in the lower left corner and marked “BID
FOR PAVING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT #204 & 205. Bids should be addressed to: City of
Miles City, ATTN: Public Works Director, 17 South 8" Street, PO Box 910, Miles City, MT 59301.

The City reserves the right to waive informalities which are not inconsistent with law and to reject
any or all bids. Bids must be on the forms and according to the bid instructions provided by the City.
Bids cannot be withdrawn for 45 days after the actual date of the opening.

The City also reserves the right to negotiate with the lowest responsible bidder in the event all bids
exceed the project budget and to award a negotiated contract to the lowest responsive bidder without
further competitive bidding.

All bidders shall abide by State and Federal laws pertaining to wage rates and insurance
requirements.

BID SECURITY

Bid security in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the bid must accompany each bid in accordance
with the Instructions to Bidders. The Contractor shall comply with all fair labor practices and the
state statues. No bidder may withdraw his bid for at least 45 days after the scheduled time for receipt
of bids. '

Bid security shall be made payable to the CITY OF MILES CITY in an amount of not less than ten
percent of the Bidders Maximum bid price for each Bid schedule and in the form of one of the
Following: (1) lawful monies of the United States, (2) a cashiers check, certified check, bank money
order, or bank draft drawn and issued by a national banking association located in the State of
Montana, or by any banking corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Montana, or (3)
a bid bond or bonds executed by the surety corporation authorized to do business in the State of
Montana.

The Bid Security of the Successful Bidder will be retained until such Bidder has executed the
Agreement, whereupon the Successful Bidder will be required to furnish Owner a contract. If the
Successful Bidder fails to execute and deliver the Agreement within 15 days of the Notice of Award,
OWNER may annul the Notice of Award and the Bid Security of that Bidder will be forfeited.



Award may then be made to the next lowest responsible and qualified bidder or may be re-
advertised, as the OWNER may decide. The Bid Security of any Bidder whom OWNER believes to
have a reasonable chance of receiving the award may be retained by OWNER until the Seventh day
after the “effective date of the Agreement” or the forty-first day after the Bid opening whichever
occurs first. Bid Security of other Bidders will be returned within fourteen days of the Bid opening.
After contract is awarded, the successful bidder will be required to furnish a performance bond in the
amount of one hundred percent (100%) of the contract.

Samantha Malenovsky

Engineering & Operations

Publish Dates: Wednesday, June 12%
Wednesday, June 19
Wednesday, July 3%

Send Affidavit of publication and invoice to City Hall-Engineering Department



INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS

1. PROPOSALS

a. FORM. Each proposal shall be made on a form prepared by the Public Works
Department and included as one of the contract documents. Proposals shall be submitted in a
sealed envelope bearing the title of the work, and name and address of the bidder.

The proposal forms are included in this bound volume of contract documents. Neither the
proposal nor any other papers bound therein or attached hereto shall be detached.

The blank spaces in the form must be filled in correctly for each item and the bidder must state
the prices (written both in words and numerals) for which be proposed to do each item of work
contemplated. All proposals must be totaled and in cases of errors or discrepancies, the unit
prices or lump sum prices written in words shall govern.

Each proposal must be signed in ink and display the name and address of the Bidder in the blank
spaces provided. If the proposal is made by a firm or partnership, the name and address of the
firm or partnership shall be shown, together with the names and addresses of the members. If the
proposal is made by a corporation, it must be signed in the name of such corporation by an
official who is authorized to bind the bidder.

Any bid not displaying the above mentioned information will be considered incomplete and will
not be read.

b. MODIFICATIONS. No alteration in the proposals or in the printed forms will be
permitted by erasures or interlineations. Alternate proposals will not be considered unless called
for. Oral proposals or modifications will not be considered. Proposals carrying riders or
qualifications may be rejected as irregular.

C. EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND VISIT TO SITE. Before
submitting a proposals, bidders shall carefully examine the drawings, read the specifications and
the other contract documents, shall visit the site work, and shall fully inform themselves as to all
existing conditions and limitations, and shall include in his/her bid as set forth on the proposal
and sum to cover the cost of all work covered by the contract documents.

d DELIVERY OF PROPOSALS. Proposals shall be delivered by the time and to the place
stipulated in the “Advertisement for Bids”. It is the sole responsibility of the Bidder to see that
this proposal is received in proper time. Any proposal received after the scheduled closing time
for receipt of proposals shall be returned to Bidder unopened.

e. WITHDRAWAL. Any Bidder may withdraw his proposal, either personally or by
telegraphic or written request, at any time prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of
proposals. ’



f. OPENING. Proposals will be opened and publicly read aloud at the time and place set
forth in the “Advertisement for Bids”.

g AWARD OR REJECTION. The contract will be awarded to the lowest and/or best
qualified responsible Bidder complying with these instructions and with the Advertisement for
Bids. The Owner reserves the right to reject any or all proposals or two waive any formality or
technicality in any proposal in the interest of the Owner. No Bidder may withdraw his proposal
for a period of 45 days after the date of opening thereof.

2. INTERPRETATION OF DOCUMENTS.

If any person contemplating submitting a proposal is in doubt as to the true meaning of any part
of the drawings, specifications or other contract documents, or finds discrepancies in or
omissions from the drawings or specifications, he may submit to the Public Works Department a
written request for an interpretation or correction thereof. The person submitting the request will
be responsible for its prompt delivery. Any interpretation or correction of the documents will be
made only by addendum duly issued and copy of the addendum will be mailed or delivered to
each person receiving a set of the contract documents.

3. ADDENDA.

Any addenda issued during the time of bidding, or forming a part of the contract documents
loaned to the Bidder for the preparation of his/her proposal, shall be covered in the proposal and
shall be made a part of the contract. Receipt of each addendum shall be acknowledged in the
proposal. Any bid in which all issued addenda are not acknowledged will be considered
mcomplete and will not be read.

4. BIDDERS INTERESTED IN MORE THAN ONE PROPOSAL.

No person, firm or corporation shall be allowed to make, file or to be interested in more than one
proposal for the same work, unless alternate proposals are called for. A person, firm or
corporation who has submitted a subproposal to a Bidder, or who has quoted prices on materials
to a Bidder, is not hereby disqualified from submitting a subproposal for quoting prices to other
bidders.

5. PROPOSAL GUARANTY.

Each proposal shall be accompanied by a proposal guarantee acceptable to the Owner, in the
amount and form specified in the “Advertisement for Bids” payable without conditions to the
Owner as a guaranty that the Bidder, if awarded the contract, will promptly cxccute the
agreement i accordance with the proposal and the other contract documents, and will furnish
good and sufficient bond for the faithful performance of the same and for the payment to all
persons supplying labor and material for the work. The proposal guarantees of all Bidders,
except the three lowest, will be returned promptly after the canvass of proposals.



6. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND.

The successful Bidder, simultaneously with the execution of the contract, will be required to
furnish a faithful Performance and Payment Bond or separate Performance and Payment Bond in
an amount specified in the Advertisement to Bids. Said bond or bonds shall be secured from a
surety company satisfactory to the Owner. The form of the bonds the successful bidder will be
required to execute are included in the contract documents. The executed bond shall be
accompanied by a “Power of Attorney”.

7. QUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS.

Bidders will be required to submit satisfactory evidence that they have practical knowledge of
the particular work bid upon, and that they have the necessary financial resources to complete the
proposed work. In awarding the contract, due consideration will be given to the present ability,
reliability, and general reputation of each of the bidders.

Each bidder must show that former work performed by him has been handled in such a manner
that there are no just or proper claims against such work.

No bidder will be acceptable if he is engaged on any other work which mmpairs his ability to
finance this contract or provide proper equipment for the proper execution of the same.

8. PRE-AWARD CONFERENCE.

The bidder submitting what appears to be the best bid will be required to meet with the Owner
and the Public Works Department prior to the award of the contract for the purpose of discussing
pertinent details pertaining to the proposed work. The following points will be considered in
particular:

a. The Contractor’s organization and equipment available for the work.
b. The Contractor’s proposed schedule of operations.

c. The interpretation of the specifications.

d. The Contractor’s previous experience in work of this type.

Should the conference indicate that the Contractor does not appear to be in a position to properly
undertake the work, or that he has not properly familiarized himself with the plans and
specifications, the Owner reserves the right to reject the bid of this Contractor, and to consider
the next bidder.

9\ FEE REQUIREMENTS.

The Bidder’s attention is also directed to House Bill No. 530, Chapter No. 195, Montana Session
Laws of 1967, enacted by the Fortieth Session of the Legislative Assembly of the State of
Montana. Under the provisions of this law, each public contractor shall pay to the state, in
addition to license application fees, a sum equal to one percent (1%) of the gross receipts from
all public contracts in excess of one thousand dollars ($1000). A public contractor within the



meaning of this act shall include any individual, firm, co-partnership, association, corporation, or
other group or combination acting as a unit, who submits a proposal to or enters into a contract
for performing public construction work in the state, with the Federal Government, State of
Montana, or with any Board, Commission or Department thereof, or with any Board of County
Commissioners, City or Town Council, or with any agency thereof, or with any other public
Board, Body, Commission or Agency, authorized to let or award contracts for any public work.
The term “Public Contractor” also include subcontractors.

The Owner shall withhold, in addition to other amounts provided in the specifications, one
percent (1%) of all moneys due to the Contractor and shall transmit such moneys to the State
Board of Equalization. Prime contractors shall be responsible for withholding one percent (1%)
of all monies due to subcontractors for work performed under contracts for public work, and
shall transmit such monies to the State Board of Equalization.

Additional information pertaining to license requirements and license fees may be obtained from
the Montana State Board of Equalization, State Capitol Building, Helena, Montana.

10.  INDUSTRIAL ACCIDENT INSURANCE.

The Contractor’s attention is called to the Industrial Accident Insurance laws in force in Montana
and to the responsibility of the Owner for the collection of premiums thereunder. His
compliance with said laws is required, and shall relieve the Owner of any responsibility for the
payment of premiums thereunder, and shall furnish the Owner with satisfactory evidence
showing that all premiums arising from this contract have been paid before payment is made on
the final estimate.

11.  PREFERENCE OF MONTANA LABOR AND WAGE RATES.

In accordance with Montana law on contracts for state, county, municipal, school construction,
heavy highway or municipal construction, repair or maintenance work under any of the laws of
the state, the Contractor shall give preference to the employment bona fide Montana residents in
the performance of said contract, and shall further pay the standard prevailing rate of wages in
effect as paid in the county in which the work is being performed. On all contracts for work on
heavy highway or municipal construction other than building construction, and on all projects
with Federal funds, the minimum wage rates shall be as listed elsewhere in the contract
documents.

12. PREFERENCE FOR MONTANA CONTRACTORS, PRODUCTS AND MATERIALS.

In accordancc with the provisions of Montana Law (Scction 82-1924, RCM 1947), a preforence
of three percent (3%) will be given to the lowest responsible bidder who is a resident of the State
of Montana over a non-resident bidder. This preference applies to Federal Aid projects unless
specifically prohibited by Federal Laws and Regulations.

Products manufactured or produced in this State by Montana industry and labor shall be
preferred for use in all projects and in all materials, supplies and equipment, if such products,



materials and equipment are comparable in price and quality. Further, wherever possible,
products manufactured and produced in this state which are suitable substitutes for products
manufactured or produced outside the state and comparable in price, quality and performance
shall be preferred for use in this project.

13. NONDISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT - FEDERAL AID PROJECTS.

In accordance with Federal laws, contracts for work under this proposal will obligate the
Contractors and subcontractors not to discriminate in employment practices.

Bidders must complete the signed statement in the proposal as to whether they have previously
performed work subject to the President’s Executive Order No. 10925 as amended by Executive
Order No. 11114 or Executive Order No. 11246.



SPECIFICATIONS

This contract consists of the following:

1) Overlaying portions of Tompy St., Sudlow St., Doeden Ave., Moorehead Ave., Comstock St.,
Bridge St. Lyman Circle, and N. Montana and in Maintenance District 204 and compacting in
place an average of 2” thickness of bituminous plant mix surfacing.

2) Paving on grade for gravel N. 4% St., River St., and N. 5% St. in Maintenance District 205 and
compacting in place on average of 3” thickness of bituminous plant mix surfacing.

3) Milling N. Montana in Maintenance District 204.

4) Asphalt shall be pg 58-28 or pg 64-22 penetration, 5 ¥ to 6.0% oil or asphalt similar to or
otherwise approved by the City Public Works Office.

5) All overlay areas shall be sprayed with SS-1 emulsified asphalt tack oil prior to overlaying.

6) Aggregate gradation shall meet the Dept. of Highways grade B requirements unless otherwise
approved by the City Public Works Office.

7) Traffic control and street cleaning priot to paving shall be the responsibility of the City of
Miles City.

8) It shall be understood by the Contractor, that the total QUANTITIES called for HEREIN ARE
approximate and the Contractor will be paid BASED ON tons of asphalt in place.

All construction under this project including lying, rolling, compacting, etc., shall conform to the
standard specifications for road and bridge construction adopted by the Montana Dept. of
Highways and the Montana Highway Commission. Any deviation from these standards must be
approved by the CITY PUBLIC WORKS OFFICE. All contractors are required to use only tax
paid fuel on this project. If dyed fuel is used on the project the contractor is required to complete
a Fuel Declaration Form available from the Montana Department of Transportation.



This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with
respect to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of
the contemplated Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations.

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS
OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Prepared By

EJCDC=

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

ACEC

AmericaN COUNCIL OF ENGINEERING COMPANLES

ASCE

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEERS

®

NATIONAL
SOCIETY OF
PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEERS

Endorsed By

Building Knum‘edgﬂl® WZ) @ ‘%

improving FProject Dellvery

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.




Copyright® 2018

National Society of Professional Engineers
1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794
(703) 684-2882

WWww.nsoe.org

American Council of Engineering Companies
1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005
(202) 347-7474

Www.acec.or

American Society of Civil Engineers
1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400
(800) 548-2723

WWwW.asce.or

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed
above. The National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC
documents; please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE.

NOTE: EICDC publications may be purchased at www.ejcdc.org, or from any of the sponsoring
organizations above.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.



GUIDELINES FOR USE OF EJCDC® C-700,
STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

1.0 PURPOSE AND INTENDED USE OF THE DOCUMENT

EICDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract (2018}, is the foundation
document for the EIJCDC Construction Series. The General Conditions define the basic rights,
responsibilities, risk allocations, and contractual relationship of the Owner and Contractor, and establish
how the Contract is to be administered.

2.0 OTHER DOCUMENTS

EJCDC documents are intended to be used as a system and changes in one EJCDC document may require
a corresponding change in other documents. Other EJCDC documents may also serve as a reference to
provide insight or guidance for the preparation of this document.

These General Conditions have been prepared for use with either EJCDC® C-520, Agreement Between
Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price), or EXCDC® C-525, Agreement Between
Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract {Cost-Plus-Fee) (2018 Editions). The provisions of the
General Conditions and the Agreement are interrelated, and a change in one may necessitate a change in
the other.

To prepare supplementary conditions that are coordinated with the General Conditions, use
EJCDC® C-800, Supplementary Conditions of the Construction Contract (2018).

The full EJCDC Construction series of documents is discussed in the EJCDC® C-001, Commentary on the
2018 EJCDC Construction Documents (2018).

3.0 ORGANIZATION OF INFORMATION

All parties involved in a construction project benefit significantly from a standardized approach in the
location of subject matter throughout the documents. Experience confirms the danger of addressing the
same subject matter in more than one location; doing so frequently leads to confusion and unanticipated
legal consequences. Careful attention should be given to the guidance provided in
EJCDC® N-122/AIA® A521, Uniform Location of Subject Matter (2012 Edition) when preparing documents.
EICDC® N-122/AIA® A521 is available at no charge from the EJCDC website, www.ejcdc.org, and from the
websites of EICDC’s sponsoring organizations.

If CSI MasterFormat™ is used for organizing the Project Manual, consult CSI MasterFormat™ for the
appropriate document number (e.g., under 00 11 00, Advertisements and Invitations), and accordingly
number the document and its pages.

4.0 EDITING THIS DOCUMENT

Remove these Guidelines for Use. Some users may also prefer to remove the two cover pages.

Although it is permissible to revise the Standard EJCDC Text of C-700 (the content beginning at page 1 and
continuing to the end), it is common practice to leave the Standard EJCDC Text of C-700 intact and
unaltered, with modifications and supplementation of C-700’s provisions set forth in EJCDC® C-800,
Supplementary Conditions of the Construction Contract (2018). If the Standard Text itself is revised, the

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Guidelines Page 1 of 2



user must comply with the terms of the License Agreement, Paragraph 4.0, Document-Specific Provisions,
concerning the tracking or highlighting of revisions. The following is a summary of the relevant License
Agreement provisions:

5.0

1.

The term “Standard EJCDC Text” for C-700 refers to all text prepared by EJCDC in the main body
of the document. Document covers, logos, footers, instructions, or copyright notices are not
Standard EJCDC Text for this purpose.

During the drafting or negotiating process for C-700, it is important that the two contracting
parties are both aware of any changes that have been made to the Standard EICDC Text. Thus, if
a draft or version of C-700 purports to be or appears to be an EJCDC document, the user must
plainly show all changes to the Standard EJCDC Text, using “Track Changes” (redline/strikeout),
highlighting, or other means of clearly indicating additions and deletions.

If C-700 has been revised or altered and is subsequently presented to third parties (such as
potential bidders, grant agencies, lenders, or sureties) as an EJCDC document, then the changes
to the Standard EJCDC Text must be shown, or the third parties must receive access to a version
that shows the changes.

Once the document is ready to be finalized (and if applicable executed by the contracting parties),
it is no longer necessary to continue to show changes to the Standard EJCDC Text. The user may
produce a final version of the document in a format in which all changes are accepted, and the
document at that point does not need to include any “Track Changes,” redline/strikeout,
highlighting, or other indication of additions and deletions to the Standard EJCDC Text.

LICENSE AGREEMENT

This document is subject to the terms and conditions of the License Agreement, 2018 EICDC®
Construction Series Documents. A copy of the License Agreement was furnished at the time of purchase

of this document, and is available for review at www.ejcdc.org and the websites of EICDC’s sponsoring
organizations.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Guidelines Page 2 of 2



STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS
OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Article 1—Definitions and TErMINOIOGY.............issmsinscissmmsnisssissississmsiomisimisisinississsssisissiossssissiasise 1
101 DefiN@d TEIMS ..ottt et crase e st aes b e e s s b st s st et st sae s neensessene s eneeenreaaens 1
102 T@IMINOIOGY ...vceiirierereuereitiritsee st et sesessssecss st esessssesssssesanssenssssasasessesesesesesseesseassebeseesesesessasseeeseses 6
Article 2—Preliminary IMABEEES .......c.occiiieieierierees e ees ettt st seeacs e esssseseesesseesassassssassassesesenssasseenes 7
2.01 Delivery of Performance and Payment Bonds; Evidence of INSUraNCe...........ceeuevereeereeseserenns 7
2,02 COPIeS OF DOCUMENES .....cucuieuiiriereanenretssetsseessessessssessssesesssesetssereesessesesesssesasseeessasesssssasssssasassesas 7
2,03 Before Starting CONStrUCHON st o siasianss 8
2.04  Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives............ooecveereeeeeecsenn. 8
2.05  AcCeptance Of SChEAUIES ......coiiiieieece ettt st teeee e eeeeeeeeeeesess e s s sss e assnessessrenesanens 8
2.06  ElICtronic TrANSMITLALS .....c.cveceure i e eeetssreetrteese e se sttt ecseeoneebesss e eeee e s sass seesesessasesneese 9
Article 3—Contract Documents: Intent, REGUIrEMENES, REUSE .....oc.veeevereeeverereresesseiesessresesessssensseseessssesesseens 9
B.0L  INEONT .ttt e es bR sttt a ettt esee e eene e e nns 9
3.02  Reference STAaNCArds.........i e crececeneniniiniet et ettt e ssssssesessss s s seas e besesesasssseseseaessnennssaes 10
3.03 Reporting and ResolViNg DiSCrPANCIES ...c..uiureriviueceerieeeeeeeeeessessemeseeesessessessesassessesessssessnsssssens 10
3.04  Requirements of the CONtract DOCUMENTS ..........ceiuievereteueeetieeeseeeneeesessessesemeesssssseresesesesesssssenns 11
3.05  ReUSE OF DOCUMENLES .....viuiicmceecriecenrineetietetseessesates s s seessass s stesesse seseeasseneaessasesesseseseesessensesnes 11
Article 4—Commencement and Progress 0F the WOTK w....oveweeeeueeemreseeseeseeseneseeseesseeesseeeseees s e s 12
4.01 Commencement of Contract TiMes; NOtICE 10 ProOCEE ... .. voveveeeeereeeseeesereressestesseesesesssssnns 12
402 SEAPHING The WOTK .ottt cteueiesesassssctescece s aesescasesseeseeeeseestees s saesesesessessssmsessnenseeseeenens 12
4.03  REfEreNCe POINES .......oiviuiiiiicii st cresess e seasaesas caeseses s s sess s st sasta s ssssenasete seaes s et asesaseesenses 12
4.0 Progress SCNEAUIE ..ottt e e et e ee et eeeseet s e e s eeseses et sas e eeassmsesemesseseeaens 12
4.05  Delays in CONLrACON’S PrOBIESS ...c.ceueuriseeeereseesesseesmsssesstssssssssesesssessnessresesesssssessssnsssnsseesssesens 12
Article 5—Site; Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Environmental Conditions .................... 14
501 Availability of Lands swsmmsisemsaamammnmsimmias s s emnims i i iz 14
5.02  Use Of Site @and OTher ArEas.......c.cccieiirereriieereiie et eeeseeceesseseeesesessesesssesesssessnsssssesssesssins 14
5.03  Subsurface and PhySiCal CONAILIONS.......c.c.iiieriiererireeeeeneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesees seseeeesesessesesssesssseesesesseeses 15
5.04  Differing Subsurface or Physical CONAItIONS ........cucveeieririseeeereereseeesesesesesesesesssessesses sesseseseseseens 16

) EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
TOC Page 1 of 5



5.05
5.06

UNAErroUNnd FACHIEIES ....coceuee ettt e s sae s et e e steeet et st anssaes s et eeeeneseansesan 18

Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site

Article 6—BoNdS AN INSUFBNCE.......c.ocueiereieecreeeeestsiteserseseseesessss s seees e eeseseesesmeeesse s seseeesees e e eseennnn 22

6.01
6.02
6.03
6.04
6.05
6.06

Performance, Payment, and Other BONAS ... eeeeeoiiesosesssressossserssssesessssessssssesesssssseesnn 22
Insurance—General Provisions
CONtractor’s) INSUFaNCE ,yemsmssssmessnsersnssmsommsnsmes oS e A 24
Builder’s Risk and Other Property INSUFANCR......cc.cuiuiveiecrseeeeereseeessssessrasssssesesarersssrsssssssssnssensns 25
Property LoSses; SUBIrOGatION ....cciceieeeeicceecie s e eeseesaeenans T —— 26

Receipt and Application of Property INSUrance ProCEES .........oeeerireeeesrresreressesesessesessesaserssens 27

Article 7—Contractor’s RESPONSIDIIIES c..vivriivceceereriietetieisceeceesieseceesenseseeeeseseseesessaseseseseeessssesesssasssessssssnn 27

7.01
7.02
7.03
7.04
7.05
7.06
7.07
7.08
7.09
7.10
7.11
7.12
7.13
7.14
7.15
7.16
7.17
7.18
7.19

Contractor’s Means and Methods of CONSErUCHION .........cccvererecciicrciississssssssssressssesssssesssenes 2.7
Supervision and SUPEHINEENAENCE .......cvi it s et rs sena s s ase st eseneseseseaenen 28
Labor; WOrKING HOUPS ......c.c.oicv ettt csecassssssssssssss e e e saseseasssssssessnssessesasessnssesssenssnnensases 28
Services, Materials, and EQUIPIMENT c..ccueriiiee e et etesiee e st sseses e seeneeeseseeeneeneesene 28
“OF EQUAIS" sisiisisisusssssasesnarenssssasnsasassonsessessessssssssonsastsssarensesessassssensassasssenses saseasesnsessasssnssussnensnssesses 29
SUDSHIEURES 5ot 3050500505 asaktsassnsmermermersssnterrasasemsnsmemesnas heastsseopspasassas ussusens sumsrmsma massapsaannsray 30
Concerning Subcontractors and SUPPHEIS........ccvveeeveiriecreniereieeeceseseseesseeeeeaeesseeseeasenssssseeneees 31
Patent FEes and ROYAIIES ... ettt sttt sttt e eneeenen s eneseneseneeee e eneeee 33
PErMItS oo cue. . imsinsssim i T RS s aasien 33
T AXCS cusmumssrinsssessssscmminms el S e s R B W S R a3 3
Laws and Regulations...

RECOIA DOCUMENTS ....uittetreeieictetiat et s e ceeteseeeaemeeseesesasees seessansssesssssssesssamsseness et sesessssessesssenens 34

SUDMITEALS s i oo sev s A BHEiooe 003 5305 4sh drmsnsmenmen e mysrassrssnessesesaessraserasssnansssonpasas 3B
Contractor’s General Warranty and GUAFANTEE ...cciucucciuievesceeiseseceireseseeseeeesesseeseessssessessesessasses 39
Indemnification

Delegation of Professional DeSigN SEIVICES .......cciuueierceereeceeereeceeeeae st e eesesesseeses eeeeeseaessaesns 40

Article 8-—Other WOIK Gt the SHEE ... ... cieeeeeiee e eee e etee s e esae s sseese st s s ee s eee et sees s s ee et e e, 41

8.01
8.02
8.03

OEREE WOTK <.ttt et sttt s eeeesae sas et ek e e na st e s e e b et e b et e nne s see et ese s e e o 41

EICDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
TOC Page20of 5



Article 9—OWNEr’S RESPONSIDIEIES «....cueiicesereceeitecee et eaee et eseseeneee seeseseneeasseseseeseaseesssssssessesasssans 43

9.01
9.02
9.03
9.04
9.05
9.06
9.07
9.08
9.09
9.10
9.11
9.12

CommUNICatioNS 10 CONEIACTON ..co.ciiiiiiiicicreieeiire st ceeeceeests st s e ses seeseseeseesseesaasrensnesaerennes 43
Replacement of ENGINEEN.........vceineeniniisacnsncsensncecss s iiissisisisistinsssisisissisioss siiad st Sasassasoasissioin 43
FUFMISI DA ...ttt res et en s rne e et er ettt s e sas seet b et sees seseee e seeateseeeseeans 43
PAY WHREN DUE..... ittt ettt eess et ems e sae s aesteeeeaaese st e s e et e e e te s eeas sstmm e smsseenssaesesenns 43
Lands and Easements; Reports, Tests, and DFaWinNgs.........ccceeeeererereeireerineseeeemseseeeeseseesssesseens 43
TNSUFANCE L outiviniietistie it es s ee st e e st e st e eesas s et b et easassasesess stebtenentenseeessanessemeseaese et eeenssesessenan 44
Change Orders u s mm i s s e s s M4
INSPections, TestS, AN APPrOVALS......ccewieieeieetre e et es st s ee et eseee s et et eneeseaenenee 14
Limitations on OWNer's RESPONSIDIILIES ....cccueeerereieieereiiereaeie v cecseeseeiesssress e ssseseeessnssesesenessns 44

Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental CoNAition.........couveeieeeesnsnessesresesssessessnssssessssneneses 4
Evidence of FINaNncial Arrangements.....cuu et e sresse e eas senesnessesssensseasesaessns 44

SAFELY PrOGIAMS ... c.viveeiecueiteritreeianantssse s s e essas e seasseseas srse s secsessasseseseseses sesaenesssseseenssssesessnnns 44

Article 10—Engineer’s Status DUMING CONSEIUCTION ......cvveiieririrecrincsesiosssesessnessessssssssssmnsnsssesssssssesssessseness 4

10.01 OWNEI'S REPIESENTALIVE. ... oveeeieieeecicec e e e et e e ses e sessesssae e erensess sness sasnesass ssseensssssssenssnsss B}
10,02 VSIS 0 SIHE...ccmvnesusicasimmsavimssimisssssissiiseiiioss ooy iaanions sy s simsss sisiaiis s e s aseaiisssss 45
10.03 Resident Project REPreSeNTatiVe. .. ..uceiee it re st ceeesesseseassseseasssssesessssss seenesssesess 45
10.04 ENgineer’s AULNOFItY . ...« mmeosummamassvesssmimimiam i oy oy e s 45
10.05  Determinations for UNit PLrICE WOIK ....cccueueeueeceucuererceeseiicceneeeeresese e seeeeee e seseenesessenseeeen 45
10.06 Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work ...................46
10.07 Limitations on Engineer’s Authority and Responsibilities .........ccocuiieereincecinessececncinsnnn 46
10.08  Compliance With SAfEty PrOBIamM ... cceeeereese s e saseeeeresressseseeesesssressessesesenses esssesensses 46
Article 11—Changes t0 the CONTIACE ........iuiuiieeieerereccceeceeeeecsceeretssses s ssesess reenasesensessaesessmmeeseensenessenenenes 46
11.01  Amending and Supplementing the CONLFACE .......ccueuiiiieeiieisisinsressciessinssessessessesessarsnsasasenees 46
11.02 Change Orders uesusumssssesmsmssimissmisiiimiimsacsisaamiiinsimssnsmmid
11.08  Work Change Dile CUIVES casmmsssmcsssessssmiasis s s isissses e s s i st tiad 47
11,04 Field OFders.. ...t ceeintniateas st et ae s see s st et sessseseassessaeracaneee et enee e eenens 48
11.05  Owner-Authorized Ch:'anges N EHE WOFK ...ttt ea st srs s sr e 48
11.06  Unauthorized Changes in the WOIK...........c.ciceecuneveeeeseeresersessseseressesessssessses senessassssssesessnsses 48
11.07  Change Of CONEIACE PrICE .ouviuiuerriveriisaeisssaesesssassssiesesses eaeeassnsens e snesssssesensssesessassssssesenesenssenss 48
11.08  Change of CONIact TIMES...uiuiiuicirseiiriseeesicasissessessssseesssesssemesssessessnemeessssessssesssessnssssssesssss 49
11.09  Change Proposals.............. st st i i 50
11.10 NOUIfICAtION t0 SUrELY wsusussssnsasssmsmmasssivsssismmvdsiinmssii i sy res e issaismiais 51

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
TOC Page 3 of 5



Article 12 —Claimsusssivisis: sl S e T T e 51
12,01 ClAIMS cuccsciniessescisemmsnisessemmeassassesesessss dibs b iiisissiiiviadsnevitssmii i s i e oo sV aRE s 51
Article 13—Cost of the Work; Allowances; UNIt PriCe WOIK ......co.coceeveeeeereereressressesseesessesessessssssssssssesns 52
13.01  COSE OF the WK wueicceiicecteee ettt cre st e st et be st et e st es s n e eatesn s emannns 52
13.02  AllOWENCES .iivitiriiiiierearsisnenaennassansasssasssesessesessassessseseseseseseassesssssnsssnsness easessessassssssensssssanesnses 56
13.03  UNIt PPICE WOEK.....ciiiiiiiniiiietereeeriecistennentsesessaessssaesaseessesesssssanassssseesessesasessasssesssssssanenssssssssane 56
Article 14—Tests and Inspections; Correction, Removal, or Acceptance of Defective Work .................... 57
14.01  ACCESS 10 WOTK..cuiuicininrisnnainiisemnenasansesassesss il e S e S T R e s 57
14.02 Tests, INSPECtions, aNd APPrOValS.....cucceiieeeiiireireteiieiie e cseeee st et eseebe s shesasbasansessatesreenssans 57
14.03 DEFECEIVE WOIK ..eiieicuciiscisestrseiseese e sesaeasbe st e ssse st s shsaeasssseesasessssesssesnes s esssessnsnsnsansasassns 58
14.04 Acceptance Of DefECtiVE WOKK.. ..o iieecienieiencten ettt ee e e st e e seseesseses s s snasssssessetans 59
14.05 UNCOVEIING WOKK ...t sttt see e e aeaee sesssaneesss ssssssssssases ssssssssnsnssesssssssssssaesssessesess DO
14.06  Owner May STOP the WOrK ........cociciiiiniiinisissieiinies seseeesseseessesssssessessseeenssseessesnesnsseensees 59
14.07 Owner May Correct DefeCtiVe WOIK.........cc v ceeeeecce oot st easaseseesarasess stesesnnesesssenesessns 60
Article 15—Payments to Contractor; Set-Offs; Completion; COrrection Period ..........eeeeeeeeeeeeeererreveseesenns 60
15.01 PrOBIESS PAYMENES..c.eeiieerteireeiirtere s e ste e e stes e berebs e sr s et et et saant st entne sesee e enremeeseneneneene 60
15.02 Contractor's Warranty Of TIHIE ...cucieeeciiieie e et easessseeiasaesseassassasssessssessseseeses B3
15.03 SUbStantial CoOMPIETION ....ccuveeueieci sttt et es et st eassescses serebebasesbesae eressasesesnsnenesesennes 63
15.04  Partial Use OF OCCUPANCY w.uorrrrrererereasaeeeeseacaranesessesssesessssnssssssessssessssessssssessssesenssrssseasesesesssess 64
15.05 FINAT INSPECEION ...t ettt eeeae e aes s s s re s e e erenssareseesbese e b asaes asaseaansn ek antesassenerenns 65
15.06 Final Payment................... ...65
15.07  Waiver of CIaIMS ............. b s s smes eishis sassnpuenconmms aonspenasryasatesesasneasasnon 66
15.08  COrrection Period........ccoeiriiiinaiiiiieiiee e iess e s s sssssnss senensesaeseeansensanas .67
Article 16—Suspension of Work and TErMINAtION .........c.ceeieeiieeeeesieieassesesees e seeesesssessssssesssenseesns 68
16.01  OWNer May SUSPENA WOTK ....ocuuiiiieeiee e cresieieseae e sresesssas e s sssassssssaessesassstesasesanssaesssesessns 68
16.02  Owner May Terminate fOr CAUSE....uuuiiiiiciciiiiestirssiessiressese e teneseesesassssaressesemsessasseneneens 68
16.03 Owner May Terminate for CONVENIENCE.......cuic e rriermirireeiesiressessissessesssessessensssessssssesesassens 69
16.04  Contractor May Stop WOrk or TerMINATte ..........eeuieceierarmiesiiasiscssessssssssesse sessssssssns esnssessssssens 69
Article 17—Final ReSOIULION Of DISPULES .....c.cueuerierereesriesessicissesssssssseseseesenesseeneseseasseesesenesseesessssesessssenas 70
17.01  Methods and ProCeAUIES........cuuiuiurivaerireresessiesesesesasaes sesssasssssssassasssesssssssssesssnsesessesssesssasans 70
AFtICIE 18—MIiSCEIIANEOUS ... et ersint e ietereteeerenssess et st et s s e sesa sesesesaeeseasmreensaseean seresanres 70
18.01 GiIVING NOTICE .. ciie e er e creecneeni s e vae s e SRS ST SN T R S e RaR 70
18.02  CoOmMPULALION OF THIMES...iiiieiciiiieiiiriiesiciicsecte st e st es e s sa s e s se s aa s aes esas s asenssenasssenesesans 70

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
TOC Page 4 of 5



18.03
18.04
18.05
18.06
18.07
18.08
18.09
18.10

Cumulative Remedies

Limitation of Damages

NO WRIVET ..ttt esa e eessaneaa s e et sreees saaesersessaanbens s eaeenseabssan e e s sann et sssamenserases
SUPVIVal OF OBHZALIONS 1.veiiiiverieiiieieetes ettt e e aes e sen sesseeresaesenassssnssasassenseseasensssvens
CONLLOMIING LAW 1iiiiiiiiiiis ittt ceeiesae s e seasssssae smsssenseasstassnsesssssetesassnssssenseesennsssesssesen

Assighment of Contract

Successors and Assigns

Headings

..................................................................................................................................

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
TOC Page 5 of 5



STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS
OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

ARTICLE 1—DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY

1.01

Defined Terms

A.  Wherever used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents, a term printed with
initial capital letters, including the term’s singular and plural forms, will have the meaning
indicated in the definitions below. In addition to terms specifically defined, terms with initial
capital letters in the Contract Documents include references to identified articles and
paragraphs, and the titles of other documents or forms.

1.

Addenda—Wrritten or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids which
clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Requirements or the proposed Contract
Documents.

Agreement—The written instrument, executed by Owner and Contractor, that sets forth
the Contract Price and Contract Times, identifies the parties and the Engineer, and
designates the specific items that are Contract Documents.

Application for Payment—The document prepared by Contractor, in a form acceptable to
Engineer, to request progress or final payments, and which is to be accompanied by such
supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.

Bid—The offer of a Bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for
the Work to be performed.

Bidder—An individual or entity that submits a Bid to Owner.

Bidding Documents—The Bidding Requirements, the proposed Contract Documents, and
all Addenda.

Bidding Requirements—The Advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders,
Bid Bond or other Bid security, if any, the Bid Form, and the Bid with any attachments.

Change Order—A document which is signed by Contractor and Owner and authorizes an
addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the

Contract Times, or other revision to the Contract, issued on or after the Effective Date of
the Contract.

Change Proposal—A written request by Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with
the procedural requirements set forth herein, seeking an adjustment in Contract Price or
Contract Times; contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of
the Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the Contract Documents;

challenging a set-off against payments due; or seeking other relief with respect to the
terms of the Contract.

10. Claim

a. Ademand or assertion by Owner directly to Contractor, duly submitted in compliance
with the procedural requirements set forth herein, seeking an adjustment of Contract
Price or Contract Times; contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 10of 71



requirements of the Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the
Contract Documents; contesting Engineer’s decision regarding a Change Proposal;
seeking resolution of a contractual issue that Engineer has declined to address; or
seeking other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract.

b. A demand or assertion by Contractor directly to Owner, duly submitted in compliance
with the procedural requirements set forth herein, contesting Engineer’s decision
regarding a Change Proposal, or seeking resolution of a contractual issue that
Engineer has declined to address.

c. A demand or assertion by Owner or Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with
the procedural requirements set forth herein, made pursuant to Paragraph 12.01.A.4,
concerning disputes arising after Engineer has issued a recommendation of final
payment.

d. Ademand for money or services by a third party is not a Claim.

11. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive materials, polychlorinated
biphenyls (PCBs), lead-based paint (as defined by the HUD/EPA standard), hazardous
waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material of any nature whatsoever
that is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to Laws and Regulations
regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning, any
hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, or material.

12, Contract—The entire and integrated written contract between Owner and Contractor
concerning the Work.

13. Contract Documents—Those items so designated in the Agreement, and which together
comprise the Contract.

14. Contract Price—The money that Owner has agreed to pay Contractor for completion of
the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

15. Contract Times—The number of days or the dates by which Contractor shall: (a) achieve
Milestones, if any; (b) achieve Substantial Completion; and (c) complete the Work.

16. Contractor—The individual or entity with which Owner has contracted for performance
of the Work.

17. Cost of the Work—See Paragraph 13.01 for definition.

18. Drawings—The part of the Contract that graphically shows the scope, extent, and
character of the Work to be performed by Contractor.

19. Effective Date of the Contract—The date, indicated in the Agreement, on which the
Contract becomes effective.

20. Electronic  Document—Any  Project-related  correspondence, attachments to
correspondence, data, documents, drawings, information, or graphics, including but not
limited to Shop Drawings and other Submittals, that are in an electronic or digital format.

21. Electronic Means—Electronic mail (email), upload/download from a secure Project
website, or other communications methods that allow: (a) the transmission or
communication of Electronic Documents; (b) the documentation of transmissions,
including sending and receipt; (c) printing of the transmitted Electronic Document by the

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract. .
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 20f 71



22.
23,

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

20.

30.

31.

recipient; (d) the storage and archiving of the Electronic Document by sender and
recipient; and (e) the use by recipient of the Electronic Document for purposes permitted
by this Contract. Electronic Means does not include the use of text messaging, or of
Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, or similar social media services for transmission of
Electronic Documents.

Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in the Agreement.

Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the
Work but does not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times.

Hazardous Environmental Condition—The presence at the Site of Constituents of Concern
in such quantities or circumstances that may present a danger to persons or property
exposed thereto.

a. The presence at the Site of materials that are necessary for the execution of the Work,
or that are to be incorporated into the Work, and that are controlled and contained
pursuant to industry practices, Laws and Regulations, and the requirements of the
Contract, is not a Hazardous Environmental Condition.

b. The presence of Constituents of Concern that are to be removed or remediated as
part of the Work is not a Hazardous Environmental Condition.

c. The presence of Constituents of Concern as part of the routine, anticipated, and
obvious working conditions at the Site, is not a Hazardous Environmental Condition.

Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, statutes, rules,
regulations, ordinances, codes, and binding decrees, resolutions, and orders of any and
all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts having jurisdiction.

Liens—Charges, security interests, or encumbrances upon Contract-related funds, real
property, or personal property.

Milestone—A principal event in the performance of the Work that the Contract requires
Contractor to achieve by an intermediate completion date, or by a time prior to
Substantial Completion of all the Work.

Notice of Award—The written notice by Owner to a Bidder of Owner’s acceptance of the
Bid.

Notice to Proceed—A written notice by Owner to Contractor fixing the date on which the
Contract Times will commence to run and on which Contractor shall start to perform the
Work.

Owner—The individual or entity with which Contractor has contracted regarding the
Work, and which has agreed to pay Contractor for the performance of the Work, pursuant
to the terms of the Contract.

Progress Schedule—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, describing the
sequence and duration of the activities comprising Contractor’s plan to accomplish the
Work within the Contract Times.

a. Critical Path- a path that connects the interdependent tasks in a project which are
required to be completed for subsequent work to start and for a project to be completed

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers, All rights reserved.
Page 30f71



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

or a path which connects the tasks which take the greatest amount of time for
completion, and which provides an estimate of the duration of the entire project.

Project—The total undertaking to be accomplished for Owner by engineers, contractors,
and others, including planning, study, design, construction, testing, commissioning, and
start-up, and of which the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents is a part.

Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of Engineer assigned to
assist Engineer at the Site. As used herein, the term Resident Project Representative (RPR)
includes any assistants or field staff of Resident Project Representative.

Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are
representative of some portion of the Work and that establish the standards by which
such portion of the Work will be judged.

Schedule of Submittals—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, of required
submittals and the time requirements for Engineer’s review of the submittals.

Schedule of Values—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, allocating
portions of the Contract Price to various portions of the Work and used as the basis for
reviewing Contractor’s Applications for Payment.

Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or
information that are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and
submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work. Shop Drawings, whether
approved or not, are not Drawings and are not Contract Documents.

Site—Lands or areas indicated in the Contract Documents as being furnished by Owner
upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way and easements, and
such other lands or areas furnished by Owner which are designated for the use of
Contractor.

Specifications—The part of the Contract that consists of written requirements for
materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work, and
certain administrative requirements and procedural matters applicable to the Work.

Subcontractor—An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with
any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work.

Submittal—A written or graphic document, prepared by or for Contractor, which the
Contract Documents require Contractor to submit to Engineer, or that is indicated as a
Submittal in the Schedule of Submittals accepted by Engineer. Submittals may include
Shop Drawings and Samples; schedules; product data; Owner-delegated designs;
sustainable design information; information on special procedures; testing plans; results
of tests and evaluations, source quality-control testing and inspections, and field or Site
quality-control testing and inspections; warranties and certifications; Suppliers’
instructions and reports; records of delivery of spare parts and tools; operations and
maintenance data; Project photographic documentation; record documents; and other
such documents required by the Contract Documents. Submittals, whether or not
approved or accepted by Engineer, are not Contract Documents. Change Proposals,
Change Orders, Claims, notices, Applications for Payment, and requests for interpretation
or clarification are not Submittals.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Pagedof71



42. Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has
progressed to the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part
thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the
Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended.
The terms “substantially complete” and “substantially completed” as applied to all or part
of the Work refer to Substantial Completion of such Work.

43. Successful Bidder—The Bidder to which the Owner makes an award of contract.

44. Supplementary Conditions—The part of the Contract that amends or supplements these
General Conditions.

45. Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, or vendor having a direct
contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to
be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or a Subcontractor.

46. Technical Data

a. Those items expressly identified as Technical Data in the Supplementary Conditions,
with respect to either (1) existing subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site, or
existing physical conditions at or adjacent to the Site including existing surface or
subsurface  structures (except Underground Facilities) or (2) Hazardous
Environmental Conditions at the Site.

b. If no such express identifications of Technical Data have been made with respect to
conditions at the Site, then Technical Data is defined, with respect to conditions at
the Site under Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, and 5.06, as the data contained in boring logs,
recorded measurements of subsurface water levels, assessments of the condition of
subsurface facilities, laboratory test results, and other factual, objective information
regarding conditions at the Site that are set forth in any geotechnical, environmental,
or other Site or facilities conditions report prepared for the Project and made
available to Contractor.

c. Information and data regarding the presence or location of Underground Facilities
are not intended to be categorized, identified, or defined as Technical Data, and
instead Underground Facilities are shown or indicated on the Drawings.

47. Underground Facilities—All active or not-in-service underground lines, pipelines,
conduits, ducts, encasements, cables, wires, manholes, vaults, tanks, tunnels, or other
such facilities or systems at the Site, including but not limited to those facilities or systems
that produce, transmit, distribute, or convey telephone or other communications, cable
television, fiber optic transmissions, power, electricity, light, heat, gases, oil, crude oil
products, liquid petroleum products, water, steam, waste, wastewater, storm water,
other liquids or chemicals, or traffic or other control systems. An abandoned facility or
system is not an Underground Facility.

48. Unit Price Work—Work to be paid for on the basis of unit prices.

49. Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof
required to be provided under the Contract Documents. Work includes and is the result
of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce
such construction; furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and equipment

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 50of 71



into such construction; and may include related parts, connections, utilities, and services
such as testing, start-up, and commissioning, all as required by the Contract Documents.

50. Work Change Directive—A written directive to Contractor issued on or after the Effective
Date of the Contract, signed by Owner and recommended by Engineer, ordering an
addition, deletion, or revision in the Work.

1.02  Terminology

A.

The words and terms discussed in Paragraphs 1.02.8, C, D, and E are not defined terms that
require initial capital letters, but, when used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract
Documents, have the indicated meaning.

Intent of Certain Terms or Adjectives: The Contract Documents include the terms “as allowed,”
“as approved,” “as ordered,” “as directed” or terms of like effect or import to authorize an
exercise of professional judgment by Engineer. In addition, the adjectives “reasonable,”
“suitable,” “acceptable,” “proper,” “satisfactory,” or adjectives of like effect or import are
used to describe an action or determination of Engineer as to the Work. It is intended that
such exercise of professional judgment, action, or determination will be solely to evaluate, in
general, the Work for compliance with the information in the Contract Documents and with
the design concept of the Project as a functioning whole as shown or indicated in the Contract
Documents (unless there is a specific statement indicating otherwise). The use of any such
term or adjective is not intended to and shall not be effective to assign to Engineer any duty
or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work, or any duty or authority to
undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of Article 10 or any other provision of the
Contract Documents.

Day: The word “day” means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next
midnight.

Defective: The word “defective,” when modifying the word “Work,” refers to Work that is
unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient in that it:

1. does not conform to the Contract Documents;

2. does not meet the requirements of any applicable inspection, reference standard, test,
or approval referred to in the Contract Documents; or

3. has been damaged prior to Engineer’'s recommendation of final payment (unless
responsibility for the protection thereof has been assumed by Owner at Substantial
Completion in accordance with Paragraph 15.03 or Paragraph 15.04).

Furnish, Install, Perform, Provide

1. The word “furnish,” when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment,
means to supply and deliver said services, materials, or equipment to the Site (or some
other specified location) ready for use or installation and in usable or operable condition.

2. The word “install,” when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment,
means to put into use or place in final position said services, materials, or equipment
complete and ready for intended use.

3. The words “perform” or “provide,” when used in connection with services, materials, or
equipment, means to furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment compiete
and ready for intended use.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 60of 71



4. If the Contract Documents establish an obligation of Contractor with respect to specific
services, materials, or equipment, but do not expressly use any of the four words
“furnish,” “install,” “perform,” or “provide,” then Contractor shall furnish and install said
services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.

F. Contract Price or Contract Times: References to a change in “Contract Price or Contract Times”
or “Contract Times or Contract Price” or similar, indicate that such change applies to
(1) Contract Price, (2) Contract Times, or (3) both Contract Price and Contract Times, as
warranted, even if the term “or both” is not expressed.

G. Unless stated otherwise in the Contract Documents, words or phrases that have a well-known
technical or construction industry or trade meaning are used in the Contract Documents in
accordance with such recognized meaning.

ARTICLE 2—PRELIMINARY MATTERS

2.01  Delivery of Performance and Payment Bonds; Evidence of Insurance

A. Performance and Payment Bonds: When Contractor delivers the signed counterparts of the
Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to Owner the performance bond and
payment bond (if the Contract requires Contractor to furnish such bonds).

B. Evidence of Contractor’s Insurance: When Contractor delivers the signed counterparts of the
Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to Owner, with copies to each additional
insured (as identified in the Contract), the certificates, endorsements, and other evidence of
insurance required to be provided by Contractor in accordance with Article 6, except to the
extent the Supplementary Conditions expressly establish other dates for delivery of specific
insurance policies.

C. Evidence of Owner’s Insurance: After receipt of the signed counterparts of the Agreement and
all required bonds and insurance documentation, Owner shall promptly deliver to Contractor,
with copies to each additional insured (as identified in the Contract), the certificates and other
evidence of insurance required to be provided by Owner under Article 6.

2.02  Copies of Documents

A.  Owner shall furnish to Contractor four printed copies of the Contract (including one fully
signed counterpart of the Agreement), and one copy in electronic portable document format
(PDF). Additional printed copies will be furnished upon request at the cost of reproduction.

B. Owner shall maintain and safeguard at least one original printed record version of the
Contract, including Drawings and Specifications signed and sealed by Engineer and other
design professionals. Owner shall make such original printed record version of the Contract
available to Contractor for review. Owner may delegate the responsibilities under this
provision to Engineer.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 7of 71



2.03  Before Starting Construction

A. Preliminary Schedules: Within 10 days after the Effective Date of the Contract (or as otherwise
required by the Contract Documents) and prior to Notice To Proceed, Contractor shall submit
to Engineer for timely review:

1. a preliminary Progress Schedule indicating the times (numbers of days or dates) for
starting and completing the various stages of the Work, including any Milestones
specified in the Contract, and the related Critical Path;

2. apreliminary Schedule of Submittals; and

3. apreliminary Schedule of Values for all of the Work which includes quantities and prices
of items which when added together equal the Contract Price and subdivides the Work
into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments
during performance of the Work. Such prices will include an appropriate amount of
overhead and profit applicable to each item of Work.

2.04  Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives

A. Before any Work at the Site is started, a conference attended by Owner, Contractor, Engineer,
and others as appropriate will be held to establish a working understanding among the parties
as to the Work, and to discuss the schedules referred to in Paragraph 2.03.A, procedures for
handling Shop Drawings, Samples, and other Submittals, processing Applications for Payment,
electronic or digital transmittals, and maintaining required records. -

B. At this conference Owner and Contractor each shall designate, in writing, a specific individual
to act as its authorized representative with respect to the services and responsibilities under
the Contract. Such individuals shall have the authority to transmit and receive information,
render decisions relative to the Contract, and otherwise act on behalf of each respective
party.

2.05  Acceptance of Schedules

A. At least 10 days before submission of the first and every following Application for Payment a
conference, attended by Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate, will be held to
review the schedules submitted in accordance with Paragraph 2.03.A. No progress payment
will be made to Contractor until acceptable schedules are submitted to Engineer.

1. The Progress Schedule will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides an orderly progression
of the Work to completion within the Contract Times and denoting the Critical Path. Such
acceptance will not impose on Engineer responsibility for the Progress Schedule, for
sequencing, scheduling, or progress of the Work, nor interfere with or relieve Contractor
from Contractor’s full responsibility therefor.

2. Contractor’s Schedule of Submittals will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides a
workable arrangement for reviewing and processing the required submittals.

3. Contractor’s Schedule of Values will be acceptable to Engineer as to form and substance

if it provides a reasonable allocation of the Contract Price to the component parts of the
Work.

4. If a schedule is not acceptable, Contractor will have an additional 10 days to revise and
resubmit the schedule.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 8 of 71



2.06  Electronic Transmittals

A.

Except as otherwise stated elsewhere in the Contract, the Owner, Engineer, and Contractor
may send, and shall accept, Electronic Documents transmitted by Electronic Means.

If the Contract does not establish protocols for Electronic Means, then Owner, Engineer, and
Contractor shall jointly develop such protocols.

Subject to any governing protocols for Electronic Means, when transmitting Electronic
Documents by Electronic Means, the transmitting party makes no representations as to long-
term compatibility, usability, or readability of the Electronic Documents resulting from the
recipient’s use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware
differing from those used in the drafting or transmittal of the Electronic Documents.

ARTICLE 3—CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, REQUIREMENTS, REUSE

3.01 Intent

A.

The Contract Documents are complementary; what is required by one Contract Document is
as binding as if required by all.

It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete Project (or part
thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, if there is a discrepancy between the
electronic versions of the Contract Documents (including any printed copies derived from
such electronic versions) and the printed record version, the printed record version will
govern.

The Contract supersedes prior negotiations, representations, and agreements, whether
written or oral.

Engineer will issue clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents as provided
herein.

Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any
Law or Regulation will be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions will continue to be
valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, which agree that the Contract Documents will
be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable
provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

Nothing in the Contract Documents creates:

1. any contractual relationship between Owner or Engineer and any Subcontractor,
Supplier, or other individual or entity performing or furnishing any of the Work, for the
benefit of such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity; or

2. any obligation on the part of Owner or Engineer to pay or to see to the payment of any
money due any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, except as may
otherwise be required by Laws and Regulations.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 9of 71



3.02  Reference Standards

A. Standards Specifications, Codes, Laws and Regulations

1.

Reference in the Contract Documents to standard specifications, manuals, reference
standards, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or to Laws or
Regulations, whether such reference be specific or by implication, means the standard
specification, manual, reference standard, code, or Laws or Regulations in effect at the
time of opening of Bids (or on the Effective Date of the Contract if there were no Bids),
except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents.

No provision of any such standard specification, manual, reference standard, or code, and
no instruction of a Supplier, will be effective to change the duties or responsibilities of
Owner, Contractor, or Engineer from those set forth in the part of the Contract
Documents prepared by or for Engineer. No such provision or instruction shall be effective
to assigh to Owner or Engineer any duty or authority to supervise or direct the
performance of the Work, or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility
inconsistent with the provisions of the part of the Contract Documents prepared by or for
Engineer.

3.03  Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies

A. Reporting Discrepancies

1.

Contractor’s Verification of Figures and Field Measurements: Before undertaking each
part of the Work, Contractor shall carefully study the Contract Documents, and check and
verify pertinent figures and dimensions therein, particularly with respect to applicable
field measurements. Contractor shall promptly report in writing to Engineer any conflict,
error, ambiguity, or discrepancy that Contractor discovers, or has actual knowledge of,
and shall not proceed with any Work affected thereby until the conflict, error, ambiguity,
or discrepancy is resolved by a clarification or interpretation by Engineer, or by an
amendment or supplement to the Contract issued pursuant to Paragraph 11.01.

Contractor’s Review of Contract Documents: If, before or during the performance of the
Work, Contractor discovers any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy within the
Contract Documents, or between the Contract Documents and (a) any applicable Law or
Regulation, (b) actual field conditions, (c) any standard specification, manual, reference
standard, or code, or (d) any instruction of any Supplier, then Contractor shall promptly
report it to Engineer in writing. Contractor shall not proceed with the Work affected
thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15) until the conflict, error,
ambiguity, or discrepancy is resolved, by a clarification or interpretation by Engineer, or
by an amendment or supplement to the Contract issued pursuant to Paragraph 11.01.

Contractor shall not be liable to Owner or Engineer for failure to report any conflict, error,
ambiguity, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless Contractor had actual
knowledge thereof.

B. Resolving Discrepancies

1

Except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, the provisions
of the part of the Contract Documents prepared by or for Engineer take precedence in

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 10 of 71



resolving any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy between such provisions of the
Contract Documents and:

a. the provisions of any standard specification, manual, reference standard, or code, or
the instruction of any Supplier (whether or not specifically incorporated by reference
as a Contract Document); or

b. the provisions of any Laws or Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work
(unless such an interpretation of the provisions of the Contract Documents would
result in violation of such Law or Regulation).

3.04  Requirements of the Contract Documents

A. During the performance of the Work and until final payment, Contractor and Owner shall
submit to the Engineer in writing all matters in question concerning the requirements of the
Contract Documents (sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—
RFls), or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Contract Documents, as soon as
possible after such matters arise. Engineer will be the initial interpreter of the requirements
of the Contract Documents, and judge of the acceptability of the Work.

B. Engineer will, with reasonable promptness, render a written clarification, interpretation, or
decision on the issue submitted, or initiate an amendment or supplement to the Contract
Documents. Engineer’s written clarification, interpretation, or decision will be final and
binding on Contractor, unless it appeals by submitting a Change Proposal, and on Owner,
unless it appeals by filing a Claim.

C. If a submitted matter in question concerns terms and conditions of the Contract Documents
that do not involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the Work under the Contract
Documents, (2) the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3)
other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will promptly notify Owner and
Contractor in writing that Engineer is unable to provide a decision or interpretation. If Owner
and Contractor are unable to agree on resolution of such a matter in question, either party
may pursue resolution as provided in Article 12.

3.05  Reuse of Documents
A. Contractor and its Subcontractors and Suppliers shall not:

1. have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications, or
other documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of Engineer
or its consultants, including electronic media versions, or reuse any such Drawings,
Specifications, other documents, or copies thereof on extensions of the Project or any
other project without written consent of Owner and Engineer and specific written
verification or adaptation by Engineer; or

2. have or acquire any title or ownership rights in any other Contract Documents, reuse any
such Contract Documents for any purpose without Owner’s express written consent, or
violate any copyrights pertaining to such Contract Documents.

B. The prohibitions of this Paragraph 3.05 will survive final payment, or termination of the
Contract. Nothing herein precludes Contractor from retaining copies of the Contract
Documents for record purposes.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 11 of 71



ARTICLE 4—COMMENCEMENT AND PROGRESS OF THE WORK

4.01  Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed

A. The Contract Times will commence to run on the 30th day after the Effective Date of the

Contract or, if a Notice to Proceed is given, on the day indicated in the Notice to Proceed. A
Notice to Proceed may be given at any time within 30 days after the Effective Date of the
Contract. In no event will the Contract Times commence to run later than the 60th day after
the day of Bid opening or the 30th day after the Effective Date of the Contract, whichever
date is earlier.

4.02  Starting the Work

A.

Contractor shall start to perform the Work on the date when the Contract Times commence
to run. No Work may be done at the Site prior to such date.

4.03  Reference Points

A.

Owner shall provide engineering surveys to establish reference points for construction which
in Engineer’s judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed with the Work.
Contractor shall be responsible for laying out the Work, shall protect and preserve the
established reference points and property monuments, and shall make no changes or
relocations without the prior written approval of Owner. Contractor shall report to Engineer
whenever any reference point or property monument is lost or destroyed or requires
relocation because of necessary changes in grades or locations, and shall be responsible for
the accurate replacement or relocation of such reference points or property monuments by
professionally qualified personnel.

4.04  Progress Schedule

A.

B.

Contractor shall adhere to the Progress Schedule established in accordance with
Paragraph 2.05 as it may be adjusted from time to time as provided below.

1. Contractor shall submit to Engineer for acceptance (to the extent indicated in
Paragraph 2.05) proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will not result in
changing the Contract Times.

2. Proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will change the Contract Times must
be submitted in accordance with the requirements of Article 11.

Contractor shall carry on the Work and adhere to the Progress Schedule during all disputes or
disagreements with Owner. No Work will be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any
disputes or disagreements, or during any appeal process, except as permitted by
Paragraph 16.04, or as Owner and Contractor may otherwise agree in writing.

4,05  Delays in Contractor’s Progress

A,

If Owner, Engineer, or anyone for whom Owner is responsible, delays, disrupts, or interferes
with the performance or progress of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an
equitable adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, as approved by Engineer and
Owner.

Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times for delay,
disruption, or interference caused by or within the control of Contractor. Delay, disruption,

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 12 0f 71



and interference attributable to and within the control of a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be
deemed to be within the control of Contractor.

If Contractor’s performance or progress is delayed, disrupted, or interfered with by
unanticipated causes not the fault of and beyond the control of Owner, Contractor, and those
for which they are responsible, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment
in Contract Times. Such an adjustment will be Contractor’s sole and exclusive remedy for the
delays, disruption, and interference described in this paragraph. Causes of delay, disruption,
or interference that may give rise to an adjustment in Contract Times under this paragraph
include but are not limited to the following:

1. Severe and unavoidable natural catastrophes such as fires, floods, epidemics, and
earthquakes;

2. Abnormal weather conditions;

3. Acts or failures to act of third-party utility owners or other third-party entities (other than
those third-party utility owners or other third-party entities performing other work at or
adjacent to the Site as arranged by or under contract with Owner, as contemplated in
Article 8); and

4. Acts of war or terrorism.

Contractor’s entitlement to an adjustment of Contract Times or Contract Price is limited as
follows:

1. Contractor’s entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned only on
the delay, disruption, or interference adversely affecting an activity on the Critical Path to
completion of the Work, as of the time of the delay, disruption, or interference.

2. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price for any delay,
disruption, or interference if such delay is concurrent with a delay, disruption, or
interference caused by or within the control of Contractor. Such a concurrent delay by
Contractor shall not preclude an adjustment of Contract Times to which Contractor is
otherwise entitled.

3. Adjustments of Contract Times or Contract Price are subject to the provisions of
Article 11.

Each Contractor request or Change Proposal seeking an increase in Contract Times or Contract
Price must be supplemented by supporting data that sets forth in detail the following:

1. The circumstances that form the basis for the requested adjustment;

2. The date upon which each cause of delay, disruption, or interference began to affect the
progress of the Work;

3. The date upon which each cause of delay, disruption, or interference ceased to affect the
progress of the Work;

4. The number of days’ increase in Contract Times claimed as a consequence of each such
cause of delay, disruption, or interference; and

5. The impact on Contract Price, in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 11.07.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 13 of 71



Contractor shall also furnish such additional supporting documentation as Owner or Engineer
may require including, where appropriate, a revised Critical Path progress schedule indicating
all the activities affected by the delay, disruption, or interference, and an explanation of the
effect of the delay, disruption, or interference on the Critical Path to completion of the Work.

F. Delays, disruption, and interference to the performance or progress of the Work resulting
from the existence of a differing subsurface or physical condition, an Underground Facility
that was not shown or indicated by the Contract Documents, or not shown or indicated with
reasonable accuracy, and those resulting from Hazardous Environmental Conditions, are
governed by Article 5, together with the provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E.

G. Paragraph 8.03 addresses delays, disruption, and interference to the performance or progress
of the Work resulting from the performance of certain other work at or adjacent to the Site.

ARTICLE 5—SITE; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS; HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL
CONDITIONS

5.01 Avadilability of Lands

A. Owner shall furnish the Site. Owner shall notify Contractor in writing of any encumbrances or
restrictions not of general application but specifically related to use of the Site with which
Contractor must comply in performing the Work.

B. Upon reasonable written request, Owner shall furnish Contractor with a current statement of
record legal title and legal description of the lands upon which permanent improvements are
to be made and Owner’s interest therein as necessary for giving notice of or filing a mechanic’s
or construction lien against such lands in accordance with applicable Laws and Regulations.

C. Contractor shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for
temporary construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment.

5.02  Use of Site and Other Areas
A. Limitation on Use of Site and Other Areas

1. Contractor shall confine construction equipment, temporary construction facilities, the
storage of materials and equipment, and the operations of workers to the Site, adjacent
areas that Contractor has arranged to use through construction easements or otherwise,
and other adjacent areas permitted by Laws and Regulations, and shall not unreasonably
encumber the Site and such other adjacent areas with construction equipment or other
materials or equipment. Contractor shall assume full responsibility for {a) damage to the
Site; (b) damage to any such other adjacent areas used for Contractor’s operations; (c)
damage to any other adjacent land or areas, or to improvements, structures, utilities, or
similar facilities located at such adjacent lands or areas; and (d) for injuries and losses
sustained by the owners or occupants of any such land or areas; provided that such
damage or injuries result from the performance of the Work or from other actions or
conduct of the Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible.

2. If a damage or injury claim is made by the owner or occupant of any such land or area
because of the performance of the Work, or because of other actions or conduct of the
Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible, Contractor shall (a) take
immediate corrective or remedial action as required by Paragraph 7.13, or otherwise; (b)
promptly attempt to settle the claim as to all parties through negotiations with such

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 14 of 71



B.

owner or occupant, or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute
resolution proceeding, or in a court of competent jurisdiction; and (c) to the fullest extent
permitted by Laws and Regulations, indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer,
and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and
subcontractors of each and any of them, from and against any such claim, and against all
costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers,
architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute
resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any claim or action, legal or equitable,
brought by any such owner or occupant against Owner, Engineer, or any other party
indemnified hereunder to the extent caused directly or indirectly, in whole or in part by,
or based upon, Contractor’s performance of the Work, or because of other actions or
conduct of the Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible.

Removal of Debris During Performance of the Work: During the progress of the Work the
Contractor shall keep the Site and other adjacent areas free from accumulations of waste
materials, rubbish, and other debris. Removal and disposal of such waste materials, rubbish,
and other debris will conform to applicable Laws and Regulations.

Cleaning: Prior to Substantial Completion of the Work Contractor shall clean the Site and the
Work and make it ready for utilization by Owner. At the completion of the Work Contractor
shall remove from the Site and adjacent areas all tools, appliances, construction equipment
and machinery, and surplus materials and shall restore to original condition all property not
designated for alteration by the Contract Documents.

Loading of Structures: Contractor shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be
loaded in any manner that will endanger the structure, nor shall Contractor subject any part
of the Work or adjacent structures or land to stresses or pressures that will endanger them.

5.03  Subsurface and Physical Conditions

A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify:

B.

1. Those reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site
that contain Technical Data;

2. Those drawings of existing physical conditions at or adjacent to the Site, including those
drawings depicting existing surface or subsurface structures at or adjacent to the Site
{except Underground Facilities), that contain Technical Data; and

3. Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.

Underground Facilities: Underground Facilities are shown or indicated on the Drawings,
pursuant to Paragraph 5.05, and not in the drawings referred to in Paragraph 5.03.A.
Information and data regarding the presence or location of Underground Facilities are not
intended to be categorized, identified, or defined as Technical Data.

Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the

Technical Data expressly identified in the Supplementary Conditions with respect to such
reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. If no such
express identification has been made, then Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the
Technical Data as defined in Paragraph 1.01.A.46.b.

Limitations of Other Data and Documents: Except for such reliance on Technical Data,
Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their

EICDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 15 of 71



officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors,
with respect to:

1. the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor’s purposes, including, but
not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and
procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and
programs incident thereto;

2. other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown
or indicated in such drawings;

3. the contents of other Site-related documents made available to Contractor, such as
record drawings from other projects at or adjacent to the Site, or Owner’s archival
documents concerning the Site; or

4. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any Technical Data or any such
other data, interpretations, opinions, or information.

5.04  Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions

A. Notice by Contractor: If Contractor believes that any subsurface or physical condition that is
uncovered or revealed at the Site:

1. is of such a nature as to establish that any Technical Data on which Contractor is entitled
to rely as provided in Paragraph 5.03 is materially inaccurate;

2. is of such a nature as to require a change in the Drawings or Specifications;
3. differs materially from that shown or indicated in the Contract Documents; or

4. is of an unusual nature, and differs materially from conditions ordinarily encountered and
generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract
Documents; '

then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing
the subsurface or physical conditions or performing any Work in connection therewith (except
in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15), notify Owner and Engineer in writing about
such condition. Contractor shall not further disturb such condition or perform any Work in
connection therewith (except with respect to an emergency) until receipt of a written
statement permitting Contractor to do so.

B. Engineer’s Review: After receipt of written notice as required by the preceding paragraph,
Engineer will promptly review the subsurface or physical condition in question; determine
whether it is necessary for Owner to obtain additional exploration or tests with respect to the
condition; conclude whether the condition falls within any one or more of the differing site
condition categories in Paragraph 5.04.A; obtain any pertinent cost or schedule information
from Contractor; prepare recommendations to Owner regarding the Contractor’s resumption
of Work in connection with the subsurface or physical condition in question and the need for
any change in the Drawings or Specifications; and advise Owner in writing of Engineer’s
findings, conclusions, and recommendations.

C.  Owner’s Statement to Contractor Regarding Site Condition: After receipt of Engineer’s written
findings, conclusions, and recommendations, Owner shall issue a written statement to
Contractor (with a copy to Engineer) regarding the subsurface or physical condition in
question, addressing the resumption of Work in connection with such condition, indicating

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 16 of 71



E.

whether any change in the Drawings or Specifications will be made, and adopting or rejecting
Engineer’s written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, in whole or in part.

Early Resumption of Work: If at any time Engineer determines that Work in connection with
the subsurface or physical condition in question may resume prior to completion of Engineer’s
review or Ownet’s issuance of its statement to Contractor, because the condition in question
has been adequately documented, and analyzed on a preliminary basis, then the Engineer
may at its discretion instruct Contractor to resume such Work.

Possible Price and Times Adjustments

1

Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Price or Contract
Times, to the extent that the existence of a differing subsurface or physical condition, or
any related delay, disruption, or interference, causes an increase or decrease in
Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work; subject, however, to
the following:

a. Such condition must fall within any one or more of the categories described in
Paragraph 5.04.A;

b.  With respect to Work that is paid for on a unit price basis, any adjustment in Contract
Price will be subject to the provisions of Paragraph 13.03; and,

c. Contractor’s entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is subject to the
provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E.

Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times
with respect to a subsurface or physical condition if:

a. Contractor knew of the existence of such condition at the time Contractor made a
commitment to Owner with respect to Contract Price and Contract Times by the
submission of a Bid or becoming bound under a negotiated contract, or otherwise;

b. The existence of such condition reasonably could have been discovered or revealed
as a result of any examination, investigation, exploration, test, or study of the Site and
contiguous areas expressly required by the Bidding Requirements or Contract
Documents to be conducted by or for Contractor prior to Contractor’s making such
commitment; or

c. Contractor failed to give the written notice required by Paragraph 5.04.A.

If Owner and Contractor agree regarding Contractor’s entitlement to and the amount or
extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, then any such
adjustment will be set forth in a Change Order.

Contractor may submit a Change Proposal regarding its entitlement to or the amount or
extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, no later than 30 days
after Owner’s issuance of the Owner’s written statement to Contractor regarding the
subsurface or physical condition in question.

Underground Facilities; Hazardous Environmental Conditions: Paragraph 5.05 governs rights
and responsibilities regarding the presence or location of Underground Facilities.
Paragraph 5.06 governs rights and responsibilities regarding Hazardous Environmental
Conditions. The provisions of Paragraphs 5.03 and 5.04 are not applicable to the presence or
location of Underground Facilities, or to Hazardous Environmental Conditions.

EICDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 17 of 71



5.05

Underground Facilities

A. Contractor’s Responsibilities: Unless it is otherwise expressly provided in the Supplementary

Conditions, the cost of all of the following are included in the Contract Price, and Contractor
shall have full responsibility for:

1. reviewing and checking all information and data regarding existing Underground Facilities
at the Site;

2. complying with applicable state and local utility damage prevention Laws and
Regulations;

3. verifying the actual location of those Underground Facilities shown or indicated in the
Contract Documents as being within the area affected by the Work, by exposing such
Underground Facilities during the course of construction;

4. coordination of the Work with the owners (including Owner) of such Underground
Facilities, during construction; and

5. the safety and protection of all existing Underground Facilities at the Site, and repairing
any damage thereto resulting from the Work.

Notice by Contractor: If Contractor believes that an Underground Facility that is uncovered or
revealed at the Site was not shown or indicated on the Drawings, or was not shown or
indicated on the Drawings with reasonable accuracy, then Contractor shall, promptly after
becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing conditions affected thereby or
performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as required by
Paragraph 7.15), notify Owner and Engineer in writing regarding such Underground Facility.

Engineer’s Review: Engineer will:

1. promptly review the Underground Facility and conclude whether such Underground
Facility was not shown or indicated on the Drawings, or was not shown or indicated with
reasonable accuracy;

2. identify and communicate with the owner of the Underground Facility; prepare
recommendations to Owner (and if necessary issue any preliminary instructions to
Contractor) regarding the Contractor’s resumption of Work in connection with the
Underground Facility in question;

3. obtain any pertinent cost or schedule information from Contractor; determine the extent,
if any, to which a change is required in the Drawings or Specifications to reflect and
document the consequences of the existence or location of the Underground Facility; and

4. advise Owner in writing of Engineer’s findings, conclusions, and recommendations.

During such time, Contractor shall be responsible for the safety and protection of such
Underground Facility.

Owner’s Statement to Contractor Regarding Underground Facility: After receipt of Engineer’s
written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, Owner shall issue a written statement
to Contractor (with a copy to Engineer) regarding the Underground Facility in question
addressing the resumption of Work in connection with such Underground Facility, indicating
whether any change in the Drawings or Specifications will be made, and adopting or rejecting
Engineer’s written findings, conclusions, and recommendations in whole or in part.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 18 of 71



E. Early Resumption of Work: If at any time Engineer determines that Work in connection with
the Underground Facility may resume prior to completion of Engineer’s review or Owner’s
issuance of its statement to Contractor, because the Underground Facility in question and
conditions affected by its presence have been adequately documented, and analyzed on a

preliminary basis, then the Engineer may at its discretion instruct Contractor to resume such
Work.

F. Possible Price and Times Adjustments

1.

Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract
Times, to the extent that any existing Underground Facility at the Site that was not shown
or indicated on the Drawings, or was not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy,
or any related delay, disruption, or interference, causes an increase or decrease in
Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work; subject, however, to
the following:

a. With respect to Work that is paid for on a unit price basis, any adjustment in Contract
Price will be subject to the provisions of Paragraph 13.03;

b. Contractor’s entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is subject to the
provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E; and

¢. Contractor gave the notice required in Paragraph 5.05.B.

If Owner and Contractor agree regarding Contractor’s entitlement to and the amount or
extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, then any such
adjustment will be set forth in a Change Order.

Contractor may submit a Change Proposal regarding its entitlement to or the amount or
extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, no later than 30 days
after Owner’s issuance of the Owner’s written statement to Contractor regarding the
Underground Facility in question.

The information and data shown or indicated on the Drawings with respect to existing
Underground Facilities at the Site is based on information and data (a) furnished by the
owners of such Underground Facilities, or by others, (b) obtained from available records,
or (c) gathered in an investigation conducted in accordance with the current edition of
ASCE 38, Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing Subsurface Utility
Data, by the American Society of Civil Engineers. If such information or data is incorrect
or incomplete, Contractor’'s remedies are limited to those set forth in this
Paragraph 5.05.F.

5.06  Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site

A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify:

1.

those reports known to Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions that have
been identified at or adjacent to the Site;

drawings known to Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions that have
been identified at or adjacent to the Site; and

Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page190f 71



B. Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy
of the Technical Data expressly identified in the Supplementary Conditions with respect to
such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. If no
such express identification has been made, then Contractor may rely on the accuracy of the
Technical Data as defined in Paragraph 1.01.A.46.b. Except for such reliance on Technical
Data, Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of
their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or
subcontractors, with respect to:

1. the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor’s purposes, including, but
not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures
of construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs
incident thereto;

2. other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown
or indicated in such drawings; or

3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any Technical Data or any such
other data, interpretations, opinions or information.

C. Contractor shall not be responsible for removing or remediating any Hazardous
Environmental Condition encountered, uncovered, or revealed at the Site unless such
removal or remediation is expressly identified in the Contract Documents to be within the
scope of the Work.

D. Contractor shall be responsible for controlling, containing, and duly removing all Constituents
of Concern brought to the Site by Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or anyone else for
whom Contractor is responsible, and for any associated costs; and for the costs of removing
and remediating any Hazardous Environmental Condition created by the presence of any such
Constituents of Concern.

E. If Contractor encounters, uncovers, or reveals a Hazardous Environmental Condition whose
removal or remediation is not expressly identified in the Contract Documents as being within
the scope of the Work, or if Contractor or anyone for whom Contractor is responsible creates
a Hazardous Environmental Condition, then Contractor shall immediately: (1) secure or
otherwise isolate such condition; (2) stop all Work in connection with such condition and in
any area affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15); and (3)
notify Owner and Engineer (and promptly thereafter confirm such notice in writing). Owner
shall promptly consult with Engineer concerning the necessity for Owner to retain a qualified
expert to evaluate such condition or take corrective action, if any. Promptly after consulting
with Engineer, Owner shall take such actions as are necessary to permit Owner to timely
obtain required permits and provide Contractor the written notice required by
Paragraph 5.06.F. If Contractor or anyone for whom Contractor is responsible created the
Hazardous Environmental Condition in question, then Owner may remove and remediate the
Hazardous Environmental Condition, and impose a set-off against payments to account for
the associated costs.

F.  Contractor shall not resume Work in connection with such Hazardous Environmental
Condition or in any affected area until after Owner has obtained any required permits related
thereto, and delivered written notice to Contractor either (1) specifying that such condition

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 20 of 71



and any affected area is or has been rendered safe for the resumption of Work, or (2)
specifying any special conditions under which such Work may be resumed safely.

If Owner and Contractor cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any,
of any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, as a result of such Work stoppage, such
special conditions under which Work is agreed to be resumed by Contractor, or any costs or
expenses incurred in response to the Hazardous Environmental Condition, then within 30
days of Owner’s written notice regarding the resumption of Work, Contractor may submit a
Change Proposal, or Owner may impose a set-off. Entitlement to any such adjustment is
subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D, 4.05.E, 11.07, and 11.08.

If, after receipt of such written notice, Contractor does not agree to resume such Work based
on a reasonable belief it is unsafe, or does not agree to resume such Work under such special
conditions, then Owner may order the portion of the Work that is in the area affected by such
condition to be deleted from the Work, following the contractual change procedures in
Article 11. Owner may have such deleted portion of the Work performed by Owner’s own
forces or others in accordance with Article 8.

To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold
harmless Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members,
partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, from
and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court, arbitration,
or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardous Environmental
Condition, provided that such Hazardous Environmental Condition (1) was not shown or
indicated in the Drawings, Specifications, or other Contract Documents, identified as
Technical Data entitled to limited reliance pursuant to Paragraph 5.06.B, or identified in the
Contract Documents to be included within the scope of the Work, and (2) was not created by
Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 5.06.1
obligates Owner to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of
that individual’s or entity’s own negligence.

To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold
harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees,
agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, from and against all claims,
costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers,
architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute
resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the failure to control, contain, or remove a
Constituent of Concern brought to the Site by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor
is responsible, or to a Hazardous Environmental Condition created by Contractor or by anyone
for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 5.06.) obligates Contractor to
indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual’s or
entity’s own negligence.

The provisions of Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, and 5.05 do not apply to the presence of Constituents
of Concern or to a Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 21 of 71



ARTICLE 6—BONDS AND INSURANCE

6.01

6.02

Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds

A.

B.

Contractor shall furnish a performance bond and a payment bond, each in an amount at least
equal to the Contract Price, as security for the faithful performance and payment of
Contractor’s obligations under the Contract. These bonds must remain in effect until one year
after the date when final payment becomes due or until completion of the correction period
specified in Paragraph 15.08, whichever is later, except as provided otherwise by Laws or
Regulations, the terms of a prescribed bond form, the Supplementary Conditions, or other
provisions of the Contract.

Contractor shall also furnish such other bonds (if any) as are required by the Supplementary
Conditions or other provisions of the Contract.

All bonds must be in the form included in the Bidding Documents or otherwise specified by
Owner prior to execution of the Contract, except as provided otherwise by Laws or
Regulations, and must be issued and signed by a surety named in “Companies Holding
Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable
Reinsuring Companies” as published in Department Circular 570 (as amended and
supplemented) by the Bureau of the Fiscal Service, U.S. Department of the Treasury. A bond
signed by an agent or attorney-in-fact must be accompanied by a certified copy of that
individual’s authority to bind the surety. The evidence of authority must show that it is
effective on the date the agent or attorney-in-fact signed the accompanying bond.

Contractor shall obtain the required bonds from surety companies that are duly licensed or
authorized, in the state or jurisdiction in which the Project is located, to issue bonds in the
required amounts.

If the surety on a bond furnished by Contractor is declared bankrupt or becomes insolvent, or
the surety ceases to meet the requirements above, then Contractor shall promptly notify
Owner and Engineer in writing and shall, within 20 days after the event giving rise to such
notification, provide another bond and surety, both of which must comply with the bond and
surety requirements above.

If Contractor has failed to obtain a required bond, Owner may exclude the Contractor from
the Site and exercise Owner’s termination rights under Article 16.

Upon request to Owner from any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or entity claiming
to have furnished labor, services, materials, or equipment used in the performance of the
Work, Owner shall provide a copy of the payment bond to such person or entity.

Upon request to Contractor from any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or entity
claiming to have furnished labor, services, materials, or equipment used in the performance
of the Work, Contractor shall provide a copy of the payment bond to such person or entity.

Insurance—General Provisions

A. Owner and Contractor shall obtain and maintain insurance as required in this article and in

the Supplementary Conditions.

All insurance required by the Contract to be purchased and maintained by Owner or
Contractor shall be obtained from insurance companies that are duly licensed or authorized
in the state or jurisdiction in which the Project is located to issue insurance policies for the

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 22 of 71



required limits and coverages. Unless a different standard is indicated in the Supplementary
Conditions, all companies that provide insurance policies required under this Contract shall
have an A.M. Best rating of A-VIl or better.

Alternative forms of insurance coverage, including but not limited to self-insurance and
“Occupational Accident and Excess Employer’s Indemnity Policies,” are not sufficient to meet
the insurance requirements of this Contract, unless expressly allowed in the Supplementary
Conditions.

Contractor shall deliver to Owner, with copies to each additional insured identified in the
Contract, certificates of insurance and endorsements establishing that Contractor has
obtained and is maintaining the policies and coverages required by the Contract. Upon
request by Owner or any other insured, Contractor shall also furnish other evidence of such
required insurance, including but not limited to copies of policies, documentation of
applicable self-insured retentions (if allowed) and deductibles, full disclosure of all relevant
exclusions, and evidence of insurance required to be purchased and maintained by
Subcontractors or Suppliers. In any documentation furnished under this provision, Contractor,
Subcontractors, and Suppliers may block out (redact) (1) any confidential premium or pricing
information and (2) any wording specific to a project or jurisdiction other than those
applicable to this Contract.

Owner shall deliver to Contractor, with copies to each additional insured identified in the
Contract, certificates of insurance and endorsements establishing that Owner has obtained
and is maintaining the policies and coverages required of Owner by the Contract (if any). Upon
request by Contractor or any other insured, Owner shall also provide other evidence of such
required insurance (if any), including but not limited to copies of policies, documentation of
applicable self-insured retentions (if allowed) and deductibles, and full disclosure of all
relevant exclusions. In any documentation furnished under this provision, Owner may block
out (redact) (1) any confidential premium or pricing information and (2) any wording specific
to a project or jurisdiction other than those relevant to this Contract.

Failure of Owner or Contractor to demand such certificates or other evidence of the other
party’s full compliance with these insurance requirements, or failure of Owner or Contractor
to identify a deficiency in compliance from the evidence provided, will not be construed as a
waiver of the other party’s obligation to obtain and maintain such insurance.

In addition to the liability insurance required to be provided by Contractor, the Owner, at
Owner’s option, may purchase and maintain Owner’s own liability insurance. Owner’s liability
policies, if any, operate separately and independently from policies required to be provided
by Contractor, and Contractor cannot rely upon Owner’s liability policies for any of
Contractor’s obligations to the Owner, Engineer, or third parties.

Contractor shall require:

1. Subcontractors to purchase and maintain worker’s compensation, commercial general
liability, and other insurance that is appropriate for their participation in the Project, and
to name as additional insureds Owner and Engineer (and any other individuals or entities
identified in the Supplementary Conditions as additional insureds on Contractor’s liability
policies) on each Subcontractor’s commercial general liability insurance policy; and

2. Suppliers to purchase and maintain insurance that is appropriate for their participation in
the Project.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 23 of 71



6.03

I If either party does not purchase or maintain the insurance required of such party by the
Contract, such party shall notify the other party in writing of such failure to purchase prior to
the start of the Work, or of such failure to maintain prior to any change in the required
coverage.

J. If Contractor has failed to obtain and maintain required insurance, Contractor’s entitlement
to enter or remain at the Site will end immediately, and Owner may impose an appropriate
set-off against payment for any associated costs (including but not limited to the cost of
purchasing necessary insurance coverage), and exercise Owner’s termination rights under
Article 16.

K. Without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if a party has failed to obtain required
insurance, the other party may elect (but is in no way obligated) to obtain equivalent
insurance to protect such other party’s interests at the expense of the party who was required
to provide such coverage, and the Contract Price will be adjusted accordingly.

L. Owner does not represent that insurance coverage and limits established in this Contract
necessarily will be adequate to protect Contractor or Contractor’s interests. Contractor is
responsible for determining whether such coverage and limits are adequate to protect its
interests, and for obtaining and maintaining any additional insurance that Contractor deems
necessary.

M. The insurance and insurance limits required herein will not be deemed as a limitation on
Contractor’s liability, or that of its Subcontractors or Suppliers, under the indemnities granted
to Owner and other individuals and entities in the Contract or otherwise.

N. All the policies of insurance required to be purchased and maintained under this Contract will
contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled, or
renewal refused, until at least 10 days prior written notice has been given to the purchasing
policyholder. Within three days of receipt of any such written notice, the purchasing
policyholder shall provide a copy of the notice to each other insured and Engineer.

Contractor’s Insurance

A. Required Insurance: Contractor shall purchase and maintain Worker’'s Compensation,
Commercial General Liability, and other insurance pursuant to the specific requirements of
the Supplementary Conditions.

B. General Provisions: The policies of insurance required by this Paragraph 6.03 as supplemented
must:

1. include at least the specific coverages required;

2. be written for not less than the limits provided, or those required by Laws or Regulations,
whichever is greater;

3. remain in effect at least until the Work is complete (as set forth in Paragraph 15.06.D),
and longer if expressly required elsewhere in this Contract, and at all times thereafter
when Contractor may be correcting, removing, or replacing defective Work as a warranty
or correction obligation, or otherwise, or returning to the Site to conduct other tasks
arising from the Contract;

4. apply with respect to the performance of the Work, whether such performance is by
Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier, or by anyone directly or indirectly employed

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 24 of 71



by any of them to perform any of the Work, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may
be liable; and

5. include all necessary endorsements to support the stated requirements.

C. Additional Insureds: The Contractor's commercial general liability, automobile liability,
employer’s liability, umbrella or excess, pollution liability, and unmanned aerial vehicle
liability policies, if required by this Contract, must:

1. include and list as additional insureds Owner and Engineer, and any individuals or entities
identified as additional insureds in the Supplementary Conditions;

2. include coverage for the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees,
and consultants of all such additional insureds;

3. afford primary coverage to these additional insureds for all claims covered thereby
(including as applicable those arising from both ongoing and completed operations);

4. not seek contribution from insurance maintained by the additional insured; and

5. as to commercial general liability insurance, apply to additional insureds with respect to
liability caused in whole or in part by Contractor’s acts or omissions, or the acts and
omissions of those working on Contractor’s behalf, in the performance of Contractor’s
operations.

6.04  Builder’s Risk and Other Property Insurance

A. Builder’s Risk: Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Contractor shall
purchase and maintain builder’s risk insurance upon the Work on a completed value basis, in
the amount of the Work’s full insurable replacement cost (subject to such deductible amounts
as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws and Regulations).
The specific requirements applicable to the builder’s risk insurance are set forth in the
Supplementary Conditions.

B. Property Insurance for Facilities of Owner Where Work Will Occur: Owner is responsible for
obtaining and maintaining property insurance covering each existing structure, building, or
facility in which any part of the Work will occur, or to which any part of the Work will attach
or be adjoined. Such property insurance will be written on a special perils (all-risk) form, on a
replacement cost basis, providing coverage consistent with that required for the builder’s risk
insurance, and will be maintained until the Work is complete, as set forth in
Paragraph 15.06.D.

C.  Property Insurance for Substantially Complete Facilities: Promptly after Substantial
Completion, and before actual occupancy or use of the substantially completed Work, Owner
will obtain property insurance for such substantially completed Work, and maintain such
property insurance at least until the Work is complete, as set forth in Paragraph 15.06.D. Such
property insurance will be written on a special perils (all-risk) form, on a replacement cost
basis, and provide coverage consistent with that required for the builder’s risk insurance. The
builder’s risk insurance may terminate upon written confirmation of Owner’s procurement of
such property insurance.

D. Partial Occupancy or Use by Owner: If Owner will occupy or use a portion or portions of the
Work prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, as provided in Paragraph 15.04, then
Owner (directly, if it is the purchaser of the builder’s risk policy, or through Contractor) will

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 25 of 71



provide advance notice of such occupancy or use to the builder’s risk insurer, and obtain an
endorsement consenting to the continuation of coverage prior to commencing such partial
occupancy or use.

E. Insurance of Other Property; Additional Insurance: If the express insurance provisions of the
Contract do not require or address the insurance of a property item or interest, then the entity
or individual owning such property item will be responsible for insuring it. If Contractor elects
to obtain other special insurance to be included in or supplement the builder’s risk or property
insurance policies provided under this Paragraph 6.04, it may do so at Contractor’s expense.

6.05  Property Losses; Subrogation

A. The builder's risk insurance policy purchased and maintained in accordance with
Paragraph 6.04 (or an installation floater policy if authorized by the Supplementary
Conditions), will contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or
damage the insurer will have no rights of recovery against any insureds thereunder, or against
Engineer or its consultants, or their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents,
consultants, or subcontractors.

1. Owner and Contractor waive all rights against each other and the respective officers,
directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of
each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, or resulting
from any of the perils, risks, or causes of loss covered by such policies and any other
property insurance applicable to the Work; and, in addition, waive all such rights against
Engineer, its consultants, all individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary
Conditions as builder’s risk or installation floater insureds, and the officers, directors,
members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any
of them, under such policies for losses and damages so caused.

2. None of the above waivers extends to the rights that any party making such waiver may
have to the proceeds of insurance held by Owner or Contractor as trustee or fiduciary, or
otherwise payable under any policy so issued.

B. Any property insurance policy maintained by Owner covering any loss, damage, or
consequential loss to Owner’s existing structures, buildings, or facilities in which any part of
the Work will occur, or to which any part of the Work will attach or adjoin; to adjacent
structures, buildings, or facilities of Owner; or to part or all of the completed or substantially
completed Work, during partial occupancy or use pursuant to Paragraph 15.04, after
Substantial Completion pursuant to Paragraph 15.03, or after final payment pursuant to
Paragraph 15.06, will contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss
or damage the insurer will have no rights of recovery against any insureds thereunder, or
against Contractor, Subcontractors, or Engineer, or the officers, directors, members, partners,
employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors of each and any of them, and that the
insured is allowed to waive the insurer’s rights of subrogation in a written contract executed
prior to the loss, damage, or consequential loss.

1. Owner waives all rights against Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the
officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and
subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out
of, or resulting from fire or any of the perils, risks, or causes of loss covered by such
policies.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 26 of 71



C. The waivers in this Paragraph 6.05 include the waiver of rights due to business interruption,
loss of use, or other consequential loss extending beyond direct physical loss or damage to
Owner’s property or the Work caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other insured
peril, risk, or cause of loss.

D. Contractor shall be responsible for assuring that each Subcontract contains provisions
whereby the Subcontractor waives all rights against Owner, Contractor, all individuals or
entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as insureds, the Engineer and its
consultants, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants,
and subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out
of, relating to, or resulting from fire or other peril, risk, or cause of loss covered by builder’s
risk insurance, installation floater, and any other property insurance applicable to the Work.

6.06  Receipt and Application of Property Insurance Proceeds

A. Any insured loss under the builder’s risk and other policies of property insurance required by
Paragraph 6.04 will be adjusted and settled with the named insured that purchased the policy.
Such named insured shall act as fiduciary for the other insureds, and give notice to such other
insureds that adjustment and settlement of a claim is in progress. Any other insured may state
its position regarding a claim for insured loss in writing within 15 days after notice of such
claim.

B. Proceeds for such insured losses may be made payable by the insurer either jointly to multiple
insureds, or to the named insured that purchased the policy in its own right and as fiduciary
for other insureds, subject to the requirements of any applicable mortgage clause. A named
insured receiving insurance proceeds under the builder’s risk and other policies of insurance
required by Paragraph 6.04 shall maintain such proceeds in a segregated account, and
distribute such proceeds in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may
reach, or as otherwise required under the dispute resolution provisions of this Contract or
applicable Laws and Regulations.

C. If no other special agreement is reached, Contractor shall repair or replace the damaged
Work, using allocated insurance proceeds.

ARTICLE 7—CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

7.01  Contractor’s Means and Methods of Construction

A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and
procedures of construction.

B. If the Contract Documents note, or Contractor determines, that professional engineering or
other design services are needed to carry out Contractor’s responsibilities for construction
means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures, or for Site safety, then Contractor
shall cause such services to be provided by a properly licensed design professional, at
Contractor’s expense. Such services are not Owner-delegated professional design services
under this Contract, and neither Owner nor Engineer has any responsibility with respect to
(1) Contractor’s determination of the need for such services, (2) the qualifications or licensing
of the design professionals retained or employed by Contractor, (3) the performance of such
services, or (4) any errors, omissions, or defects in such services.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 27 of 71



7.02

7.03

7.04

C. Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the Work, carefully study and compare the

various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as the information
furnished by the Owner, shall take field measurements of any existing conditions related to
that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These
obligations are for the purpose of facilitating construction by the Contractor and are not for
the purpose of discovering errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents;
however, the Contractor shall promptly report to the Engineer, as a Request For Information,
any errors, inconsistencies, or omissions discovered by or made known to the Contractor. It
is recognized that the Contractor’s review is made in the Contractor’s capacity as a contractor
and not as a licensed design professional, unless otherwise specifically noted in the Contract
Documents. The Contractor shall reasonably satisfy himself or herself as to the accuracy of all
visible grades, elevations, dimensions, materials, connections, conditions, and locations, but
shall also be entitled to rely on the reports, specifications provided to Contractor as part of
the Contract Documents. In all cases of interconnection of its Work with existing or other
work or conditions, Contractor shall review at the site all dimensions relating to such existing
or other work and report same to the Owner and Engineer; provided however Contractor
shall not be responsible or liable for the work of others. Any errors due to the Contractors'
failure to so review all such grades, elevations, dimensions, materials, connections,
conditions, or locations shall be promptly rectified by the Contractor without any additional
cost to the Owner.

Supervision and Superintendence

A.

Contractor shall supervise, inspect, and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting
such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform
the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

At all times during the progress of the Work, Contractor shall assign a competent resident
superintendent to the project site and who will not be replaced without written notice to
Owner and Engineer except under extraordinary circumstances.

Labor; Working Hours

A.

Contractor shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel to survey and lay out the
Work and perform construction as required by the Contract Documents. Contractor shall
maintain good discipline and order at the Site.

Contractor shall be fully responsible to Owner and Engineer for all acts and omissions of
Contractor’s employees; of Suppliers and Subcontractors, and their employees; and of any
other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work, just as Contractor is
responsible for Contractor’s own acts and omissions.

Except as otherwise required for the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property
at the Site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, all
Work at the Site will be performed during regular working hours, Monday through Friday.
Contractor will not perform Work on a Saturday, Sunday, or any legal holiday. Contractor may
perform Work outside regular working hours or on Saturdays, Sundays, or legal holidays only
with Owner’s written consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

Services, Materials, and Equipment

A.

Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall provide and assume
full responsibility for all services, materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 28 of 71



equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water,
sanitary facilities, temporary facilities, and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the
performance, testing, start up, and completion of the Work, whether or not such items are
specifically called for in the Contract Documents.

B. All materials and equipment incorporated into the Work must be new and of good quality,
except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. All special warranties and
guarantees required by the Specifications will expressly run to the benefit of Owner. If
required by Engineer, Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of
required tests) as to the source, kind, and quality of materials and equipment.

C. All materials and equipment must be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected,
protected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with instructions of the applicable
Supplier, except as otherwise may be provided in the Contract Documents.

7.05  “Or Equals”

A. Contractor’s Request; Governing Criteria: Whenever an item of equipment or material is
specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the names of one or more
proprietary items or specific Suppliers, the Contract Price has been based upon Contractor
furnishing such item as specified. The specification or description of such an item is intended
to establish the type, function, appearance, and quality required. Unless the specification or
description contains or is followed by words reading that no like, equivalent, or “or equal”
item is permitted, Contractor may request that Engineer authorize the use of other items of
equipment or matetrial, or items from other proposed Suppliers, under the circumstances
described below.

1. If Engineer in its sole discretion determines that an item of equipment or material
proposed by Contractor is functionally equal to that named and sufficiently similar so that
no change in related Work will be required, Engineer will deem it an “or equal” item. For
the purposes of this paragraph, a proposed item of equipment or material will be
considered functionally equal to an item so named if:

a. in the exercise of reasonable judgment Engineer determines that the proposed item:

1) is at least equal in materials of construction, quality, durability, appearance,
strength, and design characteristics;

2) will reliably perform at least equally well the function and achieve the results
imposed by the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole;

3) has a proven record of performance and availability of responsive service; and
4) is not objectionable to Owner.

b. Contractor certifies that, if the proposed item is approved and incorporated into the
Work:

1) there will be no increase in cost to the Owner or increase in Contract Times; and

2) the item will conform substantially to the detailed requirements of the item
named in the Contract Documents.

B. Contractor’s Expense: Contractor shall provide all data in support of any proposed “or equal”
item at Contractor’s expense.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 29 of 71



C. Engineer’s Evaluation and Determination: Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time to
evaluate each “or-equal” request. Engineer may require Contractor to furnish additional data
about the proposed “or-equal” item. Engineer will be the sole judge of acceptability. No “or-
equal” item will be ordered, furnished, installed, or utilized until Engineer’s review is complete
and Engineer determines that the proposed item is an “or-equal,” which will be evidenced by
an approved Shop Drawing or other written communication. Engineer will advise Contractor
in writing of any negative determination.

D. Effect of Engineer’s Determination: Neither approval nor denial of an “or-equal” request will
result in any change in Contract Price. The Engineer’s denial of an “or-equal” request will be
final and binding, and may not be reversed through an appeal under any provision of the
Contract.

E. Treatment as a Substitution Request: If Engineer determines that an item of equipment or
material proposed by Contractor does not qualify as an “or-equal” item, Contractor may
request that Engineer consider the item a proposed substitute pursuant to Paragraph 7.06.

7.06  Substitutes

A. Contractor’s Request; Governing Criteria: Unless the specification or description of an item of
equipment or material required to be furnished under the Contract Documents contains or is
followed by words reading that no substitution is permitted, Contractor may request that
Engineer authorize the use of other items of equipment or material under the circumstances
described below. To the extent possible such requests must be made before commencement
of related construction at the Site.

1. Contractor shall submit sufficient information as provided below to allow Engineer to
determine if the item of material or equipment proposed is functionally equivalent to that
named and an acceptable substitute therefor. Engineer will not accept requests for
review of proposed substitute items of equipment or material from anyone other than
Contractor.

2. The requirements for review by Engineer will be as set forth in Paragraph 7.06.B, as
supplemented by the Specifications, and as Engineer may decide is appropriate under the
circumstances.

3. Contractor shall make written application to Engineer for review of a proposed substitute
item of equipment or material that Contractor seeks to furnish or use. The application:

a. will certify that the proposed substitute item will:

1) perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the
general design;

2) be similar in substance to the item specified; and
3) be suited to the same use as the item specified.
b. will state:

1) the extent, if any, to which the use of the proposed substitute item will
necessitate a change in Contract Times;

2) whether use of the proposed substitute item in the Work will require a change in
any of the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 30 of 71



7.07

with Owner for other work on the Project) to adapt the design to the proposed
substitute item; and

3) whether incorporation or use of the proposed substitute item in connection with
the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty.

c.  will identify:
1) all variations of the proposed substitute item from the item specified; and
2) available engineering, sales, maintenance, repair, and replacement services.

d. will contain an itemized estimate of all costs or credits that will result directly or
indirectly from use of such substitute item, including but not limited to changes in
Contract Price, shared savings, costs of redesign, and claims of other contractors
affected by any resulting change.

B. Engineer’s Evaluation and Determination: Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time to

evaluate each substitute request, and to obtain comments and direction from Owner.
Engineer may require Contractor to furnish additional data about the proposed substitute
item. Engineer will be the sole judge of acceptability. No substitute will be ordered, furnished,
installed, or utilized until Engineer’s review is complete and Engineer determines that the
proposed item is an acceptable substitute. Engineer’s determination will be evidenced by a
Field Order or a proposed Change Order accounting for the substitution itself and all related
impacts, including changes in Contract Price or Contract Times. Engmeer will advise
Contractor in writing of any negative determination.

Special Guarantee: Owner may require Contractor to furnish at Contractor’s expense a special
performance guarantee or other surety with respect to any substitute.

Reimbursement of Engineer’s Cost: Engineer will record Engineer’s costs in evaluating a
substitute proposed or submitted by Contractor. Whether or not Engineer approves a
substitute so proposed or submitted by Contractor, Contractor shall reimburse Owner for the
reasonable charges of Engineer for evaluating each such proposed substitute. Contractor shall
also reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for making changes in the
Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner) resulting
from the acceptance of each proposed substitute.

Contractor’s Expense: Contractor shall provide all data in support of any proposed substitute
at Contractor’s expense.

Effect of Engineer’s Determination: If Engineer approves the substitution request, Contractor
shall execute the proposed Change Order and proceed with the substitution. The Engineer’s
denial of a substitution request will be final and binding, and may not be reversed through an
appeal under any provision of the Contract. Contractor may challenge the scope of
reimbursement costs imposed under Paragraph 7.06.D, by timely submittal of a Change
Proposal.

Concerning Subcontractors and Suppliers

A. Contractor may retain Subcontractors and Suppliers for the performance of parts of the Work.

Such Subcontractors and Suppliers must be acceptable to Owner. The Contractor’s retention
of a Subcontractor or Supplier for the performance of parts of the Work will not relieve

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Saciety of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 31 0of 71



Contractor’s obligation to Owner to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the
Contract Documents.

Contractor shall retain specific Subcontractors and Suppliers for the performance of
designated parts of the Work if required by the Contract to do so.

Subsequent to the submittal of Contractor’s Bid or final negotiation of the terms of the
Contract, Owner may not require Contractor to retain any Subcontractor or Supplier to furnish
or perform any of the Work against which Contractor has reasonable objection.

Prior to entry into any binding subcontract or purchase order, Contractor shall submit to
Owner the identity of the proposed Subcontractor or Supplier (unless Owner has already
deemed such proposed Subcontractor or Supplier acceptable during the bidding process or
otherwise). Such proposed Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed acceptable to Owner
unless Owner raises a substantive, reasonable objection within 5 days.

Owner may require the replacement of any Subcontractor or Supplier. Owner also may
require Contractor to retain specific replacements; provided, however, that Owner may not
require a replacement to which Contractor has a reasonable objection. If Contractor has
submitted the identity of certain Subcontractors or Suppliers for acceptance by Owner, and
Owner has accepted it {either in writing or by failing to make written objection thereto), then
Owner may subsequently revoke the acceptance of any such Subcontractor or Supplier so
identified solely on the basis of substantive, reasonable objection after due investigation.
Contractor shall submit an acceptable replacement for the rejected Subcontractor or
Supplier.

If Owner requires the replacement of any Subcontractor or Supplier retained by Contractor
to perform any part of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in
Contract Price or Contract Times, with respect to the replacement; and Contractor shall
initiate a Change Proposal for such adjustment within 30 days of Owner’s requirement of
replacement.

No acceptance by Owner of any such Subcontractor or Supplier, whether initially or as a
replacement, will constitute a waiver of the right of Owner to the completion of the Work in
accordance with the Contract Documents.

On a monthly basis, Contractor shall submit to Engineer a complete list of all Subcontractors
and Suppliers having a direct contract with Contractor, and of all other Subcontractors and
Suppliers known to Contractor at the time of submittal.

Contractor shall be solely responsible for scheduling and coordinating the work of
Subcontractors and Suppliers.

The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings do not
control Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or Suppliers, or in delineating
the Work to be performed by any specific trade.

All Work performed for Contractor by a Subcontractor or Supplier must be pursuant to an
appropriate contractual agreement that specifically binds the Subcontractor or Supplier to
the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract for the benefit of Owner and Engineer.

Owner may furnish to any Subcontractor or Supplier, to the extent practicable, information
about amounts paid to Contractor for Work performed for Contractor by the Subcontractor
or Supplier.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 32 of 71



M. Contractor shall restrict all Subcontractors and Suppliers from communicating with Engineer
or Owner, except through Contractor or in case of an emergency, or as otherwise expressly
allowed in this Contract.

7.08  Patent Fees and Royalties

A. Contractor shall pay all license fees and royalties and assume all costs incident to the use in
the performance of the Work or the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design,
process, product, or device which is the subject of patent rights or copyrights held by others.
If an invention, design, process, product, or device is specified in the Contract Documents for
use in the performance of the Work and if, to the actual knowledge of Owner or Engineer, its
use is subject to patent rights or copyrights calling for the payment of any license fee or
royalty to others, the existence of such rights will be disclosed in the Contract Documents.

B. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold
harmless Contractor, and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents,
consultants, and subcontractors, from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages
(including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other
professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or
relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the
performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any invention,
design, process, product, or device specified in the Contract Documents, but not identified as
being subject to payment of any license fee or royalty to others required by patent rights or
copyrights.

C. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold
harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees,
agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them, from and against all claims,
costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers,
architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute
resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights
incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the
Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device not specified in the Contract
Documents.

7.09 Permits

A. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall obtain and pay for all
construction permits, licenses, and certificates of occupancy. Owner shall assist Contractor,
when necessary, in obtaining such permits and licenses. Contractor shall pay all governmental
charges and inspection fees necessary for the prosecution of the Work which are applicable
at the time of the submission of Contractor’s Bid (or when Contractor became bound under a
negotiated contract). Owner shall pay all charges of utility owners for connections for
providing permanent service to the Work.

7.10 Taxes

A. Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes required to be paid by
Contractor in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are
applicable during the performance of the Work.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 33 of 71



7.11  Laws and Regulations

A. Contractor shall give all notices required by and shall comply with all Laws and Regulations
applicable to the performance of the Work. Neither Owner nor Engineer shall be responsible
for monitoring Contractor’s compliance with any Laws or Regulations.

B. If Contractor performs any Work or takes any other action knowing or having reason to know
that it is contrary to Laws or Regulations, Contractor shall bear all resulting costs and losses,
and shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors,
members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of
them, from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all
fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or
arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such Work or other
action. It is not Contractor’s responsibility to make certain that the Work described in the
Contract Documents is in accordance with Laws and Regulations, but this does not relieve
Contractor of its obligations under Paragraph 3.03.

C. Owner or Contractor may give written notice to the other party of any changes after the
submission of Contractor’s Bid (or after the date when Contractor became bound under a
negotiated contract) in Laws or Regulations having an effect on the cost or time of
performance of the Work, including but not limited to changes in Laws or Regulations having
an effect on procuring permits and on sales, use, value-added, consumption, and other similar
taxes. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or
extent, if any, of any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times resulting from such
changes, then within 30 days of such written notice Contractor may submit a Change
Proposal, or Owner may initiate a Claim.

7.12  Record Documents

A. Contractor shall maintain in a safe place at the Site one printed record copy of all Drawings,
Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, Schedules,
Logs, written interpretations and clarifications, and approved Shop Drawings. Contractor shall
keep such record documents in good order and annotate them to show changes made during
construction. These record documents, together with all approved Samples, will be available
to Engineer for reference. Upon completion of the Work, Contractor shall deliver these record
documents to Engineer.

7.13  Safety and Protection

A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety
precautions and programs in connection with the Work. Such responsibility does not relieve
Subcontractors of their responsibility for the safety of persons or property in the performance
of their work, nor for compliance with applicable safety Laws and Regulations.

B. Contractor shall designate a qualified and experienced safety representative whose duties
and responsibilities are the prevention of Work-related accidents and the maintenance and
supervision of safety precautions and programs.

C. Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the
necessary protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to:

1. all persons on the Site or who may be affected by the Work;

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 34 of 71



7.14

2. all the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage
on or off the Site; and

3. other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks,
pavements, roadways, structures, other work in progress, utilities, and Underground
Facilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of
construction.

4. traffic and private property on adjacent streets, roadways, parking lots, and private and
public areas. Contractor shall submit a site specific traffic control plan to the Engineer
and the Owner, within ten (10) days after the Contract effective date.

D. All damage, injury, or loss to any property referred to in Paragraph 7.13.C.2 or 7.13.C.3
caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by Contractor, any Subcontractor, Supplier,
or any other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform
any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by
Contractor at its expense (except damage or loss attributable to the fault of Drawings or
Specifications or to the acts or omissions of Owner or Engineer or anyone employed by any
of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or
indirectly, in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of Contractor or any Subcontractor,
Supplier, or other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them).

E. Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations relating to the safety of
persons or property, or to the protection of persons or property from damage, injury, or loss;
and shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection.

F. Contractor shall notify Owner; the owners of adjacent property; the owners of Underground
Facilities and other utilities (if the identity of such owners is known to Contractor); and other
contractors and utility owners performing work at or adjacent to the Site, in writing, when
Contractor knows that prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with
them in the protection, removal, relocation, and replacement of their property or work in
progress.

G. Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of Owner’s safety programs, if any.
Any Owner’s safety programs that are applicable to the Work are identified or included in the
Supplementary Conditions or Specifications.

H. Contractor shall inform Owner and Engineer of the specific requirements of Contractor’s
safety program with which Owner’s and Engineer's employees and representatives must
comply while at the Site.

I.  Contractor’s duties and responsibilities for safety and protection will continue until all the
Work is completed, Engineer has issued a written notice to Owner and Contractor in
accordance with Paragraph 15.06.C that the Work is acceptable, and Contractor has left the
Site (except as otherwise expressly provided in connection with Substantial Completion).

). Contractor’s duties and responsibilities for safety and protection will resume whenever
Contractor or any Subcontractor or Supplier returns to the Site to fulfill warranty or correction
obligations, or to conduct other tasks arising from the Contract Documents.

Hazard Communication Programs

A. Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating any exchange of safety data sheets (formerly
known as material safety data sheets) or other hazard communication information required

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 35 of 71



to be made available to or exchanged between or among employers at the Site in accordance
with Laws or Regulations.

7.15  Emergencies

A. In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the
Site or adjacent thereto, Contractor is obligated to act to prevent damage, injury, or loss.
Contractor shall give Engineer prompt written notice if Contractor believes that any significant
changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused by an
emergency, or are required as a result of Contractor’s response to an emergency. If Engineer
determines that a change in the Contract Documents is required because of an emergency or
Contractor’s response, a Work Change Directive or Change Order will be issued.

7.16  Submittals
A. Shop Drawing and Sample Requirements
1. Before submitting a Shop Drawing or Sample, Contractor shall:

a. review and coordinate the Shop Drawing or Sample with other Shop Drawings and
Samples and with the requirements of the Work and the Contract Documents;

b. determine and verify:

1) all field measurements, quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design
criteria, installation requirements, materials, catalog numbers, and similar
information with respect to the Submittal;

2) the suitability of all materials and equipment offered with respect to the indicated
application, fabrication, shipping, handling, storage, assembly, and installation
pertaining to the performance of the Work; and

3) all information relative to Contractor’s responsibilities for means, methods,
techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, and safety precautions
and programs incident thereto;

c¢. confirm that the Submittal is complete with respect to all related data included in the
Submittal.

2. Each Shop Drawing or Sample must bear a stamp or specific written certification that
Contractor has satisfied Contractor’s obligations under the Contract Documents with
respect to Contractor’s review of that Submittal, and that Contractor approves the
Submittal.

3. With each Shop Drawing or Sample, Contractor shall give Engineer specific written notice
of any variations that the Submittal may have from the requirements of the Contract
Documents. This notice must be set forth in a written communication separate from the
Submittal; and, in addition, in the case of a Shop Drawing by a specific notation made on
the Shop Drawing itself.

B. Submittal Procedures for Shop Drawings and Samples: Contractor shall label and submit Shop
Drawings and Samples timely to Engineer for review and approval in accordance with the
accepted Schedule of Submittals.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 36 of 71



Shop Drawings
a. Contractor shall submit the number of copies required in the Specifications.

b. Data shown on the Shop Drawings must be complete with respect to quantities,
dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, materials, and similar data to
show Engineer the services, materials, and equipment Contractor proposes to
provide, and to enable Engineer to review the information for the limited purposes
required by Paragraph 7.16.C.

Samples
a. Contractor shall submit the number of Samples required in the Specifications.

b. Contractor shall clearly identify each Sample as to material, Supplier, pertinent data
such as catalog numbers, the use for which intended and other data as Engineer may
require to enable Engineer to review the Submittal for the limited purposes required
by Paragraph 7.16.C.

Where a Shop Drawing or Sample is required by the Contract Documents or the Schedule
of Submittals, any related Work performed prior to Engineer’s review and approval of the
pertinent submittal will be at the sole expense and responsibility of Contractor.

C. Engineer’s Review of Shop Drawings and Samples

1.

Engineer will provide timely review of Shop Drawings and Samples in accordance with the
accepted Schedule of Submittals. Engineer’s review and approval will be only to
determine if the items covered by the Submittals will, after installation or incorporation
in the Work, comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents, and be
compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as
indicated by the Contract Documents.

Engineer’s review and approval will not extend to means, methods, techniques,
sequences, or procedures of construction, or to safety precautions or programs incident
thereto.

Engineer’s review and approval of a separate item as such will not indicate approval of
the assembly in which the item functions.

Engineer’s review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample will not relieve Contractor
from responsibility for any variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents
unless Contractor has complied with the requirements of Paragraph 7.16.A.3 and
Engineer has given written approval of each such variation by specific written notation
thereof incorporated in or accompanying the Shop Drawing or Sample. Engineer will
document any such approved variation from the requirements of the Contract
Documents in a Field Order or other appropriate Contract modification.

Engineer’s review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample will not relieve Contractor
from responsibility for complying with the requirements of Paragraphs 7.16.A and B.

Engineer’s review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample, or of a variation from the
requirements of the Contract Documents, will not, under any circumstances, change the
Contract Times or Contract Price, unless such changes are included in a Change Order.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page37of 71



Neither Engineer’s receipt, review, acceptance, or approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample
will result in such item becoming a Contract Document.

Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance with the requirements and
commitments set forth in approved Shop Drawings and Samples, subject to the provisions
of Paragraph 7.16.C.4.

D. Resubmittal Procedures for Shop Drawings and Samples

1.

Contractor shall make corrections required by Engineer and shall return the required
number of corrected copies of Shop Drawings and submit, as required, new Samples for
review and approval. Contractor shall direct specific attention in writing to revisions other
than the corrections called for by Engineer on previous Submittals.

Contractor shall furnish required Shop Drawing and Sample submittals with sufficient
information and accuracy to obtain required approval of an item with no more than two
resubmittals. Engineer will record Engineer’s time for reviewing a third or subsequent
resubmittal of a Shop Drawing or Sample, and Contractor shall be responsible for
Engineer’s charges to Owner for such time. Owner may impose a set-off against payments
due Contractor to secure reimbursement for such charges.

If Contractor requests a change of a previously approved Shop Drawing or Sample,
Contractor shall be responsible for Engineer’s charges to Owner for its review time, and
Owner may impose a set-off against payments due Contractor to secure reimbursement
for such charges, unless the need for such change is beyond the control of Contractor.

E. Submittals Other than Shop Drawings, Samples, and Owner-Delegated Designs

F.

1. The following provisions apply to all Submittals other than Shop Drawings, Samples, and

Owner-delegated designs:

a. Contractor shall submit all such Submittals to the Engineer in accordance with the
Schedule of Submittals and pursuant to the applicable terms of the Contract
Documents.

b. Engineer will provide timely review of all such Submittals in accordance with the
Schedule of Submittals and return such Submittals with a notation of either Accepted
or Not Accepted. Any such Submittal that is not returned within the time established
in the Schedule of Submittals will be deemed accepted.

c. Engineer’s review will be only to determine if the Submittal is acceptable under the
requirements of the Contract Documents as to general form and content of the
Submittal.

d. If any such Submittal is not accepted, Contractor shall confer with Engineer regarding
the reason for the non-acceptance, and resubmit an acceptable document.

2. Procedures for the submittal and acceptance of the Progress Schedule, the Schedule of

Submittals, and the Schedule of Values are set forth in Paragraphs 2.03. 2.04, and 2.05.

Owner-delegated Designs: Submittals pursuant to Owner-delegated designs are governed by
the provisions of Paragraph 7.19.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 38 of 71



7.17  Contractor’s General Warranty and Guarantee

A. Contractor warrants and guarantees to Owner that all Work will be in accordance with the
Contract Documents and will not be defective. Engineer is entitled to rely on Contractor’s
warranty and guarantee.

B. Owner’s rights under this warranty and guarantee are in addition to, and are not limited by,
Owner’s rights under the correction period provisions of Paragraph 15.08. The time in which
Owner may enforce its warranty and guarantee rights under this Paragraph 7.17 is limited
only by applicable Laws and Regulations restricting actiohs to enforce such rights; provided,
however, that after the end of the correction period under Paragraph 15.08:

1. Owner shall give Contractor written notice of any defective Work within 60 days of the
discovery that such Work is defective; and

2. Such notice will be deemed the start of an event giving rise to a Claim under
Paragraph 12.01.B, such that any related Claim must be brought within 30 days of the
notice.

C. Contractor’s warranty and guarantee hereunder excludes defects or damage caused by:

1. abuse, or improper modification, maintenance, or operation, by persons other than
Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or any other individual or entity for whom
Contractor is responsible; or

2. normal wear and tear under normal usage.

D. Contractor’s obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents is absolute. None of the following will constitute an acceptance of Work that is
not in accordance with the Contract Documents, a release of Contractor’s obligation to
perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or a release of Owner’s
warranty and guarantee rights under this Paragraph 7.17:

1. Observations by Engineer;
2. Recommendation by Engineer or payment by Owner of any progress or final payment;

3. The issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion by Engineer or any payment
related thereto by Owner;

Use or accupancy of the Work or any part thereof by Owner;

Any review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal;

The end of the correction period established in Paragraph 15.08;

4
5
6. The issuance of a notice of acceptability by Engineer;
7
8. Any inspection, test, or approval by others; or

9

Any correction of defective Work by Owner.

E. If the Contract requires the Contractor to accept the assignment of a contract entered into by
Owner, then the specific warranties, guarantees, and correction obligations contained in the
assigned contract will govern with respect to Contractor’s performance obligations to Owner
for the Work described in the assigned contract.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright© 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 39 of 71



7.18  Indemnification

A. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, and in addition to any other
obligations of Contractor under the Contract or otherwise, Contractor shall indemnify and
hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners,
employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them, from losses,
damages, costs, and judgments (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers,
architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute
resolution costs) arising from third-party claims or actions relating to or resulting from the
performance or furnishing of the Work, provided that any such claim, action, loss, cost,
judgment or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to damage
to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use
resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of
Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly
employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them
may be liable.

B. Inany and all claims against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members,
partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, by any employee (or the survivor
or personal representative of such employee) of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier,
or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of
the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation
under Paragraph 7.18.A will not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type
of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Contractor or any such
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity under workers’ compensation acts,
disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

7.19  Delegation of Professional Design Services

A. Owner may require Contractor to provide professional design services for a portion of the
Work by express delegation in the Contract Documents. Such delegation will specify the
performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy, and the Submittals that
Contractor must furnish to Engineer with respect to the Owner-delegated design.

B. Contractor shall cause such Owner-delegated professional design services to be provided
pursuant to the professional standard of care by a properly licensed design professional,
whose signature and seal must appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications,
certifications, and Submittals prepared by such design professional. Such design professional
must issue all certifications of design required by Laws and Regulations.

C. If a Shop Drawing or other Submittal related to the Owner-delegated design is prepared by
Contractor, a Subcontractor, or others for submittal to Engineer, then such Shop Drawing or

other Submittal must bear the written approval of Contractor’s design professional when
submitted by Contractor to Engineer.

D. Owner and Engineer shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy, and completeness
of the services, certifications, and approvals performed or provided by the design
professionals retained or employed by Contractor under an Owner-delegated design, subject

to the professional standard of care and the performance and design criteria stated in the
Contract Documents.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 40 of 71



E.

Pursuant to this Paragraph 7.19, Engineer’s review, approval, and other determinations
regarding design drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, and other Submittals
furnished by Contractor pursuant to an Owner-delegated design will be only for the following
limited purposes:

1. Checking for conformance with the requirements of this Paragraph 7.19;

2. Confirming that Contractor (through its design professionals) has used the performance
and design criteria specified in the Contract Documents; and

3. Establishing that the design furnished by Contractor is consistent with the design concept
expressed in the Contract Documents.

Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of performance or design criteria
specified by Owner or Engineer.

Contractor is not required to provide professional services in violation of applicable Laws and
Regulations.

ARTICLE 8—OTHER WORK AT THE SITE

8.01

Other Work

A.

In addition to and apart from the Work under the Contract Documents, the Owner may
perform other work at or adjacent to the Site. Such other work may be performed by Owner’s
employees, or through contracts between the Owner and third parties. Owner may also
arrange to have third-party utility owners perform work on their utilities and facilities at or
adjacent to the Site.

If Owner performs other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner’s employees, or through
contracts for such other work, then Owner shall give Contractor written notice thereof prior
to starting any such other work. If Owner has advance information regarding the start of any
third-party utility work that Owner has arranged to take place at or adjacent to the Site,
Owner shall provide such information to Contractor.

Contractor shall afford proper and safe access to the Site to each contractor that performs
such other work, each utility owner performing other work, and Owner, if Owner is
performing other work with Owner’s employees, and provide a reasonable opportunity for
the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of such other
work.

Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, and patching of the Work that may be required to
properly connect or otherwise make its several parts come together and properly integrate
with such other work. Contractor shall not endanger any work of others by cutting,
excavating, or otherwise altering such work; provided, however, that Contractor may cut or
alter others' work with the written consent of Engineer and the others whose work will be
affected.

If the proper execution or results of any part of Contractor’s Work depends upon work
performed by others, Contractor shall inspect such other work and promptly report to
Engineer in writing any delays, defects, or deficiencies in such other work that render it
unavailable or unsuitable for the proper execution and results of Contractor’s Work.
Contractor’s failure to so report will constitute an acceptance of such other work as fit and

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. Al rights reserved.
Page 41 of 71



proper for integration with Contractor’s Work except for latent defects and deficiencies in
such other work.

The provisions of this article are not applicable to work that is performed by third-party
utilities or other third-party entities without a contract with Owner, or that is performed
without having been arranged by Owner. If such work occurs, then any related delay,
disruption, or interference incurred by Contractor is governed by the provisions of
Paragraph 4.05.C.3.

8.02  Coordination

A.

If Owner intends to contract with others for the performance of other work at or adjacent to
the Site, to perform other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner’s employees, or to
arrange to have utility owners perform work at or adjacent to the Site, the following will be
set forth in the Supplementary Conditions or provided to Contractor prior to the start of any
such other work:

1. The identity of the individual or entity that will have authority and responsibility for
coordination of the activities among the various contractors;

2. Anitemization of the specific matters to be covered by such authority and responsibility;
and

3. The extent of such authority and responsibilities.

Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Owner shall have sole authority
and responsibility for such coordination.

8.03  Legal Relationships

A.

If, in the course of performing other work for Owner at or adjacent to the Site, the Owner’s
employees, any other contractor working for Owner, or any utility owner that Owner has
arranged to perform work, causes damage to the Work or to the property of Contractor or its
Subcontractors, or delays, disrupts, interferes with, or increases the scope or cost of the
performance of the Work, through actions or inaction, then Contractor shall be entitled to an
equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times. Contractor must submit any
Change Proposal seeking an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times
under this paragraph within 30 days of the damaging, delaying, disrupting, or interfering
event. The entitlement to, and extent of, any such equitable adjustment will take into account
information (if any) regarding such other work that was provided to Contractor in the Contract
Documents prior to the submittal of the Bid or the final negotiation of the terms of the
Contract, and any remedies available to Contractor under Laws or Regulations concerning
utility action or inaction. When applicable, any such equitable adjustment in Contract Price
will be conditioned on Contractor assigning to Owner all Contractor’s rights against such other
contractor or utility owner with respect to the damage, delay, disruption, or interference that
is the subject of the adjustment. Contractor’s entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract
Times or Contract Price is subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E.

Contractor shall take reasonable and customary measures to avoid damaging, delaying,
disrupting, or interfering with the work of Owner, any other contractor, or any utility owner
performing other work at or adjacent to the Site.

1. If Contractor fails to take such measures and as a result damages, delays, disrupts, or
interferes with the work of any such other contractor or utility owner, then Owner may

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 42 of 71



impose a set-off against payments due Contractor, and assign to such other contractor or
utility owner the Owner’s contractual rights against Contractor with respect to the breach
of the obligations set forth in this Paragraph 8.03.B.

2. When Owner is performing other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner’s employees,
Contractor shall be liable to Owner for damage to such other work, and for the reasonable
direct delay, disruption, and interference costs incurred by Owner as a result of
Contractor’s failure to take reasonable and customary measures with respect to Owner’s
other work. In response to such damage, delay, disruption, or interference, Owner may
impose a set-off against payments due Contractor.

C. If Contractor damages, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the work of any other contractor,
or any utility owner performing other work at or adjacent to the Site, through Contractor’s
failure to take reasonable and customary measures to avoid such impacts, or if any claim
arising out of Contractor’s actions, inactions, or negligence in performance of the Work at or
adjacent to the Site is made by any such other contractor or utility owner against Contractor,
Owner, or Engineer, then Contractor shall (1) promptly attempt to settle the claim as to all
parties through negotiations with such other contractor or utility owner, or otherwise resolve
the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law, and (2) indemnify
and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners,
employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against
any such claims, and against all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all
fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or
arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such damage, delay,
disruption, or interference.

ARTICLE 9—OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

9.01

9.02

9.03

5.04

9.05

Communications to Contractor

A. Except as otherwise provided in these General Conditions, Owner shall issue all
communications to Contractor through Engineer or through Owner’'s desighated
representative or Inspector.

Replacement of Engineer

A. Owner may at its discretion appoint an engineer to replace Engineer, provided Contractor
makes no reasonable objection to the replacement engineer. The replacement engineer’s
status under the Contract Documents will be that of the former Engineer.

Furnish Data
A. Owner shall promptly furnish the data required of Owner under the Contract Documents.
Pay When Due

A. Owner shall make payments to Contractor when they are due as provided in the Agreement
and per local and State requirements.

Lands and Easements; Reports, Tests, and Drawings

A. Owner’s duties with respect to providing lands and easements are set forth in Paragraph 5.01.

EICDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page430f 71



B. Owner’s duties with respect to providing engineering surveys to establish reference points
are set forth in Paragraph 4.03.

C. Article 5 refers to Owner’s identifying and making available to Contractor copies of reports of
explorations and tests of conditions at the Site, and drawings of physical conditions relating
to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site.

9.06 Insurance

A. Owner’s responsibilities, if any, with respect to purchasing and maintaining liability and
property insurance are set forth in Article 6.

9.07 Change Orders
A. Owner’s responsibilities with respect to Change Orders are set forth in Article 11.
9.08 Inspections, Tests, and Approvals

A. Owner’s responsibility with respect to certain inspections, tests, and approvals is set forth in
Paragraph 14.02.B.

9.09 Limitations on Owner’s Responsibilities

A. The Owner shall not supervise, direct, or have control or authority over, nor be responsible
for, Contractor’s means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or
the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to
comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Owner will not
be responsible for Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents.

9.10  Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition

A. Owner’s responsibility in respect to an undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition is set
forth in Paragraph 5.06.

9.11 Evidence of Financial Arrangements

A. Upon request of Contractor, Owner shall furnish Contractor reasonable evidence that
financial arrangements have been made to satisfy Owner’s obligations under the Contract
(including obligations under proposed changes in the Work).

5.12  Safety Programs

A. While at the Site, Owner's employees and representatives shall comply with the specific
applicable requirements of Contractor’s safety programs of which Owner has been informed.

B. Owner shall furnish copies of any applicable Owner safety programs to Contractor.
ARTICLE 10—ENGINEER’S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION

10.01 Owner’s Representative

A. Engineer will be Owner's representative during the construction period. The duties and
responsibilities and the limitations of authority of Engineer as Owner’s representative during
construction are set forth in the Contract.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 44 of 71



10.02 Visits to Site

A.

Engineer will make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of
construction as Engineer deems necessary in order to observe, as an experienced and
qualified design professional, the progress that has been made and the quality of the various
aspects of Contractor’s executed Work. Based on information obtained during such visits and
observations, Engineer, for the benefit of Owner, will determine, in general, if the Work is
proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. Engineer will not be required to
make exhaustive or continuous inspections on the Site to check the quality or quantity of the
Work. Engineer’s efforts will be directed toward providing for Owner a greater degree of
confidence that the completed Work will conform generally to the Contract Documents. On
the basis of such visits and observations, Engineer will keep Owner informed of the progress
of the Work and will endeavor to guard Owner against defective Work.

Engineer’s visits and observations are subject to all the limitations on Engineer’s authority and
responsibility set forth in Paragraph 10.07. Particularly, but without limitation, during or as a
result of Engineer’s visits or observations of Contractor’s Work, Engineer will not supervise,
direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods,
techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and
programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and
Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work.

10.03 Resident Project Representative

A.

If Owner and Engineer have agreed that Engineer will furnish a Resident Project
Representative to represent Engineer at the Site and assist Engineer in observing the progress
and quality of the Work, then the authority and responsibilities of any such Resident Project
Representative will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions, and limitations on the
responsibilities thereof will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions and in
Paragraph 10.07.

If Owner designates an individual or entity who is not Engineer’s consultant, agent, or
employee to represent Owner at the Site, then the responsibilities and authority of such
individual or entity will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

10.04 Engineer’s and Owner’s Inspector’s Authority

A.
B.
(e

D.
E.

Engineer and Inspector have the authority to reject Work in accordance with Article 14.
Engineer’s authority as to Submittals is set forth in Paragraph 7.16.

Engineer’s authority as to design drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications and
other Submittals from Contractor in response to Owner’s delegation (if any) to Contractor of
professional design services, is set forth in Paragraph 7.19.

Engineer’s authority as to changes in the Work is set forth in Article 11.

Engineer’s and Inspector’s authority as to Applications for Payment is set forth in Article 15.

10.05 Determinations for Unit Price Work

A.

Engineer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed
by Contractor as set forth in Paragraph 13.03.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 45 of 71



10.06 Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work

A.

Engineer will render decisions regarding the requirements of the Contract Documents, and
judge the acceptability of the Work, pursuant to the specific procedures set forth herein for
initial interpretations, Change Proposals, and acceptance of the Work. In rendering such
decisions and judgments, Engineer will not show partiality to Owner or Contractor, and will
not be liable to Owner, Contractor, or others in connection with any proceedings,
interpretations, decisions, or judgments conducted or rendered in good faith.

10.07 Limitations on Engineer’s Authority and Responsibilities

A.

Neither Engineer’s authority or responsibility under this Article 10 or under any other
provision of the Contract, nor any decision made by Engineer in good faith either to exercise
or not exercise such authority or responsibility or the undertaking, exercise, or performance
of any authority or responsibility by Engineer, will create, impose, or give rise to any duty in
contract, tort, or otherwise owed by Engineer to Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier,
any other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee or agent of any of them.

Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for
Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the
safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply
with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Engineer will not be
responsible for Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents.

Engineer will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of Contractor or of any
Subcontractor, any Supplier, or of any other individual or entity performing any of the Work.

Engineer’s review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation, and
all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates of
inspection, tests and approvals, and other documentation required to be delivered by
Contractor under Paragraph 15.06.A, will only be to determine generally that their content
complies with the requirements of, and in the case of certificates of inspections, tests, and
approvals, that the results certified indicate compliance with the Contract Documents.

The limitations upon authority and responsibility set forth in this Paragraph 10.07 also apply
to the Resident Project Representative, if any.

10.08 Compliance with Safety Program

A.

While at the Site, Engineer’s employees and representatives will comply with the specific
applicable requirements of Owner’s and Contractor’s safety programs of which Engineer has
been informed.

ARTICLE 11—CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT

11.01

Amending and Supplementing the Contract

A.

B.

The Contract may be amended or supplemented by a Change Order, a Work Change Directive,
or a Field Order.

If an amendment or supplement to the Contract includes a change in the Contract Price or
the Contract Times, such amendment or supplement must be set forth in a Change Order.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 46 of 71



C. All changes to the Contract that involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the Work,

(2) the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other
engineering or technical matters, must be supported by Engineer’s recommendation. Owner
and Contractor may amend other terms and conditions of the Contract without the
recommendation of the Engineer.

11.02 Change Orders

A. Owner and Contractor shall execute appropriate Change Orders covering:

B.

1. Changes in Contract Price or Contract Times which are agreed to by the parties, including
any undisputed sum or amount of time for Work actually performed in accordance with
a Work Change Directive;

2. Changes in Contract Price resulting from an Owner set-off, unless Contractor has duly
contested such set-off;

3. Changes in the Work which are: {a) ordered by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 11.05,
(b) required because of Owner’s acceptance of defective Work under Paragraph 14.04 or
Owner’s correction of defective Work under Paragraph 14.07, or (c) agreed to by the
parties, subject to the need for Engineer’s recommendation if the change in the Work
involves the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise) or other
engineering or technical matters; and

4. Changes that embody the substance of any final and binding results under:
Paragraph 11.03.B, resolving the impact of a Work Change Directive; Paragraph 11.09,
concerning Change Proposals; Article 12, Claims; Paragraph 13.02.D, final adjustments
resulting from allowances; Paragraph 13.03.D, final adjustments relating to
determination of quantities for Unit Price Work; and similar provisions.

If Owner or Contractor refuses to execute a Change Order that is required to be executed
under the terms of Paragraph 11.02.A, it will be deemed to be of full force and effect, as if
fully executed.

11.03 Work Change Directives

A. A Work Change Directive will not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times but is

B.

evidence that the parties expect that the modification ordered or documented by a Work
Change Directive will be incorporated in a subsequently issued Change Order, following
negotiations by the parties as to the Work Change Directive’s effect, if any, on the Contract
Price and Contract Times; or, if negotiations are unsuccessful, by a determination under the
terms of the Contract Documents governing adjustments, expressly including
Paragraph 11.07 regarding change of Contract Price.

If Owner has issued a Work Change Directive and:

1. Contractor believes that an adjustment in Contract Times or Contract Price is necessary,
then Contractor shall submit any Change Proposal seeking such an adjustment no later
than 30 days after the completion of the Work set out in the Work Change Directive.

2. Owner believes that an adjustment in Contract Times or Contract Price is necessary, then
Owner shall submit any Claim seeking such an adjustment no later than 60 days after
issuance of the Work Change Directive.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 47 of 71



11.04

11.05

11.06

11.067

Field Orders

A.

Engineer may authorize minor changes in the Work if the changes do not involve an
adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times and are compatible with the design
concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract
Documents. Such changes will be accomplished by a Field Order and will be binding on Owner
and also on Contractor, which shall perform the Work involved promptly.

If Contractor believes that a Field Order justifies an adjustment in the Contract Price or
Contract Times, then before proceeding with the Work at issue, Contractor shall submit a
Change Proposal as provided herein.

Owner-Authorized Changes in the Work

A.

C.

Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any surety, Owner may, at any time
or from time to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work. Changes involving
the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise) or other engineering or
technical matters will be supported by Engineer’s recommendation.

Such changes in the Work may be accomplished by a Change Order, if Owner and Contractor
have agreed as to the effect, if any, of the changes on Contract Times or Contract Price; or by
a Work Change Directive. Upon receipt of any such document, Contractor shall promptly
proceed with the Work involved; or, in the case of a deletion in the Work, promptly cease
construction activities with respect to such deleted Work. Added or revised Work must be
performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents.

Nothing in this Paragraph 11.05 obligates Contractor to undertake work that Contractor
reasonably concludes cannot be performed in a manner consistent with Contractor’s safety
obligations under the Contract Documents or Laws and Regulations.

Unauthorized Changes in the Work

A.

Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the
Contract Times with respect to any work performed that is not required by the Contract
Documents, as amended, modified, or supplemented, except in the case of an emergency as
provided in Paragraph 7.15 or in the case of uncovering Work as provided in
Paragraph 14.05.C.2.

Change of Contract Price

A.

The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Change Proposal for an
adjustment in the Contract Price must comply with the provisions of Paragraph 11.09. Any
Claim for an adjustment of Contract Price must comply with the provisions of Article 12.

An adjustment in the Contract Price will be determined as follows:

1. Where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents,
then by application of such unit prices to the quantities of the items involved {subject to
the provisions of Paragraph 13.03);

2. Where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract
Documents, then by a mutually agreed lump sum (which may include an allowance for
overhead and profit not necessarily in accordance with Paragraph 11.07.C.2); or

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 48 of 71



3. Where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract
Documents and the parties do not reach mutual agreement to a lump sum, then on the
basis of the Cost of the Work (determined as provided in Paragraph 13.01) plus a
Contractor’s fee for overhead and profit (determined as provided in Paragraph 11.07.C).

C. Contractor’s Fee: When applicable, the Contractor’s fee for overhead and profit will be
determined as follows:

1. A mutually acceptable fixed fee; or

2. If a fixed fee is not agreed upon, then a fee based on the following percentages of the
various portions of the Cost of the Work:

a. For costs incurred under Paragraphs 13.01.B.1 and 13.01.B.2, the Contractor’s fee will
be 15 percent;

b. For costs incurred under Paragraph 13.01.B.3, the Contractor’s fee will be 5 percent;

c. Where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a
fee and no fixed fee is agreed upon, the intent of Paragraphs 11.07.C.2.a and
11.07.C.2.b is that the Contractor’s fee will be based on: (1) a fee of 15 percent of the
costs incurred under Paragraphs 13.01.B.1 and 13.01.B.2 by the Subcontractor that
actually performs the Work, at whatever tier, and (2) with respect to Contractor itself
and to any Subcontractors of a tier higher than that of the Subcontractor that actually
performs the Work, a fee of 5 percent of the amount (fee plus underlying costs
incurred) attributable to the next lower tier Subcontractor; provided, however, that
for any such subcontracted Work the maximum total fee to be paid by Owner will be
no greater than 27 percent of the costs incurred by the Subcontractor that actually
performs the Work;

d. No fee will be payable on the basis of costs itemized under Paragraphs 13.01.B.4,
13.01.B.5, and 13.01.C;

e. The amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any change which
results in a net decrease in Cost of the Work will be the amount of the actual net
decrease in Cost of the Wark and a deduction of an additional amount equal to
5 percent of such actual net decrease in Cost of the Work; and

f.  When both additions and credits are involved in any one change or Change Proposal,
the adjustment in Contractor’s fee will be computed by determining the sum of the
costs in each of the cost categories in Paragraph 13.01.B (specifically, payroll costs,
Paragraph 13.01.B.1; incorporated materials and equipment  costs,
Paragraph 13.01.B.2; Subcontract costs, Paragraph 13.01.B.3; special consultants
costs, Paragraph 13.01.B.4; and other costs, Paragraph 13.01.B.5) and applying to
each such cost category sum the appropriate fee from Paragraphs 11.07.C.2.a
through 11.07.C.2.e, inclusive.

11.08 Change of Contract Times

A. The Contract Times may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Change Proposal for an
adjustment in the Contract Times must comply with the provisions of Paragraph 11.09. Any
Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Times must comply with the provisions of Article 12.

EICDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 49 of 71



B. Delay, disruption, and interference in the Work, and any related changes in Contract Times,
are addressed in and governed by Paragraph 4.05.

11.09 Change Proposals

A. Purpose and Content: Contractor shall submit a Change Proposal to Engineer to request an
adjustment in the Contract Times or Contract Price; contest an initial decision by Engineer
concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents or relating to the acceptability of
the Work under the Contract Documents; challenge a set-off against payment due; or seek
other relief under the Contract. The Change Proposal will specify any proposed change in
Contract Times or Contract Price, or other proposed relief, and explain the reason for the
proposed change, with citations to any governing or applicable provisions of the Contract
Documents. Each Change Proposal will address only one issue, or a set of closely related
issues.

B. Change Proposal Procedures

1. Submittal: Contractor shall submit each Change Proposal to Engineer within 30 days after
the start of the event giving rise thereto, or after such initial decision.

2. Supporting Data: The Contractor shall submit supporting data, including the proposed
change in Contract Price or Contract Time (if any), to the Engineer and Owner within
15 days after the submittal of the Change Proposal.

a. Change Proposals based on or related to delay, interruption, or interference must
comply with the provisions of Paragraphs 4.05.D and 4.05.E.

b. Change proposals related to a change of Contract Price must include full and detailed
accounts of materials incorporated into the Work and labor and equipment used for
the subject Work.

The supporting data must be accompanied by a written statement that the supporting
data are accurate and complete, and that any requested time or price adjustment is the
entire adjustment to which Contractor believes it is entitled as a result of said event.

3. Engineer’s Initial Review: Engineer will advise Owner regarding the Change Proposal, and
consider any comments or response from Owner regarding the Change Proposal. If in its
discretion Engineer concludes that additional supporting data is needed before
conducting a full review and making a decision regarding the Change Proposal, then
Engineer may request that Contractor submit such additional supporting data by a date
specified by Engineer, prior to Engineer beginning its full review of the Change Proposal.

4. Engineer’s Full Review and Action on the Change Proposal: Upon receipt of Contractor’s
supporting data (including any additional data requested by Engineer), Engineer will
conduct a full review of each Change Proposal and, within 30 days after such receipt of
the Contractor’s supporting data, either approve the Change Proposal in whole, deny it in
whole, or approve it in part and deny it in part. Such actions must be in writing, with a
copy provided to Owner and Contractor. If Engineer does not take action on the Change
Proposal within 30 days, then either Owner or Contractor may at any time thereafter
submit a letter to the other party indicating that as a result of Engineer’s inaction the
Change Proposal is deemed denied, thereby commencing the time for appeal of the
denial under Article 12.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 50 of 71



5. Binding Decision: Engineer’s decision is final and binding upon Owner and Contractor,
unless Owner or Contractor appeals the decision by filing a Claim under Article 12.

C. Resolution of Certain Change Proposals: If the Change Proposal does not involve the design
(as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the Work, or
other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will notify the parties in writing that
the Engineer is unable to resolve the Change Proposal. For purposes of further resolution of
such a Change Proposal, such notice will be deemed a denial, and Contractor may choose to
seek resolution under the terms of Article 12.

D. Post-Completion: Contractor shall not submit any Change Proposals after Engineer issues a
written recommendation of final payment pursuant to Paragraph 15.06.8B.

11.10 Notification to Surety

A. If the provisions of any bond require notice to be given to a surety of any change affecting the
general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents (including, but not
limited to, Contract Price or Contract Times), the giving of any such notice will be Contractor’s

responsibility. The amount of each applicable bond will be adjusted to reflect the effect of
any such change.

ARTICLE 12—CLAIMS

12.01 Claims

A. Claims Process: The following disputes between Owner and Contractor are subject to the
Claims process set forth in this article:

1. Appeals by Owner or Contractor of Engineer’s decisions regarding Change Proposals;

2. Owner demands for adjustments in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or other relief
under the Contract Documents;

3. Disputes that Engineer has been unable to address because they do not involve the design
(as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the Work,
or other engineering or technical matters; and

4. Subject to the waiver provisions of Paragraph 15.07, any dispute arising after Engineer
has issued a written recommendation of final payment pursuant to Paragraph 15.06.B.

B. Submittal of Claim: The party submitting a Claim shall deliver it directly to the other party to
the Contract promptly (but in no event later than 30 days) after the start of the event giving
rise thereto; in the case of appeals regarding Change Proposals within 30 days of the decision
under appeal. The party submitting the Claim shall also furnish a copy to the Engineer, for its
information only. The responsibility to substantiate a Claim rests with the party making the
Claim. In the case of a Claim by Contractor seeking an increase in the Contract Times or
Contract Price, Contractor shall certify that the Claim is made in good faith, that the
supporting data are accurate and complete, and that to the best of Contractor’s knowledge
and belief the amount of time or money requested accurately reflects the full amount to
which Contractor is entitled.

C. Review and Resolution: The party receiving a Claim shall review it thoroughly, giving full
consideration to its merits. The two parties shall seek to resolve the Claim through the
exchange of information and direct negotiations. The parties may extend the time for

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page510f71



resolving the Claim by mutual agreement. All actions taken on a Claim will be stated in writing
and submitted to the other party, with a copy to Engineer.

D. Mediation

1. At any time after initiation of a Claim, Owner and Contractor may mutually agree to
mediation of the underlying dispute. The agreement to mediate will stay the Claim
submittal and response process.

2. If Owner and Contractor agree to mediation, then after 60 days from such agreement,
either Owner or Contractor may unilaterally terminate the mediation process, and the
Claim submittal and decision process will resume as of the date of the termination. If the
mediation proceeds but is unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, the Claim submittal and
decision process will resume as of the date of the conclusion of the mediation, as
determined by the mediator.

3. Owner and Contractor shall each pay one-half of the mediator’s fees and costs.

E.  Partial Approval: If the party receiving a Claim approves the Claim in part and denies it in part,
such action will be final and binding unless within 30 days of such action the other party
invokes the procedure set forth in Article 17 for final resolution of disputes.

F. Denial of Claim: If efforts to resolve a Claim are not successful, the party receiving the Claim
may deny it by giving written notice of denial to the other party. If the receiving party does
not take action on the Claim within 90 days, then either Owner or Contractor may at any time
thereafter submit a letter to the other party indicating that as a result of the inaction, the
Claim is deemed denied, thereby commencing the time for appeal of the denial. A denial of
the Claim will be final and binding unless within 30 days of the denial the other party invokes
the procedure set forth in Article 17 for the final resolution of disputes.

G. Final and Binding Results: |f the parties reach a mutual agreement regarding a Claim, whether
through approval of the Claim, direct negotiations, mediation, or otherwise; or if a Claim is
approved in part and denied in part, or denied in full, and such actions become final and
binding; then the results of the agreement or action on the Claim will be incorporated in a
Change Order or other written document to the extent they affect the Contract, including the
Work, the Contract Times, or the Contract Price.

ARTICLE 13—COST OF THE WORK; ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WORK

13.01 Cost of the Work

A. Purposes for Determination of Cost of the Work: The term Cost of the Work means the sum
of all costs necessary for the proper performance of the Work at issue, as further defined
below. The provisions of this Paragraph 13.01 are used for two distinct purposes:

1. To determine Cost of the Work when Cost of the Work is a component of the Contract
Price, under cost-plus-fee, time-and-materials, or other cost-based terms; or

2. When needed to determine the value of a Change Order, Change Proposal, Claim, set-off,
or other adjustment in Contract Price. When the value of any such adjustment is
determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, Contractor is entitled only to those
additional or incremental costs required because of the change in the Work or because
of the event giving rise to the adjustment.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. AH rights reserved.
Page 52 of 71



B. Costs Included: Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by Owner, costs included in
the Cost of the Work will be in amounts no higher than those commonly incurred in the
locality of the Project, will not include any of the costs itemized in Paragraph 13.01.C, and will
include only the following items:

1.

Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of Contractor in the performance of the
Work under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by Owner and Contractor in
advance of the subject Work. Such employees include, without limitation,
superintendents, foremen, safety managers, safety representatives, and other personnel
employed full time on the Work. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on
the Work will be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs
include, but are not limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe benefits, which
include social security contributions, unemployment, excise, and payroll taxes, workers’
compensation, health and retirement benefits, sick leave, and vacation and holiday pay
applicable thereto. The expenses of performing Work outside of regular working hours,
on Saturday, Sunday, or legal holidays, will be included in the above to the extent
authorized by Owner.

Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including
costs of transportation and storage thereof, and Suppliers’ field services required in
connection therewith. All cash discounts accrue to Contractor unless Owner deposits
funds with Contractor with which to make payments, in which case the cash discounts
will accrue to Owner. All trade discounts, rebates, and refunds and returns from sale of
surplus materials and equipment will accrue to Owner, and Contractor shall make
provisions so that they may be obtained.

Payments made by Contractor to Subcontractors for Work performed by Subcontractors.
If required by Owner, Contractor shall obtain competitive bids from subcontractors
acceptable to Owner and Contractor and shall deliver such bids to Owner, which will then
determine, with the advice of Engineer, which bids, if any, will be acceptable. If any
subcontract provides that the Subcontractor is to be paid on the basis of Cost of the Work
plus a fee, the Subcontractor’s Cost of the Work and fee will be determined in the same
manner as Contractor’s Cost of the Work and fee as provided in this Paragraph 13.01.

Costs of special consultants (including but not limited to engineers, architects, testing
laboratories, surveyors, attorneys, and accountants) employed or retained for services
specifically related to the Work.

Other costs consisting of the following:

a. The proportion of necessary transportation, travel, and subsistence expenses of
Contractor’s employees incurred in discharge of duties connected with the Work.

b. Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, equipment,
machinery, appliances, office, and temporary facilities at the Site, which are
consumed in the performance of the Work, and cost, less market value, of such items
used but not consumed which remain the property of Contractor.

1) In establishing included costs for materials such as scaffolding, plating, or
sheeting, consideration will be given to the actual or the estimated life of the
material for use on other projects; or rental rates may be established on the basis
of purchase or salvage value of such items, whichever is less. Contractor will not

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 53 0f 71



be eligible for compensation for such items in an amount that exceeds the
purchase cost of such item.

c. Construction Equipment Rental

1) Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery, and the parts thereof, in
accordance with rental agreements approved by Owner as to price (including any
surcharge or special rates applicable to overtime use of the construction
equipment or machinery), and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading,
assembly, dismantling, and removal thereof. All such costs will be in accordance
with the terms of said rental agreements. The rental of any such equipment,
machinery, or parts must cease when the use thereof is no longer necessary for
the Work.

2) Costs for equipment and machinery owned by Contractor or a Contractor-related
entity will be paid at a rate shown for such equipment in the equipment rental
rate book specified in the Supplementary Conditions. An hourly rate will be
computed by dividing the monthly rates by 176. These computed rates will
include all operating costs.

3) With respect to Work that is the result of a Change Order, Change Proposal,
Claim, set-off, or other adjustment in Contract Price (“changed Work”), included
costs will be based on the time the equipment or machinery is in use on the
changed Work and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, assembly,
dismantling, and removal when directly attributable to the changed Work. The
cost of any such equipment or machinery, or parts thereof, must cease to accrue
when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the changed Work.

d. Sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes related to the Work, and for which
Contractor is liable, as imposed by Laws and Regulations.

e. Deposits lost for causes other than negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them
may be liable, and royalty payments and fees for permits and licenses.

f. Llosses and damages (and related expenses) caused by damage to the Work, not
compensated by insurance or otherwise, sustained by Contractor in connection with
the performance of the Work (except losses and damages within the deductible
amounts of builder’s risk or other property insurance established in accordance with
Paragraph 6.04), provided such losses and damages have resulted from causes other
than the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable. Such losses
include settlements made with the written consent and approval of Owner. No such
losses, damages, and expenses will be included in the Cost of the Work for the
purpose of determining Contractor’s fee.

The cost of utilities, fuel, and sanitary facilities at the Site.

Minor expenses such as communication service at the Site, express and courier
services, and similar petty cash items in connection with the Work.

i.  The costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance that Contractor is required by the
Contract Documents to purchase and maintain.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 54 of 71



C. Costs Excluded: The term Cost of the Work does not include any of the following items:

1. Payroll costs and other compensation of Contractor’s officers, executives, principals,
general managers, engineers, architects, estimators, attorneys, auditors, accountants,
purchasing and contracting agents, expediters, timekeepers, clerks, and other personnel
employed by Contractor, whether at the Site or in Contractor’s principal or branch office
for general administration of the Work and not specifically included in the agreed upon
schedule of job classifications referred to in Paragraph 13.01.B.1 or specifically covered
by Paragraph 13.01.B.4. The payroll costs and other compensation excluded here are to
be considered administrative costs covered by the Contractor’s fee.

2. The cost of purchasing, renting, or furnishing small tools and hand tools.

3. Expenses of Contractor’s principal and branch offices other than Contractor’s office at the
Site.

4. Any part of Contractor’s capital expenses, including interest on Contractor’s capital
employed for the Work and charges against Contractor for delinquent payments.

5. Costs due to the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or
indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, including
but not limited to, the correction of defective Work, disposal of materials or equipment
wrongly supplied, and making good any damage to property.

6. Expenses incurred in preparing and advancing Claims.

7. Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not
specifically and expressly included in Paragraph 13.01.B.

D. Controctor’s Fee
1. When the Work as a whole is performed on the basis of cost-plus-a-fee, then:

a. Contractor's fee for the Work set forth in the Contract Documents as of the Effective
Date of the Contract will be determined as set forth in the Agreement.

b. for any Work covered by a Change Order, Change Proposal, Claim, set-off, or other
adjustment in Contract Price on the basis of Cost of the Work, Contractor’s fee will be
determined as follows:

1) When the fee for the Work as a whole is a percentage of the Cost of the Work,
the fee will automatically adjust as the Cost of the Work changes.

2) When the fee for the Work as a whole is a fixed fee, the fee for any additions or
deletions will be determined in accordance with Paragraph 11.07.C.2.

2. When the Work as a whole is performed on the basis of a stipulated sum, or any other
basis other than cost-plus-a-fee, then Contractor’s fee for any Work covered by a Change
Order, Change Proposal, Claim, set-off, or other adjustment in Contract Price on the basis
of Cost of the Work will be determined in accordance with Paragraph 11.07.C.2.

E. Documentation and Audit: Whenever the Cost of the Work for any purpose is to be
determined pursuant to this Article 13, Contractor and pertinent Subcontractors will establish
and maintain records of the costs in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.
Subject to prior written notice, Owner will be afforded reasonable access, during normal
business hours, to all Contractor’s accounts, records, books, correspondence, instructions,

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 55 of 71



drawings, receipts, vouchers, memoranda, and similar data relating to the Cost of the Work
and Contractor’s fee. Contractor shall preserve all such documents for a period of three years
after the final payment by Owner. Pertinent Subcontractors will afford such access to Owner,
and preserve such documents, to the same extent required of Contractor.

13.02 Allowances

A. It is understood that Contractor has included in the Contract Price all allowances so named in
the Contract Documents and shall cause the Work so covered to be performed for such sums
and by such persons or entities as may be acceptable to Qwner and Engineer.

B. Cash Allowances: Contractor agrees that:

1. the cash allowances include the cost to Contractor (less any applicable trade discounts)
of materials and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the Site, and
all applicable taxes; and

2. Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling on the Site, labor, installation, overhead,
profit, and other expenses contemplated for the cash allowances have been included in
the Contract Price and not in the allowances, and no demand for additional payment for
any of the foregoing will be valid.

C. Owner’s Contingency Allowance: Contractor agrees that an Owner’s contingency allowance,
if any, is for the sole use of Owner to cover unanticipated costs.

D. Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change Order will be issued as recommended by
Engineer to reflect actual amounts due Contractor for Work covered by allowances, and the
Contract Price will be correspondingly adjusted.

13.03 Unit Price Work

A. Where the Contract Documents provide that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work,
initially the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal
to the sum of the unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the
estimated quantity of each item as indicated in the Agreement.

B. The estimated quantities of items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for
the purpose of comparison of Bids and determining an initial Contract Price. Payments to
Contractor for Unit Price Work will be based on actual quantities.

C. Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by Contractor to be adequate
to cover Contractor’s overhead and profit for each separately identified item.

D. Engineer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed
by Contractor. Engineer will review with Contractor the Engineer's preliminary
determinations on such matters before rendering a written decision thereon ({by
recommendation of an Application for Payment or otherwise). Engineer’s written decision
thereon will be final and binding (except as modified by Engineer to reflect changed factual
conditions or more accurate data) upon Owner and Contractor, and the final adjustment of
Contract Price will be set forth in a Change Order, subject to the provisions of the following
paragraph.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 56 of 71



E. Adjustments in Unit Price

1. Contractor or Owner shall be entitled to an adjustment in the unit price with respect to
an item of Unit Price Work if:

a. the quantity of the item of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor differs materially
and significantly from the estimated quantity of such item indicated in the
Agreement; and

b. Contractor’s unit costs to perform the item of Unit Price Work have changed
materially and significantly as a result of the quantity change.

2. The adjustment in unit price will account for and be coordinated with any related changes
in quantities of other items of Work, and in Contractor’s costs to perform such other
Work, such that the resulting overall change in Contract Price is equitable to Owner and
Contractor.

3. Adjusted unit prices will apply to all units of that item.
ARTICLE 14—TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL, OR ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK

14.01 Access to Work

A. Owner, Engineer, their consultants and other representatives and personnel of Owner,
independent testing laboratories, and authorities having jurisdiction have access to the Site
and the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspection, and testing. Contractor
shall provide them proper and safe conditions for such access and advise them of Contractor’s
safety procedures and programs so that they may comply with such procedures and programs
as applicable.

14.02 Tests, Inspections, and Approvals

A. Contractor shall give Engineer and Owner’s Inspector timely notice of readiness of the Work
(or specific parts thereof), at a minimum 48 hours, for all required inspections and tests, and
shall cooperate with inspection and testing personnel to facilitate required inspections and
tests.

B. Owner shall retain and pay for the services of an independent inspector, testing laboratory,
or other qualified individual or entity to perform all inspections and tests expressly required
by the Contract Documents to be furnished and paid for by Owner, except that costs incurred
in connection with tests or inspections of covered Work will be governed by the provisions of
Paragraph 14.05.

C. If Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof)
specifically to be inspected, tested, or approved by an employee or other representative of
such public body, Contractor shall assume full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such
inspections, tests, or approvals, pay all costs in connection therewith, and furnish Engineer
the required certificates of inspection or approval.

D. Contractor shall be responsible for arranging, obtaining, and paying for all inspections and
tests required: :

1. by the Contract Documents, unless the Contract Documents expressly allocate
responsibility for a specific inspection or test to Owner;

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 57 of 71



2. to attain Owner’s and Engineer’s acceptance of materials or equipment to be
incorporated in the Work;

3. by manufacturers of equipment furnished under the Contract Dacuments;

4. for testing, adjusting, and balancing of mechanical, electrical, and other equipment to be
incorporated into the Work; and

5. for acceptance of materials, mix designs, or equipment submitted for approval prior to
Contractor’s purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work.

Such inspections and tests will be performed by independent inspectors, testing laboratories,
or other qualified individuals or entities acceptable to Owner and Engineer.

If the Contract Documents require the Work (or part thereof) to be approved by Owner,
Engineer, or another designated individual or entity, then Contractor shall assume full
responsibility for arranging and obtaining such approvals.

If any Work (or the work of others) that is to be inspected, tested, or approved is covered by
Contractor without written concurrence of Engineer, Contractor shall, if requested by
Engineer, uncover such Work for observation. Such uncovering will be at Contractor’s expense
unless Contractor had given Engineer timely notice of Contractor’s intention to cover the
same and Engineer had not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.

14.03 Defective Work

A.
B.

Contractor’s Obligation: It is Contractor’s obligation to assure that the Work is not defective.

Engineer’s or Owner’s Inspector’s Authority: Engineer or Owner’s Inspector has the authority
to determine whether Work is defective, and to reject defective Work.

Notice of Defects: Prompt written notice of all defective Work of which Owner or Engineer
has actual knowledge will be given to Contractor.

Correction, or Removal and Replacement; Promptly after receipt of written notice of defective
Work, Contractor shall correct all such defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed,
or completed, or, if Engineer or Owner’s Inspector has rejected the defective Work, remove
it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective.

Preservation of Warranties: When correcting defective Work, Contractor shall take no action
that would void or otherwise impair Owner’s special warranty and guarantee, if any, on said
Work.

Costs and Damages: In addition to its correction, removal, and replacement obligations with
respect to defective Work, Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages arising
out of or relating-to defective Work, including but not limited to the cost of the inspection,
testing, correction, removal, replacement, or reconstruction of such defective Work, fines
levied against Owner by governmental authorities because the Work is defective, and the
costs of repair or replacement of work of others resulting from defective Work. Prior to final
payment, if Owner and Contractor are unable to agree as to the measure of such claims, costs,
losses, and damages resulting from defective Work, then Owner may impose a reasonable
set-off against payments due under Article 15.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 58 of 71



14.04 Acceptance of Defective Work

A.

If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, Owner
prefers to accept it, Owner may do so (subject, if such acceptance occurs prior to final
payment, to Engineer’s confirmation that such acceptance is in general accord with the design
intent and applicable engineering principles, and will not endanger public safety). Contractor
shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages attributable to Owner’s evaluation of and
determination to accept such defective Work (such costs to be approved by Engineer as to
reasonableness), and for the diminished value of the Work to the extent not otherwise paid
by Contractor. If any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, the necessary revisions
in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work will be incorporated in a Change Order.
If the parties are unable to agree as to the decrease in the Contract Price, reflecting the
diminished value of Work so accepted, then Owner may impose a reasonable set-off against
payments due under Article 15. If the acceptance of defective Work occurs after final
payment, Contractor shall pay an appropriate amount to Owner.

14.05 Uncovering Work

A.

Engineer or Owner’s Inspector has the authority to require additional inspection or testing of
the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed.

If any Work is covered contrary to the written request of Engineer, then Contractor shall, if
requested by Engineer or Owner’s Inspector, uncover such Work for Engineer’s observation,
and then replace the covering, all at Contractor’s expense.

If Engineer or Owner’s Inspector considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be
observed by Engineer or inspected or tested by others, then Contractor, at Engineer’s request,
shall uncover, expose, or otherwise make available for observation, inspection, or testing as
Engineer may require, that portion of the Work in question, and provide all necessary labor,
material, and equipment.

1. Ifitis found that the uncovered Work is defective, Contractor shall be responsible for all
claims, costs, losses, and damages arising out of or relating to such uncovering, exposure,
observation, inspection, and testing, and of satisfactory replacement or reconstruction
(including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others); and
pending Contractor’s full discharge of this responsibility the Owner shall be entitled to
impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15.

2. If the uncovered Work is not found to be defective, Contractor shall be allowed an
increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, directly attributable
to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, replacement, and
reconstruction. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount or extent thereof, then
Contractor may submit a Change Proposal within 30 days of the determination that the
Work is not defective.

14.06 Owner May Stop the Work

A,

If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable
materials or equipment, or fails to perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work
will conform to the Contract Documents, then Owner may order Contractor to stop the Work,
or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right
of Owner to stop the Work will not give rise to any duty on the part of Owner to exercise this

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 59 0of 71 '



right for the benefit of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or
entity, or any surety for, or employee or agent of any of them.

14.07 Owner May Correct Defective Work

A. If Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written notice from Engineer to correct
defective Work, or to remove and replace defective Work as required by Engineer, then
Owner may, after 7 days’ written notice to Contractor, correct or remedy any such deficiency.

B. In exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 14.07, Owner shall proceed
expeditiously. In connection with such corrective or remedial action, Owner may exclude
Contractor from all or part of the Site, take possession of all or part of the Work and suspend
Contractor’'s services related thereto, and incorporate in the Work all materials and
equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored
elsewhere. Contractor shall allow Owner, Owner’s representatives, agents and employees,
Owner’s other contractors, and Engineer and Engineer’s consultants access to the Site to
enable Owner to exercise the rights and remedies under this paragraph.

C. All claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred or sustained by Owner in exercising the rights
and remedies under this Paragraph 14.07 will be charged against Contractor as set-offs
against payments due under Article 15. Such claims, costs, losses and damages will include
but not be limited to all costs of repair, or replacement of work of others destroyed or
damaged by correction, removal, or replacement of Contractor’s defective Work.

D. Contractor shall not be allowed an extension of the Contract Times because of any delay in
the performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by Owner of Owner’s rights and
remedies under this Paragraph 14.07.

ARTICLE 15—PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR; SET-OFFS; COMPLETION; CORRECTION PERIOD

15.01 Progress Payments

A. Basis for Progress Payments: The Schedule of Values established as provided in Article 2 will
serve as the basis for progress payments and will be incorporated into a form of Application
for Payment acceptable to Engineer and Owner. Progress payments for Unit Price Work will
be based on the number of units completed during the pay period, as determined under the
provisions of Paragraph 13.03. Progress payments for cost-based Work will be based on Cost
of the Work completed by Contractor during the pay period.

B. Applications for Payments

1. At least 20 days before the date established in the Agreement for each progress payment
{but not more often than once a month), Contractor shall submit to Engineer and Owner’s
Inspector for review an Application for Payment filled out and signed by Contractor
covering the Work completed as of the date of the Application and accompanied by such
supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents, including an
updated CPM project schedule, evidence of as-built notations in the Construction
Documents, and all updated logs.

2. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated in the
Work but delivered and suitably and securely stored at the Site or at another location
agreed to in writing, the Application for Payment must also be accompanied by: (a) a bill
of sale, invoice, copies of subcontract or purchase order payments, or other

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 60 of 71



4,

documentation establishing full payment by Contractor for the materials and equipment;
(b) at Owner’s request, documentation warranting that Owner has received the materials
and equipment free and clear of all Liens; and (c) evidence that the materials and
equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance, a warehouse bond, or other
arrangements to protect Owner’s interest therein, all of which must be satisfactory to
Owner. Owner shall pay 80% of the value of the materials and equipment until installed,
at which time, Owner shall pay 100%, minus retained amounts.

Beginning with the second Application for Payment, each Application must include an
affidavit of Contractor stating that all previous progress payments received by Contractor
have been applied to discharge Contractor’s legitimate obligations associated with prior
Applications for Payment.

The amount of retainage with respect to progress payments will be as stipulated in the
Agreement and set at 5%

C. Review of Applications

1.

Engineer will, within 10 days after receipt of each Application for Payment, including each
resubmittal, either indicate in writing a recommendation of payment and present the
Application to Owner, or return the Application to Contractor indicating in writing
Engineer’s reasons for refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, Contractor
may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application.

Engineer’s recommendation of any payment requested in an Application for Payment will
constitute a representation by Engineer to Owner, based on Engineer’s observations of
the executed Work as an experienced and qualified design professional, and on Engineer’s
review of the Application for Payment and the accompanying data and schedules, that to
the best of Engineer’s knowledge, information and belief:

a. the Work has progressed to the point indicated;

b. the quality of the Work is generally in accordance with the Contract Documents
(subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon
Substantial Completion, the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract
Documents, a final determination of quantities and classifications for Unit Price Work

under Paragraph 13.03, and any other qualifications stated in the recommendation);
and

c. the conditions precedent to Contractor’s being entitled to such payment appear to
have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer’s responsibility to observe the Work.

By recommending any such payment Engineer will not thereby be deemed to have
represented that:

a. inspections made to check the quality or the quantity of the Work as it has been
performed have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of the Work in progress,
or involved detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically
assigned to Engineer in the Contract; or

b. there may not be other matters or issues between the parties that might entitle
Contractor to be paid additionally by Owner or entitle Owner to withhold payment to
Contractor.

EICDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 61 of 71



4. Neither Engineer’s review of Contractor's Work for the purposes of recommending
payments nor Engineer’s recommendation of any payment, including final payment, will
impose responsibility on Engineer:

a.

b.

to supervise, direct, or control the Work;

for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or
the safety precautions and programs incident thereto;

for Contractor’s failure to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to
Contractor’s performance of the Work;

to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes Contractor has used
the money paid by Owner; or

to determine that title to any of the Work, materials, or equipment has passed to
Owner free and clear of any Liens.

5. Engineer may refuse to recommend the whole or any part of any payment if, in Engineer’s
opinion, it would be incorrect to make the representations to Owner stated in
Paragraph 15.01.C.2.

6. Engineer will recommend reductions in payment (set-offs) necessary in Engineer’s
opinion to protect Owner from loss because:

a.
b.

the Work is defective, requiring correction or replacement;
the Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;

Owner has been required to correct defective Work in accordance with
Paragraph 14.07, or has accepted defective Work pursuant to Paragraph 14.04;

Owner has been required to remove or remediate a Hazardous Environmental
Condition for which Contractor is responsible; or

Engineer has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events that would
constitute a default by Contractor and therefore justify termination for cause under
the Contract Documents.

D. Payment Becomes Due

1. Thirty days after approval of the Application for Payment by Owner with Engineer’s
recommendation, the amount recommended (subject to any Owner set-offs) will become
due, and when due will be paid by Owner to Contractor.

E. Reductions in Payment by Owner

1. Inaddition to any reductions in payment (set-offs) recommended by Engineer, Owner is
entitled to impose a set-off against payment based on any of the following:

d.

Claims have been made against Owner based on Contractor’s conduct in the
performance or furnishing of the Work, or Owner has incurred costs, losses, or
damages resulting from Contractor’s conduct in the performance or furnishing of the
Work, including but not limited to claims, costs, losses, or damages from workplace
injuries, adjacent property damage, non-compliance with Laws and Regulations, and
patent infringement;

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 62 of 71



b. Contractor has failed to take reasonable and customary measures to avoid damage,
delay, disruption, and interference with other work at or adjacent to the Site;

c. Contractor has failed to provide and maintain required bonds or insurance;

d. Owner has been required to remove or remediate a Hazardous Environmental
Condition for which Contractor is responsible;

e. Owner has incurred extra charges or engineering costs related to submittal reviews,
evaluations of proposed substitutes, tests and inspections, or return visits to
manufacturing or assembly facilities;

f. The Work is defective, requiring correction or replacement;

g. Owner has been required to correct defective Work in accordance with
Paragraph 14.07, or has accepted defective Work pursuant to Paragraph 14.04;

h. The Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;

i. An event has occurred that would constitute a default by Contractor and therefore
justify a termination for cause;

j. Lliquidated or other damages have accrued as a result of Contractor’s failure to
achieve Milestones, Substantial Completion, or final completion of the Work;

k. Liens have been filed in connection with the Work, except where Contractor has
delivered a specific bond satisfactory to Owner to secure the satisfaction and
discharge of such Liens; or

I.  Other items entitle Owner to a set-off against the amount recommended.

If Owner imposes any set-off against payment, whether based on its own knowledge or
on the written recommendations of Engineer, Owner will give Contractor immediate
written notice (with a copy to Engineer) stating the reasons for such action and the
specific amount of the reduction, and promptly pay Contractor any amount remaining
after deduction of the amount so withheld. Owner shall promptly pay Contractor the
amount so withheld, or any adjustment thereto agreed to by Owner and Contractor, if
Contractor remedies the reasons for such action. The reduction imposed will be binding
on Contractor unless it duly submits a Change Proposal contesting the reduction.

Upon a subsequent determination that Owner’s refusal of payment was not justified, the
amount wrongfully withheld will be treated as an amount due as determined by
Paragraph 15.01.D.1 and subject to interest as provided in the Agreement.

15.02 Contractor’s Warranty of Title

A.

Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials, and equipment furnished
under the Contract will pass to Owner free and clear of (1) all Liens and other title defects,
and (2) all patent, licensing, copyright, or royalty obligations, no later than 7 days after the
time of payment by Owner.

15.03 Substantial Completion

A. When Contractor considers the entire Work ready for its intended use and substantially

complete per the Contract Documents, Contractor shall notify Owner and Engineer in writing
that the entire Work is substantially complete and request that Engineer and Owner issue a

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 63 0f 71



certificate of Substantial Completion. Contractor shall at the same time submit to Owner and
Engineer an initial draft of punch list items to be completed or corrected before final payment.

Promptly after Contractor’s notification, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an
inspection of the Work to determine the status of completion. If Engineer or Owner does not
consider the Work substantially complete, Engineer will notify Contractor in writing giving the
reasons therefor.

If Engineer and Owner’s Inspector considers the Work substantially complete, Engineer will
deliver to Owner a preliminary certificate of Substantial Completion which will fix the date of
Substantial Completion. Engineer shall attach to the certificate a punch list of items to be
completed or corrected before final payment. Owner shall have 7 days after receipt of the
preliminary certificate during which to make written objection to Engineer as to any
provisions of the certificate or attached punch list. If, after considering the objections to the
provisions of the preliminary certificate, Engineer concludes that the Work is not substantially
complete, Engineer will, within 14 days after submission of the preliminary certificate to
Owner, notify Contractor in writing that the Work is not substantially complete, stating the
reasons therefor. If Owner does not object to the provisions of the certificate, then Engineer
will, within said 14 days, execute and deliver to Owner and Contractor a final certificate of
Substantial Completion (with a revised punch list of items to be completed or corrected)
reflecting such changes from the preliminary certificate as Engineer believes justified after
consideration of any objections from Owner.

At the time of receipt of the preliminary certificate of Substantial Completion, Owner and
Contractor will confer regarding Owner’s use or occupancy of the Work following Substantial
Completion, review the builder’s risk insurance policy with respect to the end of the builder’s
risk coverage, and confirm the transition to coverage of the Work under a permanent
property insurance policy held by Owner. Unless Owner and Contractor agree otherwise in
writing, Owner shall bear responsibility for security, operation, protection of the Work,
property insurance, maintenance, heat, and utilities upon Owner’s use or occupancy of the
Work.

After Substantial Completion the Contractor shall promptly begin work on the punch list of
items to be completed or corrected within 30 calendar days and prior to final payment..
Owner shall have the right to exclude Contractor from the Site after the date of Substantial
Completion subject to allowing Contractor reasonable access to remove its property and
complete or correct items on the punch list.

15.04 Partial Use or Occupancy

A.

Prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, Owner may use or occupy any substantially
completed part of the Work which has specifically been identified in the Contract Documents,
or which Owner, Engineer, and Contractor agree constitutes a separately functioning and
usable part of the Work that can be used by Owner for its intended purpose without
significant interference with Contractor’s performance of the remainder of the Work, subject
to the following conditions:

1. At any time, Owner may request in writing that Contractor permit Owner to use or occupy
any such part of the Work that Owner believes to be substantially complete. If and when
Contractor agrees that such part of the Work is substantially complete, Contractor,

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page640of 71



Owner, and Engineer will follow the procedures of Paragraph 15.03.A through 15.03.E for
that part of the Work.

At any time, Contractor may notify Owner and Engineer in writing that Contractor
considers any such part of the Work substantially complete and request Engineer to issue
a certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work.

Within a reasonable time after either such request, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall
make an inspection of that part of the Work to determine its status of completion. If
Engineer does not consider that part of the Work to be substantially complete, Engineer
will notify Owner and Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor. If Engineer
considers that part of the Work to be substantially complete, the provisions of
Paragraph 15.03 will apply with respect to certification of Substantial Completion of that
part of the Work and the division of responsibility in respect thereof and access thereto.

No use or occupancy or separate operation of part of the Work may occur prior to
compliance with the requirements of Paragraph 6.04 regarding builder’s risk or other
property insurance.

15.05 Final Inspection

A. Upon written notice from Contractor that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is
complete, Engineer will promptly make a final inspection with Owner and Contractor and will
notify Contractor in writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work, or
agreed portion thereof, is incomplete or defective. Contractor shall immediately take such
measures as are necessary to complete such Work or remedy such deficiencies.

15.06 Final Payment

A. Application for Payment

1.

2.

After Contractor has, in the opinion of Engineer, satisfactorily completed all corrections
identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with the Contract
Documents, all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds,
certificates or other evidence of insurance, certificates of inspection, annotated record
documents (as provided in Paragraph 7.12), and other documents, Contractor may make
application for final payment.

The final Application for Payment must be accompanied (except as previously delivered)
by:

a. all documentation called for in the Contract Documents;
b. consent of the surety, if any, to final payment;

c. satisfactory evidence that all title issues have been resolved such that title to all Work,
materials, and equipment has passed to Owner free and clear of any Liens or other
title defects, or will so pass upon final payment.

d. alist of all duly pending Change Proposals and Claims; and

e. complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to Owner) of all Lien
rights arising out of the Work, and of Liens filed in connection with the Work.

In lieu of the releases or waivers of Liens specified in Paragraph 15.06.A.2 and as approved
by Owner, Contractor may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit of Contractor

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 65 of 71



B.

that: (a) the releases and receipts include all labor, services, material, and equipment for
which a Lien could be filed; and (b) all payrolls, material and equipment bills, and other
indebtedness connected with the Work for which Owner might in any way be responsible,
or which might in any way result in liens or other burdens on Owner's property, have been
paid or otherwise satisfied. If any Subcontractor or Supplier fails to furnish such a release
or receipt in full, Contractor may furnish a bond or other collateral satisfactory to Owner
to indemnify Owner against any Lien, or Owner at its option may issue joint checks
payable to Contractor and specified Subcontractors and Suppliers.

Engineer’s Review of Final Application and Recommendation of Payment: If, on the basis of
Engineer’s and Owner’s Inspector’s observation of the Work during construction and final
inspection, and Engineer’'s and Owner’s Inspector’s review of the final Application for
Payment and accompanying documentation as required by the Contract Documents, Engineer
and Ownet’s Inspector is satisfied that the Work has been completed and Contractor’s other
obligations under the Contract have been fulfilled, Engineer will, within 10 days after receipt
of the final Application for Payment, indicate in writing Engineer’s recommendation of final
payment and present the final Application for Payment to Owner for payment. Such
recommendation will account for any set-offs against payment that are necessary in
Engineer’s opinion to protect Owner from loss for the reasons stated above with respect to
progress payments. Otherwise, Engineer will return the Application for Payment to
Contractor, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to recommend final payment, in
which case Contractor shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for
Payment.

Notice of Acceptability: In support of its recommendation of payment of the final Application
for Payment, Engineer will also give written notice to Owner and Contractor that the Work is
acceptable, subject to stated limitations in the notice and to the provisions of
Paragraph 15.07.

Completion of Work: The Work is complete (subject to surviving obligations) when it is ready
for final payment as established by the Engineer’s written recommendation of final payment
and issuance of notice of the acceptability of the Work.

Final Payment Becomes Due: Upon receipt from Engineer of the final Application for Payment
and accompanying documentation, Owner shall set off against the amount recommended by
Engineer for final payment any further sum to which Owner is entitled, including but not
limited to set-offs for liquidated damages and set-offs allowed under the provisions of this
Contract with respect to progress payments. Owner shall pay the resulting balance due to
Contractor within 30 days of Owner’s approval of the final Application for Payment from
Engineer.’

15.07 Waiver of Claims

A.

By making final payment, Owner waives its claim or right to liquidated damages or other
damages for late completion by Contractor, except as set forth in an outstanding Claim,
appeal under the provisions of Article 17, set-off, or express reservation of rights by Owner.
Owner reserves all other claims or rights after final payment.

The acceptance of final payment by Contractor will constitute a waiver by Contractor of all
claims and rights against Owner other than those pending matters that have been duly
submitted as a Claim, or appealed under the provisions of Article 17.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 66 of 71



15.08 Correction Period

A.

If within one year after the date of Substantial Completion (or such longer period of time as
may be prescribed by the Supplementary Conditions or the terms of any applicable special
guarantee required by the Contract Documents or material manufacturer), Owner gives
Contractor written notice that any Work has been found to be defective, or that Contractor’s
repair of any damages to the Site or adjacent areas has been found to be defective, then after
receipt of such notice of defect Contractor shall promptly, without cost to Owner and in
accordance with Owner’s written instructions:

1. correct the defective repairs to the Site or such adjacent areas;
2. correct such defective Work;

3. remove the defective Work from the Project and replace it with Work that is not
defective, if the defective Work has been rejected by Owner, and

4. satisfactorily correct or repair or remove and replace any damage to other Work, to the
work of others, or to other land or areas resulting from the corrective measures.

Owner shall give any such notice of defect within 60 days of the discovery that such Work or
repairs is defective. If such notice is given within such 60 days but after the end of the
correction period, the notice will be deemed a notice of defective Work under
Paragraph 7.17.B.

If, after receipt of a notice of defect within 60 days and within the correction period,
Contractor does not promptly comply with the terms of Owner’s written instructions, or in an
emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, Owner may have the
defective Work corrected or repaired or may have the rejected Work removed and replaced.
Contractor shall pay all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration
or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or repair or such
removal and replacement (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of
work of others). Contractor’s failure to pay such costs, losses, and damages within 10 days of
invoice from Owner will be deemed the start of an event giving rise to a Claim under
Paragraph 12.01.B, such that any related Claim must be brought within 30 days of the failure
to pay.

In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service
before Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction period for that item may start
to run from an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications.

Where defective Work (and damage to other Work resulting therefrom) has been corrected
or removed and replaced under this paragraph, the correction period hereunder with respect
to such Work will be extended for an additional period of one year after such correction or
removal and replacement has been satisfactorily completed.

Contractot’s obligations under this paragraph are in addition to all other obligations and
warranties. The provisions of this paragraph are not to be construed as a substitute for, or a
waiver of, the provisions of any applicable statute of limitation or repose.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 67 of 71



ARTICLE 16—SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION

16.01 Owner May Suspend Work

A.

At any time and without cause, Owner may suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a
period of not more than 90 consecutive days by written notice to Contractor and Engineer.
Such notice will fix the date on which Work will be resumed. Contractor shall resume the Work
on the date so fixed. Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Price or an
extension of the Contract Times directly attributable to any such suspension. Any Change
Proposal seeking such adjustments must be submitted no later than 30 days after the date
fixed for resumption of Work.

16.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause

A.

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events will constitute a default by
Contractor and justify termination for cause:

1. Contractor’s persistent failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents (including, but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or
suitable materials or equipment, or failure to adhere to the Progress Schedule);

2. Failure of Contractor to perform or otherwise to comply with a material term of the
Contract Documents;

3. Contractor’s disregard of Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction; or

4. Contractor’s repeated disregard of the authority of Owner or Engineer.

5. Contractor’s absence from the site for more than two (2) weeks without Owner’s consent
or Contractor’s absence from the site for more than thirty (30) days without justifiable
cause.

If one or more of the events identified in Paragraph 16.02.A occurs, then after giving
Contractor (and any surety) 10 days’ written notice that Owner is considering a declaration
that Contractor is in default and termination of the Contract, Owner may proceed to:

1. declare Contractor to be in default, and give Contractor (and any surety) written notice
that the Contract is terminated; and

2. enforce the rights available to Owner under any applicable performance bond.

Subject to the terms and operation of any applicable performance bond, if Owner has
terminated the Contract for cause, Owner may exclude Contractor from the Site, take
possession of the Work, incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the
Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere, and complete
the Work as Owner may deem expedient.

Owner may not proceed with termination of the Contract under Paragraph 16.02.B if
Contractor within 7 days of receipt of notice of intent to terminate begins to correct its failure
to perform and proceeds diligently to cure such failure.

If Owner proceeds as provided in Paragraph 16.02.B, Contractor shall not be entitled to
receive any further payment until the Work is completed. If the unpaid balance of the
Contract Price exceeds the cost to complete the Work, including all related claims, costs,
losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects,

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 68 of 71



attorneys, and other professionals) sustained by Owner, such excess will be paid to
Contractor. If the cost to complete the Work including such related claims, costs, losses, and
damages exceeds such unpaid balance, Contractor shall pay the difference to Owner. Such
claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred by Owner will be reviewed by Engineer as to their
reasonableness and, when so approved by Engineer, incorporated in a Change Order. When
exercising any rights or remedies under this paragraph, Owner shall not be required to obtain
the lowest price for the Work performed.

Where Contractor’s services have been so terminated by Owner, the termination will not
affect any rights or remedies of Owner against Contractor then existing or which may
thereafter accrue, or any rights or remedies of Owner against Contractor or any surety under
any payment bond or performance bond. Any retention or payment of money due Contractor
by Owner will not release Contractor from liability.

If and to the extent that Contractor has provided a performance bond under the provisions
of Paragraph 6.01.A, the provisions of that bond will govern over any inconsistent provisions
of Paragraphs 16.02.B and 16.02.D.

16.03 Owner May Terminate for Convenience

A.

Upon 7 days’ written notice to Contractor and Engineer, Owner may, without cause and
without prejudice to any other right or remedy of Owner, terminate the Contract. In such
case, Contractor shall be paid for (without duplication of any items):

1. completed and acceptable Work executed in accordance with the Contract Documents
prior to the effective date of termination, including fair and reasonable sums for overhead
and profit on such Work;

2. expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing services and
furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the Contract Documents in
connection with uncompleted Work, plus fair and reasonable sums for overhead and
profit on such expenses; and

3. other reasonable expenses directly attributable to termination, including costs incurred
to prepare a termination for convenience cost proposal.

Contractor shall not be paid for any loss of anticipated profits or revenue, post-termination
overhead costs, or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination.

16.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate

A.

If, through no act or fault of Contractor, (1) the Work is suspended for more than 90
consecutive days by Owner or under an order of court or other public authority, or (2)
Engineer fails to act on any Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or (3)
Owner fails for 45 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, then
Contractor may, upon 7 days’ written notice to Owner and Engineer, and provided Owner or
Engineer do not remedy such suspension or failure within that time, terminate the contract
and recover from Owner payment on the same terms as provided in Paragraph 16.03.

In lieu of terminating the Contract and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if
Engineer has failed to act on an Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted,
or Owner has failed for 45 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due,
Contractor may, 7 days after written notice to Owner and Engineer, stop the Work until
payment is made of all such amounts due Contractor, including interest thereon. The

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.

Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 69 of 71



provisions of this paragraph are not intended to preclude Contractor from submitting a
Change Proposal for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times or otherwise for
expenses or damage directly attributable to Contractor’s stopping the Work as permitted by
this paragraph.

ARTICLE 17—FINAL RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES

17.01 Methods and Procedures

A. Disputes Subject to Final Resolution: The following disputed matters are subject to final
resolution under the provisions of this article:

1. Atimely appeal of an approval in part and denial in part of a Claim, or of a denial in full,
pursuant to Article 12; and

2. Disputes between Owner and Contractor concerning the Work, or obligations under the
Contract Documents, that arise after final payment has been made.

B. Final Resolution of Disputes: For any dispute subject to resolution under this article, Owner or
Contractor may:

1. elect in writing to invoke the dispute resolution process provided for in the
Supplementary Conditions;

2. agree with the other party to submit the dispute to another dispute resolution process;
or

3. if no dispute resolution process is provided for in the Supplementary Conditions or
mutually agreed to, give written notice to the other party of the intent to submit the
dispute to a court of competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 18 —MISCELLANEOUS

18.01 Giving Notice

A. Whenever any provision of the Contract requires the giving of written notice to Owner,
Engineer, or Contractor, it will be deemed to have been validly given only if delivered:

1. in person, by a commercial courier service or otherwise, to the recipient’s place of
business;

2. by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the recipient’s place of business; or

3. by e-mail to the recipient, with the words “Formal Notice” or similar in the e-mail’s subject
line.

18.02 Computation of Times

A. When any period of time is referred to in the Contract by days, it will be computed to exclude
the first and include the last day of such period. If the last day of any such period falls on a
Saturday or Sunday or on a day made a legal holiday by the law of the applicable jurisdiction,
such day will be omitted from the computation, unless noted otherwise. Calendar days will
be computed per the Gregorian calendar.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 70 of 71



18.03

18.04

18.05

18.06

18.07

18.08

18.09

18.10

Cumulative Remedies

A. The duties and obligations imposed by these General Conditions and the rights and remedies
available hereunder to the parties hereto are in addition to, and are not to be construed in
any way as a limitation of, any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are
otherwise imposed or available by Laws or Regulations, by special warranty or guarantee, or
by other provisions of the Contract. The provisions of this paragraph will be as effective as if
repeated specifically in the Contract Documents in connection with each particular duty,
obligation, right, and remedy to which they apply.

Limitation of Damages

A. With respect to any and all Change Proposals, Claims, disputes subject to final resolution, and
other matters at issue, neither Owner nor Engineer, nor any of their officers, directors,
members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, shall be liable to
Contractor for any claims, costs, losses, or damages sustained by Contractor on or in
connection with any other project or anticipated project.

No Waiver

A. A party’s non-enforcement of any provision will not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor
will it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Contract.

Survival of Obligations

A. All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by, or
given in accordance with the Contract, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in the
Contract, will survive final payment, completion, and acceptance of the Work or termination
of the Contract or of the services of Contractor.

Controlling Law

A. This Contract is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.

Assignment of Contract

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party to this
Contract of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on the other party
without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without
limitation, money that may become due and money that is due may not be assigned without
such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law),
and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no
assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the
Contract.

Successors and Assigns

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to
the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all
covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

Headings

A. Article and paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only and do not constitute parts
of these General Conditions.

EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract.
Copyright® 2018 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 71 0f 71



MONTANA
PREVAILING WAGE RATES FOR HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 2024

Effective: January 13, 2024

Greg Gianforte, Governor
State of Montana

Sarah Swanson, Commissioner
Department of Labor & Industry

To obtain copies of prevailing wage rate schedules, or for information relating to public works projects and payment of prevailing

wage rates, visit ERD at erd.dli,mt.gov/labor-standards or contact:

Employment Relations Division

Montana Department of Labor and industry
P. 0. Box 8011

Helena, MT 59620-1503

Phone 406-444-6543

The department welcomes questions, comments, and suggestions from the pubilic. In addition, we’ll do our best to provide
information in an accessible format, upon request, in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

MONTANA PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS

The Commissioner of the Department of Labor and Industry, in accordance with Sections 18-2-401 and 18-2-402 of the
Montana Code Annotated (MCA), has determined the standard prevailing rate of wages for the occupations listed in this
publication.

The wages specified herein control the prevailing rate of wages for the purposes of Section 18-2-401, et seq., MCA. It is required
each employer pay (as a minimum) the rate of wages, including fringe benefits, travel allowance, zone pay and per diem
applicable to the district in which the work is being performed as provided in the attached wage determinations.

All Montana Prevailing Wage Rates are available on the internet at erd.dli.mt.¢ov/lahar-standards or by contacting the
department at (406) 444-6543.

In addition, this publication provides general information concerning compliance with Montana’s Prevailing Wage Law and the
payment of prevailing wages. For detailed compliance information relating to public works contracts and payment of prevailing

wage rates, please consult the regulations on the internet at erd.dli.mt.gov/laborstandards or contact the department at (406)
444-6543.

SARAH SWANSON

Commissioner

Department of Labor and Industry
State of Montana



TABLE OF CONTENTS

MONTANA PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS:

POTVOZIrR-TIPMMUODE

Date of Publication

Dispatch City
Zone Pay

Per Diem ...

Definition of Highway Construction
Definition of Public Works Contract
Prevailing Wage Schedule
Rates to Use for Projects
Wage Rate Adjustments for Multiyear Contracts
Fringe Benefits

Computing Travel Benefits

Apprentices

Welder Rates
Foreman Rates

WAGE RATES:

BRICK, BLOCK, AND STONE MASONS

CARPENTERS ...

CEMENT MASONS AND CONCRETE FINISHERS

Posting Notice of Prevailing Wages
Employment Preference

Projects of a Mixed Nature
Occupations Definitions Website

CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT OPERATORS

OPERATORS GROUP 1.
OPERATORS GROUP 2
OPERATORS GROUP 3
OPERATORS GROUP 4
OPERATORS GROUP 5
OPERATORS GROUP 6
OPERATORS GROUP 7

CONSTRUCTION LABORERS

DIVERS

LABORERS GROUP 1
LABORERS GROUP 2
LABORERS GROUP 3
LABORERS GROUP 4

LINE CONSTRUCTION

MILLWRIGHTS
PAINTERS

PILE BUCKS
TRUCK DRIVERS

EQUIPMENT OPERATOR
GROUNDMAN
LINEMAN

U hbb,hAr,b,,OOWWWWW



A. Date of Publication Effective January 13, 2024

B. Definition of Highway Construction

The Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM), 24.17.501(3) - (3)(a), states “Highway construction projects include,
but are not limited to, the construction, alteration, or repair of roads, streets, highways, runways, taxiways, alleys,
trails, paths, and parking areas, bridges constructed or repaired in conjunction with highway work, and other similar
projects not incidental to building construction or heavy construction.

Highway construction projects include, but are not limited to, alleys, base courses, bituminous treatments, bridle
paths, concrete pavement, curbs, excavation and embankment (for road construction), fencing (highway), grade
crossing elimination (overpasses or underpasses), guard rails on highways, highway signs, highway bridges
(overpasses, underpasses, grade separation), medians, parking lots, parkways, resurfacing streets and highways,
roadbeds, roadways, runways, shoulders, stabilizing courses, storm sewers incidental to road construction, street
paving, surface courses, taxiways, and trails.”

C. Definition of Public Works Contract

Section 18-2-401(11)a), MCA defines “public works contract” as “..a contract for construction services let by the
state, county, municipality, school district, or political subdivision or for nonconstruction services let by the state,
county, municipality, or political subdivision in which the total cost of the contract is in excess of $25,000...”.

D. Prevailing Wage Schedule

This publication covers only Highway Construction occupations and rates in the specific localities mentioned herein.
These rates will remain in effect until superseded by a more current publication. Current prevailing wage rate
schedules for Building Construction, Heavy Construction and Nonconstruction Services occupations can be found on
the internet at www.mtwagehourbopa.com or by contacting the department at (406) 444-6543.

E. Rates to Use for Projects
ARM, 24.17.127(1)(c), states “The wage rates applicable to a particular public works project are those in effect at the
time the bid specifications are advertised.”

F. Wage Rate Adjustments for Multiyear Contracts
Section 18-2-417, MCA states:

“(1) Any public works contract that by the terms of the original contract calls for more than 30 months to fully
perform must include a provision to adjust, as provided in subsection (2), the standard prevailing rate of wages to
be paid to the workers performing the contract.

(2) The standard prevailing rate of wages paid to workers under a contract subject to this section must be adjusted
12 months after the date of the award of the public works contract. The amount of the adjustment must be a 3%
increase. The adjustment must be made and applied every 12 months for the term of the contract.

(3) Any increase in the standard rate of prevailing wages for workers under this section is the sole responsibility of
the contractor and any subcontractors and not the contracting agency.”



G. Fringe Benefits
Section 18-2-412, MCA states:

“(1) To fulfill the obligation...a contractor or subcontractor may:

(a) pay the amount of fringe benefits and the basic hourly rate of pay that is part of the standard prevailing rate of
wages directly to the worker or employee in cash;

(b) make an irrevocable contribution to a trustee or a third person pursuant to a fringe benefit fund, plan, or
program that meets the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 or that is a bona
fide program approved by the U. S. department of labor; or

(c) make payments using any combination of methods set forth in subsections (1)(a) and (1)(b) so that the
aggregate of payments and contributions is not less than the standard prevailing rate of wages, including fringe
benefits and travel allowances, applicable to the district for the particular type of work being performed.

(2) The fringe benefit fund, plan, or program described in subsection (1)(b) must provide benefits to workers or
employees for health care, pensions on retirement or death, life insurance, disability and sickness insurance, or
bona fide programs that meet the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 or that
are approved by the U. S. department of labor.”

Fringe benefits are paid for all hours worked (straight time and overtime hours). However, fringe benefits are not to
be considered a part of the hourly rate of pay for calculating overtime, unless there is a collectively bargained
agreement in effect that specifies otherwise.

H. Dispatch City
ARM, 24.17.103(11), defines dispatch city as “...the courthouse in the city from the following list which is closest to the
center of the job: Billings, Bozeman, Butte, Great Falls, Helena, Kalispeli, Miles City, Missoula and Sidney.”

l. Zone Pay

Zone pay is not travel pay. ARM, 24.17.103(19), defines zone pay as “...an amount added to the base pay; the combined
sum then becomes the new base wage rate to be paid for all hours worked on the project. Zone pay must be determined
by measuring the road miles one way over the shortest practical maintained route from the dispatch city to the center of
the job.” See section H above for a list of dispatch cities.

J. Computing Travel Benefits

ARM, 24.17.103(22), states “ ‘Travel pay,’ also referred to as ‘travel allowance,’ is and must be paid for travel both to
and from the job site, except those with special provisions listed under the classification. The rate is determined by
measuring the road miles one direction over the shortest practical maintained route from the dispatch city or the
employee's home, whichever is closer, to the center of the job.” See section H above for a list of dispatch cities.

K. Per Diem -

ARM, 24.17.103(19), states “ ‘Per diem’ typically covers costs associated with board and lodging expenses. Per diem is
paid when an employee is required to work at a location outside the daily commuting distance and is required to stay at
that location overnight or longer.”

L. Apprentices

Wage rates for apprentices registered in approved federal or state apprenticeship programs are contained in those
programs. Additionally, Section 18-2-416(2), MCA states “...The full amount of any applicable fringe benefits must

be paid to the apprentice while the apprentice is working on the public works contract.” Apprentices not registered
in approved federal or state apprenticeship programs will be paid the appropriate journey level prevailing wage rate
when working on a public works contract.



M. Posting Notice of Prevailing Wages

Section 18-2-406, MCA, provides that contractors, subcontractors, and employers who are “..performing work or
providing construction services under public works contracts, as provided in this part, shall post in a prominent and
accessible site on the project or staging area, not later than the first day of work and continuing for the entire
duration of the project, a legible statement of all wages and fringe benefits to be paid to the employees.”

N. Employment Preference
Sections 18-2-403 and 18-2-409, MCA require contractors to give preference to the employment of bona fide
Montana residents in the performance of work on public works contracts.

0. Projects of a Mixed Nature
Section 18-2-408, MCA states:

“(1) The contracting agency shall determine, based on the preponderance of labor hours to be worked, whether the
public works construction services project is classified as a highway construction project, a heavy construction project, or
a building construction project.

(2) Once the project has been classified, employees in each trade classification who are working on that project must be
paid at the rate for that project classification”

P. Occupations Definitions
You can find definitions for these occupations on the following Bureau of Labor Statistics website:

http://www.bls.gov/oes/current/oces stru.bitm

Q. Welder Rates
Welders receive the rate prescribed for the craft performing an operation to which welding is incidental.

R. Foreman Rates
Rates are no longer set for foremen. However, if a foreman performs journey level work, the foreman must be paid
at least the journey level rate.



WAGE RATES

BRICK, BLOCK, AND STONE MASONS

Wage Benefit
$33.11 $17.39

1 Back to Table of Contents

CARPENTERS
Wage Benefit
$34.50 $14.07
I Back to Table of Contents

CEMENT MASONS AND CONCRETE FINISHERS

Wage Benefit
$33.41 $16.51

Duties Include:

Smooth and finish surfaces of poured concrete, such as
floors, walks, sidewalks, or curbs. Aligh forms for
sidewalks, curbs, or gutters.

t Back to Table of Contents

CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT OPERATORS GROUP 1

Wage Benefit
$31.65 $12.37

This group includes but is not limited to:

Air Compressor; Auto Fine Grader; Belt Finishing; Boring
Machine (Small); Cement Silo; Crane, A-Frame Truck Crane;
Crusher Conveyor; DW-10, 15, and 20 Tractor Roller; Farm
Tractor; Forklift; Form Grader; Front-End Loader, under 1
cu. yd; Qiler, Heavy Duty Drills; Herman Nelson Heater;
Mucking Machine; Oiler, All Except Cranes/Shovels;
Pumpman.

Travel:

Travel:

All Districts

0-70 mi. free zone
>70-90 mi. $60.00/day
>90 mi. $80.00/day

Zone Pay:

0-30 mi. free zone

>30-60 mi. base pay + $4.00/hr.
>60 mi. base pay + $6.00/hr.

Zone Pay:

0-25 mi. free zone

>25-50 mi. base pay + $2.50/hr.
>50 mi. base pay + $3.00/hr.

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.



CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT OPERATORS GROUP 2

Wage Benefit
$33.68 $12.37

This group includes but is not limited to:

Air Doctor; Backhoe\Excavator\Shovel, up to and incl. 3 cu.
yds; Bit Grinder; Bitunimous Paving Travel Plant; Boring
Machine, Large; Broom, Self-Propelled; Concrete Travel
Batcher; Concrete Float & Spreader; Concrete Bucket
Dispatcher; Concrete Finish Machine; Concrete Conveyor;
Distributor; Dozer, Rubber-Tired, Push, & Side Boom;
Elevating Grader\Gradall; Field Equipment Serviceman;
Front-End Loader, 1 cu. yd up to and incl. 5 cu. yds; Grade
Setter; Heavy Duty Drills, All Types; Hoist\Tugger, All;
Hydralift Forklifts & Similar; Industrial Locomotive; Motor
Patrol (except finish); Mountain Skidder; Oiler,
Cranes\Shovels; Pavement Breaker, EMSCO; Power Saw,
Self-Propelled; Pugmill; Pumpcrete\Grout Machine; Punch
Truck; Roller, other than Asphalt; Rollier, Sheepsfoot (Self-
Propelled); Roller, 25 tons and over; Ross Carrier; Rotomill,
under 6 ft; Trenching Machine; Washing /Screening Plant

1 Back to Table of Contents

CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT OPERATORS GROUP 3

Wage Benefit
$34.79 $12.37

This group includes but is not limited to:

Asphalt Paving Machine; Asphalt Screed,;
Backhoe\Excavator\Shovel, over 3 cu. yds; Cableway
Highline; Concrete Batch Plant; Concrete Curing Machine;
Concrete Pump; Cranes, Creter; Cranes, Electric Overhead;
Cranes, 24 tons and under; Curb Machine\Slip Form Paver;
Finish Dozer; Front-End Loader, over 5 cu. yds;
Mechanic\Welder; Pioneer Dozer; Roller Asphalt
(Breakdown & Finish); Rotomill, over 6 ft; Scraper, Single,
Twin, or Pulling Belly-Dump; YO-YO Cat Haul Truck,
Articulating Trucks, Vac Truck.

1 Back to Table of Contents

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.



CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT OPERATORS GROUP 4

Wage Benefit
$35.73 $1237

This group includes but is not limited to:

Asphalt\Hot Plant Operator; Cranes, 25 tons up to and incl.
44 tons; Crusher Operator; Finish Motor Patrol; Finish
Scraper.

J-Back to Table of Contents

CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT OPERATORS GROUP 5

Wage Benefit
$37.07 $12.37

This group includes but is not limited to:
Cranes, 45 tons up to and incl. 74 tons.

1 Back to Table of Contents

CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT OPERATORS GROUP 6

Wage Benefit
$38.26 $12.37

This group includes but is not limited to:
Cranes, 75 tons up to and incl. 149 tons; Cranes, Whirley
(All).

1 Back to Table of Conterts

CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT OPERATORS GROUP 7

Wage Benefit
$40.86 $12.37

This group includes but is not limited to:

Cranes, 150 tons up to and incl. 250 tons; Cranes, over
250 tons—add $1.00 for every 100 tons over 250 tons;
Crane, Tower (All); Crane Stiff-Leg or Derrick; Helicopter
Hoist.

1 Back to Table of Contents

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.



CONSTRUCTION LABORERS GROUP 1/FLAG PERSON FOR TRAFFIC CONTROL

Wage Benefit
$26.90 $12.80
1 Back 1o Table of Contents

CONSTRUCTION LABORERS GROUP 2

Wage Benefit
$26.97 $11.82

This group includes but is not limited to:

General Labor; Asbestos Removal; Burning Bar; Bucket
Man; Carpenter Tender; Caisson Worker; Cement Mason
Tender; Cement Handler (dry); Chuck Tender; Choker
Setter; Concrete Worker; Curb Machine-lay Down; Crusher
and Batch Worker; Heater Tender; Fence Erector;
Landscape Laborer; Landscaper; Lawn Sprinkler Installer;
Pipe Wrapper; Pot Tender; Powderman Tender; Rail and
Truck Loaders and Unloaders; Riprapper:; Sign Erection;
Guardrail and Jersey Rail; Spike Driver; Stake Jumper;
Signalman; Tail Hoseman; Tool Checker and Houseman
and Traffic Control Worker. ’

1 Back to Table of Contents

CONSTRUCTION LABORERS GROUP 3

Wage Benefit
$30.19 $11.82

This group includes but is not limited to:

Concrete Vibrator; Dumpman (Grademan); Equipment
Handler; Geotextile and Liners; High-Pressure Nozzleman;
Jackhammer (Pavement Breaker) Non-Riding Rollers;
Pipelayer; Posthole Digger (Power); Power Driven
Wheelbarrow; Rigger; Sandblaster; Sod Cutter-Power and
Tamper.

1 Back to Table of Contents

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.

Zone Pay.
No zone pay established.



CONSTRUCTION LABORERS GROUP 4

Wage
$31.18

Benefit
$11.82

This group includes but is not limited to:

Hod Carrier***; Water Well Laborer; Blaster; Wagon Driller;
Asphalt Raker; Cutting Torch; Grade Setter; High-Scaler;
Power Saws (Faller & Concrete); Powderman; Rock & Core
Drili; Track or Truck Mounted Wagon Drill and Welder incl.

Air Arc.

1 Back to Table of Contents

DIVERS

Wage
Stand-By $48.51
Diving $97.52

Depth Pay (Surface Diving)
0-20 ft. free zone

>20-100 ft. $2.00 per ft.
>100-150 ft. ~ $3.00 per ft.
>150-220ft.  $4.00 per ft.

>220 ft. $5.00 per ft.
Diving In Enclosures
0-25 ft. free zone
>25-300 ft. $1.00 per ft.
ble of Ca

DIVER TENDERS

Wage

$47 .55

The tender shall receive 2 hours at the straight time pay
rate per shift for dressing and/or undressing a Diver when

Benefit
$16.05
$16.05

Benefit
$16.05

work is done under hyperbaric conditions.

1. Back to Table of Contents

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.

Zone Pay:

0-30 mi. free zone

>30-60 mi. base pay + $4.00/hr,
>80 mi. base pay + $6.00/hr.

Zone Pay:

0-30 mi. free zone

>30-60 mi. base pay + $4.00/hr.
>60 mi. base pay + $6.00/hr.

10



ELECTRICIANS

Wage
$38.86

Benefit
$17.75

T Back to Table of Contents

IRONWORKERS - REINFORCING IRON AND REBAR WORKERS

Wage
$33.95

Benefit
$24.50

Duties Include:

Structural steel erection; assemble prefabricated metal
buildings; cut, bend, tie, and place rebar; energy producing
windmill type towers; metal bleacher seating; handrail
fabrication and ornamental steel.

1 Back to Table of Contents

IRONWORKERS - STRUCTURAL IRON AND STEEL WORKERS

Wage
$33.95

Benefit
$24 50

Duties Include:

Structural steel erection; assemble prefabricated metal
buildings; cut, bend, tie, and place rebar; energy producing
windmill type towers; metal bleacher seating; handrail
fabrication and ornamental steel.

LINE CONSTRUCTION - EQUIPMENT OPERATORS

Benefit
$17.93

Wage
$38.56

Duties Include:
All work on substations

1 Back to Table of Contents

11

Travel:
No mileage due when traveling in employer’s vehicle.

The following travel allowance is applicable when traveling
in employee's vehicle:

0-18 mi. free zone
>18-60 mi. federal mileage rate/mi.

Per Diem

District 4

>60 mi. $80.00/day

Per Diem in Big Sky and West Yellowstone $125/day.

Travel:

All Districts

0-45 mi. free zone
>45-85 mi. $100.00/day
>85 mi. $150.00/day

Travel:

All Districts

0-45 mi. free zone
>45-85 mi. $100.00/day
>85 mi. $150.00/day

Travel:
No Free Zone
$60.00/day



LINE CONSTRUCTION - GROUNDMAN

Wage
$30.11

Duties Include:
All work on substations

1 Back to Table of Contents

Benefit
$17.44

LINE CONSTRUCTION - LINEMAN

Wage
$50.35

Duties Include:
All work on substations

1 Back to Table of Contents

MILLWRIGHTS

Wage
$40.49

1 Back to Table of Contents

PAINTERS

Wage
$36.00

1 Back to Table of Contents

PILE BUCKS

Wage
$34.50

Duties Include:

Set up crane; set up hammer; weld tips on piles; set leads;
insure piles are driven straight with the use of level or plum
bob. Give direction to crane operator as to speed, and

Benefit
$19.54

Benefit
$18.84

Benefit
$12.84

Benefit
$14.07

direction of swing. Cut piles to grade.

1 Back to Table of Contents

12

Travel:
No Free Zone
$60.00/day

Travel:
No Free Zone
$60.00/day

Zone Pay:

0-30 mi. free zone

>30-60 mi. base pay + $4.00/hr.
>60 mi. base pay + $6.00/hr.

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.

Zone Pay:

0-30 mi. free zone

>30-60 mi. base pay + $4.00/hr.
>80 mi. base pay + $6.00/hr.



TRUCK DRIVERS

Wage Benefit
Pilot Car Driver $28.21 $12.57
Truck Driver $30.78 $9.36

Truck drivers include but are not limited to:

Combination Truck and Concrete Mixer and Transit Mixer;
Dry Batch Trucks; Distributor Driver; Dumpman; Dump
Trucks and similar equipment; Dumpster; Flat Trucks;
Lumber Carriers; Lowboys; Pickup; Powder Truck Driver;
Power Boom; Serviceman; Service Truck/Fuel
Truck/Tireperson; Truck Mechanic; Trucks with Power
Equipment; Warehouseman, Partsman, Cardex and
Warehouse Expeditor; Water Trucks.

1 Back to Table of Contents

13

Zone Pay:
No zone pay established.



PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PAVING DISTRICTS #204 & 205

2” Overlay for MD 204

1.

2.

3.

Tompy St. from S. Haynes Ave. to Stacy St. totaling approximately 2305 linear feet with
a width of 38’

Sudlow St. from Sutton Ave. to N. Haynes Ave. totaling approximately 950 linear feet
with a width of 38°.

Moorehead Ave. from Wilson St. to Tompy St. totaling approximately 630 linear feet
with a width of 38°.

Doeden Ave. from Wilson St. to Comstock St. totaling approximately 1289 linear fett
with a width of 40°.

Comstock St. from S. Montana Ave. to S. Prairie totaling approximately 300 linear feet
with a width of 38°.

Bridge Street from Sewell St. to Lynam Circle totaling approximately 1520 linear feet
with a width of 34’

N. Montana Ave. from Main St. to Leighton Blvd. totaling approximately 1200 linear
feet with a width of 50°.

3” Paving on grade for gravel for MD 205:

8.

9.

N. 4 St from Washington St. to dead end totaling approximately 150 linear feet with a
width of 50°
River St. from N. 5% St. to dead end totaling 250 linear feet with a width of 30

10. N. 5% St. from William St. to dead end totaling approximately 300 linear feet with a

width of 30°

Milling-leveling
11. N. Montana Ave. from Main St. to Leighton Blvd. totaling approximately 1200 linear

feet with a width of 50°.



Addenda -/
sheet 7 F =7

g

BID SHEET

MAINTENANCE DISTRICT #204 & 205

ASPHALT PAVING AND OVERLAY

CITY OF MILES CITY
PROPOSAL BID
ITEM ESTIMATED UNIT TOTAL
NO. QUANTITY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE
1. 2,100 TONS MD #204 OVERLAY
WITH 2" COMPACTED 4
DEPTH OF 263 300,00
ASPHALT #/ 73.00 L
PER TON
2 500 TONS MD #205 OVERLAY
WITH 3" COMPACTED p
DEPTH OF
ASPHALT #Ar85.00 74.000,00
PER TON
3. 7,000 Sq. yards STREET 4
o A 5 00 35000,00
PER SY
TOTAL BID:§ 4 72/ 300,00
OPTION OF STREET LEVELING
STREET 4 00
LEVELING 275.6¢

PER TON

—



Addenda #/
Sheet [ of Z

>’

SPECIFICATIONS

This contract consists of the following:

1) Overlaying portions of Tompy St., Sudlow St., Doeden Ave., Moorehead Ave., Comstock St.,
Bridge St. Lyman Circle, and N. Montana and in Maintenance District 204 and compacting in
place an average of 2” thickness of bituminous plant mix surfacing.

2) Paving on grade for gravel N. 4% St., River St., and N. 5% St. in Maintenance District 205 and
compacting in place on average of 3” thickness of bituminous plant mix surfacing.

3) Milling N. Montana in Maintenance District 204.

4) Asphalt shall be pg 58-28 or pg 64-22 penetration, 5 ¥ to 6.0% oil or asphalt similar to or
otherwise approved by the City Public Works Office.

5) All overlay areas shall be sprayed with SS-1 emulsified asphalt tack oil prior to overlaying.

6) Aggregate gradation shall meet the Dept. of Highways grade B requirements unless otherwise
approved by the City Public Works Office.

7) Traffic control and street cleaning prior to paving shall be the responsibility of the City of
Miles City.

8) Street leveling is a separate optional price per ton based on estimated quantities to prepare the
street correctly for paving.

9) It shall be understood by the Contractor, that the total QUANTITIES called for HEREIN ARE
approximate and the Contractor will be paid BASED ON tons of asphalt in place.

All construction under this project including lying, rolling, compacting, etc., shall conform to the
standard specifications for road and bridge construction adopted by the Montana Dept. of
Highways and the Montana Highway Commission. Any deviation from these standards must be
approved by the CITY PUBLIC WORKS OFFICE. All contractors are required to use only tax
paid fuel on this project. If dyed fuel is used on the project the contractor is required to complete
a Fuel Declaration Form available from the Montana Department of Transportation.



BID SHEET
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT #204 & 205

ASPHALT PAVING AND OVERLAY

CITY OF MILES CITY
PROPOSAL BID
ITEM ESTIMATED UNIT TOTAL
NO. QUANTITY DESCRIPTION PRICE PRF-
1. 2,100 TONS MD #204 OVERLAY
WITH 2" COMPACTED
DEPTH OF
ASPHALT
TON
24 500 TONS MD #205 OVERLA
WITH 3" COMP
DEPTH OF
ASPHALT
PER TON
3. 0-500 TONS
LING
PER TON
4. 0-500 TONS
LEVELING
PER TON
TOTAL BID



PROPOSAL

The undersigned bidder, having examined the plans, specifications and other proposed contract
documents will furnish all manpower and equipment necessary to complete the project in
accordance with the attached plans and specifications for the following amount:

oa/‘ aﬂ.aé'eal /\) M&/z/"‘ o -ﬁaa.sczna/- ﬂ;fee -%Mdlcea/ boL/s

PRICE IN WORDS + Zero cents

s 492 300 2=

NUMBER AMOUNT

DATE THIS 09 DAY OF July , 2024,

Century Compénies, Inc.

e DLl

DouglasA Welsh

TITLE: Sr Estimator/PM

ADDRESS: PO Box 579

Lewistown, MT 59457




CONTRACT

THIS CONTRACT, made as of the of 2024, by

and between the CITY OF MILES CITY, MONTANA, hereinafter called the OWNER and

, hereinafter called CONTRACTOR, that said

CONTRACTOR, if a corporation organized under the laws of any state or other jurisdiction
other than the State of Montana, represents that it is licensed and registered to do business in the
State of Montana.

WHEREAS, the OWNER desires to have the following work completed by

CONTRACTOR: mill, mix, pave, overlay, roll, blade, compact, haul, and the doing of all other

work necessary and incidental to the performance of all in maintenance districts 204 and 205,

hereinafter called the PROJECT, in accordance with the Drawings, Specifications and other
Contract Documents prepared by the City Public Works Office, City of Miles City, Miles City,
Montana, 59301, hereinafter called PUBLIC WORKS;

AND WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR desires to complete said PROJECT;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE OWNER and CONTRACTOR for the considerations
herein set forth, agree as follows:

THE CONTRACTOR AGREES to furnish all the necessary labor, materials,
equipment, tools and services necessary to perform and complete in a workmanlike manner all
work required for the construction of the PROJECT described herein, in strict compliance with
the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, which are hereby made a part of the Contract. Contractor
has examined and carefully studied the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, has visited the

PROJECT site, and is familiar with and satisfied as to all federal, state and local laws and



regulations that may affect cost, progress or performance of its obligations hereunder, and agrees
that the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS are generally sufficient to indicate and convey
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of work necessary to
complete the PROJECT.

A. CONTRACT TIME: Work under this Contract shall be commenced upon written

notice to proceed and shall be completed within 45 working days of the commencement of the
Contract Time as defined in the General Conditions. All time limits in this CONTRACT,
including but not limited to milestones, substantial completion, and completion, are material
requirements under this CONTRACT. Actual completion date can be flexible depending upon
certain conditions.

B. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: Subject to the provisions of the General Conditions,

the OWNER shall be entitled to liquidate damages in the amount of FIVE HUNDRED
DOLLARS (8500.00), for each working day delay in the completion of the CONTRACT.

C. SUB-CONTRACTORS: THE CONTRACTOR agrees to bind every sub-

contractor by the terms of the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS shall not be construed as creating any contractual relation between any sub-
contractor and the OWNER.

THE OWNER AGREES to pay and the CONTRACTOR agrees to accept, in full

payment for the performance of this CONTRACT, the CONTRACT amount of

, (8 )} based on

the prices stipulated in the PROPOSAL, and in accordance with the provisions of the

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.



D. PROGRESS PAYMENTS will be made in accordance with the GENERAL

CONDITIONS.

E. "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS": The term "CONTRACT DOCUMENTS" as

used herein shall mean and include the following:
a. (This Instrument)
b. Performance and Payment Bond
¢. Addenda to CONTRACT DOCUMENTS (if any)
d. Legal and Procedural Documents:
1. Proposal
2. Information for Bidders
3. Advertisement for Bids
e. Special Provisions

1. Montana Public Works Standard Specification, Sixth Edition
Auvailable for review in the Engineering Department at City Hall

f. Drawings
g. Detailed Specification Requirements

h. General Conditions

1. EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the
Construction Contract, as may be revised from time to time

i. Information for Bidders

F. AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY OF PUBLIC WORKS: All work shall

be done under the general surveillance of PUBLIC WOKS. PUBLIC WORKS shall decide
any and all questions which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of materials furnished,

work performed, rate of progress of work, interpretation of DRAWINGS and



SPECIFICATIONS and all questions as to the acceptable fulfillment of the CONTRACT on
the part of CONTRACTOR. In acting in this capacity under this CONTRACT, PUBLIC
WORKS is acting as the agent of the OWNER to protect the interests of the OWNER and to
insure that the CONTRACTOR'S work is done in full compliance with the terms of this
CONTRACT and this service does not include direction or supervision of the
CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents or subcontractors, or the inspection of any of the
equipment, installations, temporary storing, or any other of the CONTRACTOR'S operations or
those of his subcontractors, to safeguard their agents or employees, or the general public, or to
prevent damage to public or private property, this being the sole responsibility of the
CONTRACTOR.

G. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: THIS CONTRACT and all of the covenants

hereof shall insure to the benefit of, be binding upon the OWNER and CONTRACTOR
respectively, and his partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives. NEITHER THE
OWNER nor the CONTRACTOR shall have the right to assign or transfer his interests or
obligations hereunder without written consent of the other party.

H. PREFERENCE FOR EMPLOYMENT OF MONTANA RESIDENTS AND

PAYMENT OF PREVAILING WAGES: Pursuant to 18-2-403 MCA the CONTRACTOR is

required to give preference to the employment of bona fide Montana residents in the
performance of the work. The CONTRACTOR is required to pay:

a. the travel allowance that is in effect and applicable to the district in which the
work is being performed; and

b. the standard prevailing rate of wages, including fringe benefits, that is in effect

and applicable to the district in which the work is being performed.



Each CONTRACTOR and employer are required to maintain payroll records in a manner
readily capable of being certified for submission under 18-2-423 MCA, for not less than 3 years
after the CONTRACTOR’S or employer’s completion of work on the project.

Each CONTRACTOR is required to post a statement of all wages and fringe benefits in
compliance with 18-2-423 MCA.

Attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and made a part hereof, is a statement, for each job

classification, the standard prevailing wage rate, including fringe benefits. that the

CONTRATOR and employers shall pav during construction of the project:;

L. NON-DISCRIMINATION: All hiring by CONTRACTOR must be on the basis of
merit and qualifications and there shall not be discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion,
creed, political ideas, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, or national origin by
the persons performing this CONTRACT.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this CONTRACT the

day and year first above written.

City of Miles City

OWNER CONTRACTOR
BY: BY:
Dwayne Andrews
TITLE:___ Mayor TITLE:
City of Miles City
BUSINESS ADDRESS BUSINESS ADDRESS
P.O. Box 910
Miles City, MT 59301
CITY STATE CITY STATE



EJCDC=

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT

DOCUMENTS CONMITTEE _ PERFORMANCE BOND
CONTRACTOR (name and address): SURETY (name and address of principal place of business):
OWNER (name and address):

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
Effective Date of the Agreement:
Amount:

Description (name and location):

BOND
Bond Number:

Date (not eorlier than the Effective Date of the Agreement of the Construction Contract):
Amount:

Modifications to this Bond Form: | | None [ ] See Paragraph 16

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause
this Performance Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY
(seal) (seal)
Contractor’s Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal
By: By:
Signature Signature (attach power of attorney)
Print Name Print Name
Title Title
Attest: Attest:
Signature Signature
Title Title

Notes: (1) Provide supplemental execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers. (2} Any singular reference to
Contractor, Surety, Owner, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

EJCDC® C-610, Performance Bond
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. lof3




1. The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves,
their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns to the
Owner for the performance of the Construction Contract, which is
incorporated herein by reference.

2. If the Contractor performs the Construction Contract, the Surety
and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this Bond, except
when applicable to participate in a conference as provided in
Paragraph 3.

3. If there is no Owner Default under the Construction Contract, the
Surety’s obligation under this Bond shall arise after:

3.1 The Owner first provides notice to the Contractor and
the Surety that the Owner is considering declaring a Contractor
Default. Such notice shall indicate whether the Owner is
requesting a3 conference among the Owner, Contractor, and
Surety to discuss the Contractor's performance. If the Owner
does not request a conference, the Surety may, within five {5}
business days after receipt of the Owner’s notice, request such a
conference. If the Surety timely requests a conference, the
Owner shall attend. Unless the Owner agrees otherwise, any
conference requested under this Paragraph 3.1 shall be held
within ten {10) business days of the Surety’s receipt of the
Owner’s notice. If the Owner, the Contractor, and the Surety
agree, the Contractor shall be aliowed a reasonable time to
perform the Construction Contract, but such an agreement shall
not waive the Owner’s right, if any, subsequently to declare a
Contractor Default;

3.2 The Owner declares a Contractor Default, terminates
the Construction Contract and notifies the Surety; and

3.3 The Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the
Contract Price in accordance with the terms of the Construction
Contract to the Surety or to a contractor selected to perform the
Construction Contract.

4. Failure on the part of the Owner to comply with the notice
requirement in Paragraph 3.1 shall not constitute a failure to comply
with a condition precedent to the Surety’s obligations, or release the
Surety from its obligations, except to the extent the Surety
demonstrates actual prejudice.

5. When the Owner has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 3, the
Surety shall promptly and at the Surety’s expense take one of the
following actions:

5.1 Arrange for the Contractor, with the consent of the
Owner, to perform and complete the Construction Contract;

5.2 Undertake to perform and complete the Construction
Contract itself, through its agents or independent contractors;

5.3 Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified
contractors acceptable to the Owner for a contract for
performance and completion of the Construction Contract,
arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by the Owner
and a contractor selected with the Owners concurrence, to be
secured with performance and payment bonds executed by a

qualified surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the
Construction Contract, and pay to the Owner the amount of
damages as described in Paragraph 7 in excess of the Balance of
the Contract Price incurred by the Owner as a result of the
Contractor Default; or

5.4 Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for
completion, or obtain a new contractor, and with reasonable
promptness under the circumstances:

5.4.1 After investigation, determine the amount for
which it may be liable to the Owner and, as soon as
practicable after the amount is determined, make payment
to the Owner; or

5.4.2 Deny liability in whole or in part and notify the
Owner, citing the reasons for denial.

6. If the Surety does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 5 with
reasonable promptness, the Surety shall be deemed to be in default on
this Bond seven days after receipt of an additional written notice from
the Owner to the Surety demanding that the Surety perform its
obligations under this Bond, and the Owner shall be entitled to enforce
any remedy available to the Owner. If the Surety proceeds as provided
in Paragraph 5.4, and the Owner refuses the payment or the Surety has
denied liability, in whale or in part, without further notice the Owner
shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the Owner.

7. If the Surety elects to act under Paragraph 5.1, 5.2, or 5.3, then
the responsibilities of the Surety to the Owner shall not be greater than
those of the Contractor under the Construction Contract, and the
responsibilities of the Owner to the Surety shall not be greater than
those of the Owner under the Construction Contract. Subject to the
commitment by the Owner to pay the Balance of the Contract Price,
the Surety is obligated, without duplication for:

7.1 the responsibilities of the Contractor for correction of
defective work and completion of the Construction Contract;

7.2 additional legal, design professional, and delay costs
resulting from the Contractor’s Default, and resulting from the
actions or failure to act of the Surety under Paragraph 5; and

73 liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are
specified in the Construction Contract, actual damages caused by
delayed performance or non-performance of the Contractor.

8. If the Surety elects to act under Paragraph 5.1, 5.3, or 5.4, the
Surety’s liability is limited to the amount of this Bond.

9. The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner or others for
obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated to the Construction
Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced or
set off on account of any such unrelated obligations. No right of action
shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than the Owner
or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.

10. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes
of time, to the Construction Contract or to related subcontracts,
purchase orders, and other obligations.

EJCDC® C-610, Performance Bond
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 20f3




11. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be
instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction in the location in
which the work or part of the work is located and shall be instituted
within two years after a declaration of Contractor Default or within two
years after the Contractor ceased working or within two years after the
Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond,
whichever occurs first. If the provisions of this paragraph are void or
prohibited by law, the minimum periods of limitations available to
sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.

12. Notice to the Surety, the Owner, or the Contractor shall be mailed
or delivered to the address shown on the page on which their signature
appears.

13. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or
other legal requirement in the location where the construction was to
be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory
or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and provisions
conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be
deemed incorporated herein. When so furnished, the intent is that this
Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law
bond.

14. Definitions

14.1 Balance of the Contract Price: The total amount payable
by the Owner to the Contractor under the Construction Contract
after all proper adjustments have been made including allowance
for the Contractor for any amounts received or to be received by
the Owner in settlement of insurance or ather claims for damages
to which the Contractoris entitled, reduced by all valid and proper

payments made to or on behalf of the Contractor under the
Construction Contract.

14.2 Construction Contract: The agreement between the
Owner and Contractor identified on the cover page, including all
Contract Documents and changes made to the agreement and the
Contract Documents.

14.3 Contractor Default: Failure of the Contractor, which has
not been remedied or waived, to perform or otherwise to comply
with a material term of the Construction Contract.

14.4 Owner Default: Failure of the Owner, which has not
been remedied or waived, to pay the Contractor as required
under the Construction Contract or to perform and complete or
comply with the other material terms of the Construction
Contract.

14.5 Contract Documents: All the documents that comprise
the agreement between the Owner and Contractor.

15. If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a contractor and
subcontractor, the term Contractor in this Bond shall be deemed to be

Subcontractor and the term Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor.

16. Modifications to this Bond are as follows:

EJCDC® C-610, Performance Bond
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 30f3




EICDCES

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

PAYMENT BOND

CONTRACTOR (name and address): SURETY (name and address of principal place of business):

OWNER (name and address):

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
Effective Date of the Agreement:
Amount:

Description (name and focation):

BOND

Bond Number:
Date (not earlier than the Effective Date of the Agreement of the Construction Contract):
Amount:

Modifications to this Bond Form: [:] None |:| See Paragraph 18

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause
this Payment Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY
(seal) {(seal)
Contractor’s Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal
By: By:
Signature Signature (attach power of attorney)
Print Name Print Name
Title Title
Attest: Attest:
Signature Sighature
Title Title

Notes: (1) Provide supplemental execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers. (2) Any singular reference
to Contractor, Surety, Owner, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

EJCDC® C-615, Payment Bond

Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 1of3




The Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind
themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns to the Owner to pay for labor,
materials, and equipment furnished for use in the
performance of the Construction Contract, which is
incorporated herein by reference, subject to the following
terms.

If the Contractor promptly makes payment of all sums due
to Claimants, and defends, indemnifies, and holds
harmless the Owner from claims, demands, liens, or suits
by any person or entity seeking payment for labor,
materials, or equipment furnished for use in the
performance of the Construction Contract, then the Surety
and the Contractor shall have no obligation under this
Bond.

If there is no Owner Default under the Construction
Contract, the Surety’s obligation to the Owner under this
Bond shall arise after the Owner has promptly notified the
Contractor and the Surety (at the address described in
Paragraph 13) of claims, demands, liens, or suits against
the Owner or the Owner's property by any person or
entity seeking payment for labor, materials, or equipment
furnished for use in the performance of the Construction
Contract, and tendered defense of such claims, demands,
liens, or suits to the Contractor and the Surety.

When the Owner has satisfied the conditions in Paragraph
3, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety’s expense
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Owner against a
duly tendered claim, demand, lien, or suit.

The Surety’s obligations to a Claimant under this Bond
shall arise after the following:

5.1 Claimants who do not have a direct contract with
the Contractor,

5.1.1  have furnished a written notice of non-
payment to the Contractor, stating with
substantial accuracy the amount claimed
and the name of the party to whom the
materials were, or equipment was,
furnished or supplied or for whom the
labor was done or performed, within
ninety (90} days after having last
performed labor or last furnished
materials or equipment included in the
Claim; and

5.1.2 have sent a Claim to the Surety (at the
address described in Paragraph 13).

5.2 Claimants who are employed by or have a direct
contract with the Contractor have sent a Claim to
the Surety (at the address described in Paragraph
13).

10.

11.

If a notice of non-payment required by Paragraph 5.1.1 is
given by the Owner to the Contractor, that is sufficient to
satisfy a Claimant’s obligation to furnish a written notice of
non-payment under Paragraph 5.1.1.

When a Claimant has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph
5.1 or 5.2, whichever is applicable, the Surety shall
promptly and at the Surety’s expense take the following
actions:

7.1 Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the
Owner, within sixty {60) days after receipt of the
Claim, stating the amounts that are undisputed and
the basis for challenging any amounts that are
disputed; and

7.2 Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed
amounts.

7.3  The Surety's failure to discharge its obligations
under Paragraph 7.1 or 7.2 shall not be deemed to
constitute a waiver of defenses the Surety or
Contractor may have or acquire as to a Claim,
except as to undisputed amounts for which the
Surety and Claimant have reached agreement. If,
however, the Surety fails to discharge its
obligations under Paragraph 7.1 or 7.2, the Surety
shall indemnify the Claimant for the reasonable
attorney’s fees the Claimant incurs thereafter to
recover any sums found to be due and owing to
the Claimant.

The Surety’s total obligation shall not exceed the amount
of this Bond, plus the amount of reasonable attorney’s
fees provided under Paragraph 7.3, and the amount of this
Bond shall be credited for any payments made in good
faith by the Surety.

Amounts owed by the Owner to the Contractor under the
Construction Contract shall be used for the performance
of the Construction Contract and to satisfy claims, if any,
under any construction performance bond. By the
Contractor furnishing and the Owner accepting this Bond,
they agree that all funds earned by the Contractor in the
performance of the Construction Contract are dedicated
to satisfy obligations of the Contractor and Surety under
this Bond, subject to the Owner’s priority to use the funds
for the completion of the work.

The Surety shall not be liable to the Owner, Claimants, or
others for obligations of the Contractor that are unrelated
to the Construction Contract. The Owner shall not be
liable for the payment of any costs or expenses of any
Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond
no obligation to make payments to or give notice on
behalf of Claimants, or otherwise have any obligations to
Claimants under this Bond.

The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including
changes of time, to the Construction Contract or to related
subcontracts, purchase orders, and other obligations.

EJCDC® C-615, Payment Bond

Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 20f3




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant under
this Bond other than in a court of competent jurisdiction in
the state in which the project that is the subject of the
Construction Contract is located or after the expiration of
one year from the date {1) on which the Claimant sent a
Claim to the Surety pursuant to Paragraph 5.1.2 or 5.2, or
(2) on which the last labor or service was performed by
anyone or the last materials or equipment were furnished
by anyone under the Construction Contract, whichever of
(1) or (2) first occurs. If the provisions of this paragraph
are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of
limitation available to sureties as a defense in the
jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.

Notice and Claims to the Surety, the Owner, or the
Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address
shown on the page on which their signature appears.
Actual receipt of notice or Claims, however accomplished,
shall be sufficient compliance as of the date received.

When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a
statutory or other legal requirement in the location where
the construction was to be performed, any provision in
this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal
requirement shall be deemed deleted herefrom and
provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal
requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. When
so fumished, the intent is that this Bond shall be construed
as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

Upon requests by any person or entity appearing to be a
potential beneficiary of this Bond, the Contractor and
Owner shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall
permit a copy to be made.

Definitions

16.1 Claim: A written statement by the Claimant
including at a minimum:

1. The name of the Claimant;

2.  The name of the person for whom the labor
was done, or materials or equipment
furnished;

3. A copy of the agreement or purchase order
pursuant to which labor, materials, or
equipment was furnished for use in the
performance of the Construction Contract;

4. A brief description of the labor, materials, or
equipment furnished;

5. The date on which the Claimant last
performed labor or last furnished materials or
equipment for use in the performance of the
Construction Contract;

6. The total amount earned by the Claimant for
labor, materials, or equipment furnished as of
the date of the Claim;

7. The total amount of previous payments
received by the Claimant; and

17.

8. The total amount due and unpaid to the
Claimant for labor, materials, or equipment
furnished as of the date of the Claim.

16.2 Claimant: An individual or entity having a direct
contract with the Contractor or with a
subcontractor of the Contractor to furnish labor,
materials, or equipment for use in the performance
of the Construction Contract. The term Claimant
also includes any individual or entity that has
rightfully asserted a claim under an applicable
mechanic’s lien or similar statute against the real
property upon which the Project is located. The
intent of this Bond shall be to include without
limitation in the terms of “labor, materials, or
equipment” that part of the water, gas, power,
light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service, or
rental equipment used in the Construction
Contract, architectural and engineering services
required for performance of the work of the
Contractor and the Contractor’s subcontractors,
and all other items for which a mechanic’s lien may
be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor,
materials, or equipment were furnished.

16.3 Construction Contract: The agreement between
the Owner and Contractor identified on the cover
page, including all Contract Documents and all
changes made to the agreement and the Contract
Documents.

16.4 Owner Default: Failure of the Owner, which has
not been remedied or waived, to pay the
Contractor as required under the Construction
Contract or to perform and complete or comply
with the other material terms of the Construction
Contract.

16.5 Contract Documents: All the documents that
comprise the agreement between the Owner and
Contractor.

If this Bond is issued for an agreement between a
contractor and subcontractor, the term Contractor in this
Bond shall be deemed to be Subcontractor and the term
Owner shall be deemed to be Contractor.

18. Modifications to this Bond are as follows:

EJICDC® C-615, Payment Bond

Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved. 3o0f3




EJCDC= PENAL SUM FORM

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS COMMWITIFE

BID BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

BIDDER {Name and Address):

SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business):

OWNER (Name and Address):

BID
Bid Due Date:
Description (Project Name— Include Location):

BOND
Bond Number:
Date:
Penal sum $

(Words) (Figures)
Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause
this Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.

BIDDER SURETY
(Seal) (Seal)
Bidder’s Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal
By: By:
Signature Signature (Attach Power of Attorney)
Print Name Print Name
Title Title
Attest: Attest:
Signature Signature
Title Title

Note: Addresses are to be used for giving any required notice.
Provide execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.

EICDC® C-430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form). Published 2013.
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 1of2




Y=
EJCDC= PENAL SUM FORM
ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRAGT

OOGHMENTS COMMITTFT

1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and
assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the
penal sum is the extent of Bidder’s and Surety’s liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond
shall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding
Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.

3. This obligation shall be null and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder’s Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents {(or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or

3.3 Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required
by Paragraph 5 hereof).

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable
promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.

5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of
Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including
extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety’s written consent.

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default
required in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year after the Bid due
date.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the
state in which the Project is located.

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown
on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States
Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon
receipt by the party concerned.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority

of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such
Bond and bind the Surety thereby.

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any
applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at
length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall
govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.

11. The term “Bid” as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

EJCDC® C-430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form). Published 2013.
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 2 of 2




NOTICE OF AWARD

TO:

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Milling, leveling, paving and overlaying certain streets in M.D.
#204 & 205 with 2" overlay and 3” paving.

THE OWNER has considered the BID submitted by you for the above described
WORK in response to its ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS dated June 12, June 19'* and
July 3", 2024 and INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS.

You are hereby notified that your BID has been accepted for the items in the amount of

You are required by the INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS to exccute the CONTRACT
with fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of this NOTICE to you.

If you fail to execute said CONTRACT with fifteen (15) days from the date of this
NOTICE, said OWNER will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the OWNER’S
acceptance of your BID as abandoned and as a forfeiture of your BID BOND. The OWNER
will be entitled to such other rights as may be granted by law.

You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this NOTICE OF AWARD to the
OWNER.

Dated this__ ™ day of , 2024.
City of Miles City
Owner
By:
Dwayne Andrews
Title: Mayor
ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE

Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged by:

This the day of , 2024.

Title:




HAYNES

coISTOCK

< e =l
DOEDENG A - AVENUE
D £ |N ==
MOOREHEAD | = 3
& © : e
[l
SUTTON i)  AVENUE
Gl
. . % A v
o 5 el ‘ool
L=
AVENUE SEWELL
- 0n o -l
7 e, ' <F
EARLING
| =
™ © o 9 ™
(93]
CALE
C,H h?_\ e @) e
- STACY
o
=i Lo s @) O~ <7
NN ‘
D
m

STREVELL

WILSON



VENUE

1

= BRISBIN
6

5COMSTOCK
7

ONTANA




HAYNES

O

\

pN.

=

)
Y

T

q

)

- 30did8 9

WINCHESTER

(- AHN

143941S

13341S

NIVIN

STACY



S 5 -
L =\ w - el
= < 7
1
AVENUE
. =
<
- 2 <)
N
1
_ 1N
7 & 11
% /\
m\A
SR







EJCDC= PENAL SUM FORM

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
DCCL‘MEH_T_S_C?MIIIH‘EE .

BID BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

BIDDER (Name and Address):

Century Companies,Inc.
P.O. Box 579, Lewistown, MT 59457
SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business):

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
One Tower Square , Hartford, CT 06183

OWNER (Name and Address):
City of Miles City
17 South 8th Street, PO Box 910, Miles City, MT 59301

BID
Bid Due Date: July 9, 2024
Description (Project Name— Include Location): Paving Maintenance District #204 & 205. Miles City, MT

BOND
Bond Number: Bid Bond
Date: June 20, 2024
Penal sum  Ten Percent of Amount Bid $ 10%
(Words) (Figures)
Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause
this Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized ofﬂcer agent, or representative.

BIDDER P\Nl‘- S URETY
Century Companies, Inc. o,-(sgal} \'Pfgy ers Casualty and Surety Company of Ariserica u,',:h’W
N %%

y's Name and Corporate Seal §'§ _,--

Bidder’s Nzyéjd Corporate Seal
;marsoan,
1 /,.5({4/ / % l gxu{zk \ ,Au) $3 oo, ';1:9:
gnature \9 Signature (Attach Power of Ati ‘}»:“‘;;»:53@*
/ !mlm\-\!’&“'('}ik
r}lﬁ, Las 7//| (ALs) 5P Brandi Davis
Print Name Print Name
\_5': E<Finmpb . / L2 Attorney-in-Fact
Titl , Title
¢ /
e A
S (Y PN
Sighature C’uh‘*{tf“" ias =d Sidnature Naomi Gerber
Title [»L '}VYU Title Witness

Note: Addresses are to be used for giving any required notice.
Provide execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.

EJCDC® C-430, Bid Bond {Penal Sum Form). Published 2013.
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 1 0of 2




EJCDC= PENAL SUM FORM

DOCOMENTS COMMITTED
1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and
assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of the
penal sum is the extent of Bidder’s and Surety’s liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bond
shall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding
Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.

3. This obligation shall be null and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder’s Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or

3.3  Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any
extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required
by Paragraph 5 hereof).

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable
promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.

5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of
Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including
extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety’s written consent.

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default
required in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year after the Bid due
date.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the
state in which the Project is located.

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown
on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United States
Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon
receipt by the party concerned.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authority
of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver such
Bond and bind the Surety thereby.

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any
applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at
length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall
govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.

11. The term “Bid” as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

EJCDC® C-430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form). Published 2013.
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page2of2




Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America
- N Travelers Casualty and Surety Company
TRAVE L E Rs J St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company
Farmington Casualty Company
POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, Travelers Casualty and Surety Company, St. Paul
Fire and Marine Insurance Company, and Farmington Casualty Company are corporations duly organized under the laws of the State of Connecticut
(herein collectively called the "Companies*), and that the Companies do hereby make, constitute and appoint  Brandi Davis ©f Missoula , MT
their true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact to sign, execute, seal and acknowledge the following bond:
Surety Bond No.: Bid Bond Principal: Century Companies,inc.
OR Obligee: City of Miles City
Project Description: Paving Maintenance District #204 & 205. Miles City, MT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Companies have caused this instrument to be signed, and their corporate seals to be hereto affixed, this 21st day of April,
2021.

State of Connecticut
By:

' " Raney, i ice President
City of Hartford ss. Robertd” Raney, Senior Vice Presi

On this the 21st day of April, 2021, before me personally appeared Robert L. Raney, who acknowledged himself to be the Senior Vice President of each
of the Companies, and that he, as such, being authorized 30 to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained by signing on

behalf of said Companies by himself as a duly authorized officer.
%Lﬂ W
L Ly -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | hereunto set my hand and official seal.
My Commission expires the 30th day of June, 2026
Anna P. Nowik, Notary Public

This Power of Attorney is granted under and by the authority of the following resolutions adopted by the Boards of Directors of each of the Companies,
which resolutions are now in full force and effect, reading as follows:

RESOLVED, that the Chairman, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, any Vice President, any
Second Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secretary or any Assistant Secretary may appoint Attorneys-in-Fact and
Agents to act for and on behalf of the Company and may give such appointee such authority as his or her certificate of authority may prescribe to sign
with the Company’s name and seal with the Company's seal bonds, recognizances, contracts of indemnity, and other writings obligatory in the nature of
a bond, recognizance, or conditional undertaking, and any of said officers or the Board of Directors at any time may remove any such appointee and
revoke the power given him or her; and itis

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairman, the President, any Vice Chairman, any Execulive Vice President, any Senior Vice President or any Vice
President may delegate all or any part of the foregoing authority to one or more officers or employees of this Company, provided that each such delegation
is in writing and a copy thereof is filed in the office of the Secretary; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any bond, recognizance, contract of indemnity, or writing obligatory in the nature of a bond, recognizance, or conditional
undertaking shall be valid and binding upon the Company when (a) signed by the President, any Vice Chairman, any Executive Vice President, any
Senior Vice President or any Vice President, any Second Vice President, the Treasurer, any Assistant Treasurer, the Corporate Secretary or any
Assistant Secretary and duly attested and sealed with the Company's seal by a Secretary or Assistant Secretary; or (b) duly executed (under seal, if
required) by one or more Attorneys-in-Fact and Agents pursuant to the power prescribed in his or her certificate or their certificates of authority or by one
or more Company officers pursuant to a written delegation of authority; and itis

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the signature of each of the following officers: President, any Executive Vice President, any Senior Vice President, any
Vice President, any Assistant Vice President, any Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, and the seal of the Company may be affixed by facsimile to any
Power of Attorney or to any certificate relating thereto appointing Resident Vice Presidents, Resident Assistant Secretaries or Attorneys-in-Fact for
purposes only of executing and attesting bonds and undertakings and other writings obligatory in the nature thereof, and any such Power of Attorney or
certificate bearing such facsimile signature or facsimile seal shall be valid and binding upon the Company and any such power so executed and certified
by such facsimile signature and facsimile seal shall be valid and binding on the Company in the future with respect to any bond or understanding to
which it is attached.

|, Kevin E. Hughes, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary of each of the Companiss, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct

copy of the Power of Attorney executed by said Companies, which remains in full force and effect.

Dated this 20th day of June , 2024

Lo £ fuir

Kevin E. Hughes, Assistant Secretary

To verify the authenticity of this Power of Attorney, please call us at 1-800-421-3880.
Please refer to the above-named Attorney(s)-in-Fact and the details of the bond to which this Power of Attorney is attached.



New Business



Samantha Malenovsky

From: Eva Stokes <eva.stokes@msun.edu> on behalf of Eva Stokes

Sent: Tuesday, July 9, 2024 2:03 PM

To: Samantha Malenovsky

Subject: RE: memorial bench at Spotted Eagle

Attachments: Jim Hinman,jpg; Requested location of bench,jpg; Jim Hinman memorial bench.jpeg; Jim

Hinman memorial bench 1.jpeg

Sam,

Again, | appreciate all your help with this request and for presenting this at the city council meeting this evening for
approval. | was not sure how much information you needed, but please let me know if more is needed. Spotted Eagle
has always held a special spot in our hearts growing up with a lot of memories there, including swimming, family
picnics, fishing with our dad and trap club shooting with him. In fact, just three days before his passing he wanted to
take his lab, Duke, for one last outing at their favorite, almost daily, place at Spotted Eagle.

The location requested is the place that he would take his dog for his walks. As you enter it is to the left, past the trap
shooting area, but by the water if possible. | tried to mark the area on the Google map.

I would be able to bring the bench to Miles City the 25 or 26" of this month if approved. | understand that the
memorial benches are preferred to be placed in concrete and we can organize this and pay for this as well if needed. On
the bottom of the legs of the bench, there are holes for anchor bolts.

Thank you again for everything with this, it means so much to our family.
Thank you,

Eva Stokes
406-945-2048 cell

Jim Hinman obituary:
https://stevensonfuneralhomes.com/obituaries/james-d-hinmann-age-66-of-miles-city-mt/

From: Samantha Malenovsky <smalenovsky@milescity-mt.org>
Sent: Tuesday, July 9, 2024 11:39 AM

To: Eva Stokes <eva.stokes@msun.edu>

Subject: RE: memorial bench at Spotted Eagle

NOTICE: This email originated from outside of your organization. Do not click links, open attachments, or respond unless you were expecting this message and
know the content is safe.

" Ms. Stokes,
Yes | have received your message and look forward to placing this bench in memory of your father.

Respectfully,



RESOLUTION NO. 4571

A RESOLUTION PURSUANTTO §7-6-4006 OF THE MONTANA
CODE ANNOTATED, AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT OF FINAL
BUDGET FOR FY 2023-2024 TO INCREASE THE BUDGETED
AMOUNT IN VARIOUS FUNDS FOR VARIOUS UNBUDGETED
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES.

WHEREAS, the City of Miles City wishes to amend the budget for Fiscal
Year 2023-2024 to increased appropriations as a result of several unanticipated
revenues and expenditures related to the City of Miles City, as permitted by §7-6-4006
MCA,;

AND WHEREAS, such amendment of the final budget will result in an
overall increase in appropriation authority within multiple funds,

AND WHEREAS the provisions of §7-6-4006 MCA require public hearing
upon any budget amendment resulting in an overall increase in appropriation
authority,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Miles City, Montana as follows:

The approprlatlons for the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 shall be
increased in the following amounts:

FUND/ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION REVENUE
2220-365035 (101000) Received Excess Donations $73,525.00
2440-383000 (101000) TIFD funding for lights $50,000.00
2820-383000 (101000) Received Excess Gas Tax $740,487.00
2310-311010 (101000) Received Excess Funding $110,128.00
2390-351013 (101000) Received Excess Funding $510.00
2450-363010 (101000) Received Excess Funding $1,063.00
3670-363020 (101000) Received Excess Funding $791.00
5210-371010 (101000) Received Excess Investment Income $259,283.00
5310-362020 (101000) Received Excess Funding $220,609.00

Total Revenue increased in various funds $1,456,396.00

FUND/ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION EXPENSE
2440-050-430263-230 TIFD funded lights $50,000.00
2450-051-430263-230 Exceeded Appropriation $316.00
2470-072-430263-230 Exceeded Appropriation $1,102.00
2820-034-521204-520 Received excess Gas Tax $660,662.00

4000-501-460433-940 Spent amount approved in PY $5,653.00



Total expense increased in various funds $717,733.00

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a public hearing shall be held on the
above proposed amendment to the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 on the
13" day of August, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers at City Hall,
Miles City, Montana. The City Clerk shall cause notice of such hearing to be
published in the Miles City Star, in accordance with §7-1-4128 MCA, at least 2
times with at least 6 days separating each publication.

SAID RESOLUTION READ AND PUT UPON ITS FINAL PASSAGE THIS
23RP DAY OF JULY, 2024.

Dwayne Andrews, Mayor
ATTEST:

Mary Rowe, City Clerk

SAID RESOLUTION FINALLY PASSED AND ADOPTED BY A DULY
CONSTITUTED QUORUM OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MILES CITY, MONTANA, THIS 13™ DAY OF AUGUST, 2024.

Dwayne Andrews, Mayor
ATTEST:

Mary Rowe, City Clerk



RESOLUTION NO. 4572

A RESOLUTION DECLARING A STATE OF DISASTER AND LEVYING AN
AMOUNT UP TO TWO MILLS FOR DISASTER RELIEF.

WHERFEAS, the Mayor has declared a disaster by way of Executive Order 2024-01, and
pursuant to Montana Code Annotated 10-3-402; said disaster having been caused by a severe
wind storm on July 13, 2024, causing substantial damage to trees and improvements throughout
the City, to include on City property, and on City streets;

AND WHEREAS, pursuant to MCA 10-3-405, the City Council has determined that it is
in the best interest of the community, given the public safety risks associated with a lack of
ability for emergency response, to levy and assess amounts not to exceed 2 mills to assist in
funding the cleanup of said storm damage;

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF MILES CITY, MONTANA AS FOLLOWS:

1. That state of disaster exists within the City of Miles City as of the date of this
Resolution.

2. That there shall be appropriated immediately to Emergency Fund Number 2260
an amount equivalent to two (2) mills on the taxable valuation of the City inside the incorporated
municipality, pursuant to MCA 10-3-405; and that said two (2) mills will be levied during fiscal
year 2024, and be utilized for immediate cleanup of storm related damage.

3. That copies of this resolution shall be filed with the City Clerk, the County
Assessor, and the Montana Disaster and Emergency Services Division in Helena.

SAID RESOLUTION FINALLY PASSED AND ADOPTED UNANIMOUSLY BY
A VOTE OF THE ENTIRE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MILES CITY,
MONTANA, THIS 23R? DAY OF JULY, 2024.

Dwayne Andrews, Mayor
ATTEST:

Mary Rowe, City Clerk



Claims



07/15/24

CITY OF MILES CITY

Page: 1 of 16

15:41:56 Claim Details Report ID: AP100
For the Accounting Period: 6/24
* ... Over spent expenditure
Claim  Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Disc $ Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $§ PO # Fund Org Acct Object Proj Account
138582 -99130C 406 BRODY CHEMICAL 3,241.99
1 44768 03/19/24 Cal Hypo 3,241.99+* 33916 5310 33 430640 222 101000
138781 88017sS 2910 TONGUE RIVER ELECTRIC 636.81
1 06/25/24 Southgate Lighting 525.00* 2450 51 430263 341 101000
2 06/25/24 Government Hill Tower 47.12% 34138 2850 105 420140 341 101000
3 06/25/24 Mildred Tower 64.69* 34138 2850 105 420140 341 101000
138783 -99181C 4019 WEX BANK 11,373.17
1 06/30/24 FUEL 765.21 34284 1000 13 460433 231 101000
3 06/30/24 FUEL 2,113.67 34284 2510 107 430220 231 101000
4 06/30/24 FUEL 528.42 34284 2520 108 430220 231 101000
6 06/30/24 FUEL 288.87 33942 5210 22 430530 231 101000
7 06/30/24 FUEL 288.87 33942 5210 80 430540 231 101000
9 06/30/24 FUEL 288.87 33942 5310 32 430690 231 101000
10 06/30/24 FUEL 520.20 33294 1000 7 420460 231 101000
11 06/30/24 FUEL 966.62 33294 5510 10 420730 231 101000
12 06/30/24 FUEL 3,182.77+* 34042 1000 5 420140 231 101000
13 06/30/24 FUEL 110.80* 34042 1000 21 440600 231 101000
15 06/30/24 FUEL 1,011.47 34221 5210 23 430550 231 101000
16 06/30/24 FUEL 1,011.46 34221 5310 31 430630 231 101000
17 06/30/24 FUEL 295.94~ 1759 5610 87 430300 231 101000
138784 88018S 1737 MC AREA SOLID WASTE DISTRICT 45.50
i 93823 06/05/24 Demo from MCPD 27.50%* 34046 1000 5 420140 220 101000
2 87104 02/22/24 Demo 10.00 33902 5310 33 430640 220 101000
3 96891 06/20/24 Animal Disposal 8.00* 34469 1000 21 440600 220 101000
138785 88018S 2914 TOURISM BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT 2,362.00
1 06/30/24 TBID ~ Monthly June 2023 2,362.00 7370 212500 101000
138786 88020s 671 CUSTER COUNTY TREASURER 1,464.00
2 06/30/24 APR-JUN 2024: LE ACDMY SURCHG 1,464.00 7467 212200 101000
138787 88004S 394 BOSS INC 554.25
1 628891 06/21/24 Finance 17.63* 33341 1000 3 410500 220 101000
2 6274611 06/21/24 170.05 34223 5210 25 430510 220 101000
3 6274611 06/21/24 170.05 34223 5310 29 430610 220 101000
6 624159 06/21/24 Dispatch 12.99* 34123 2850 105 420140 210 101000
7 629001 06/21/24 Dispatch 42.60* 34120 1000 5 420160 210 101000
8 632950 06/21/24 Water Admin 7.95 34227 5210 25 430510 210 101000
] 626632 06/21/24 Prosecutor 74.95% 32962 1000 4 411100 210 101000
10 628892 06/21/24 Public Works 52.05 34280 2394 18 420531 220 101000
11 624755 06/21/24 City Court 5.98* 31435 1000 6 410300 210 101000



07/15/24

CITY OF MILES CITY

Page: 2 of 16

15:41:56 Claim Details Report ID: AP100
For the Accounting Period: 6/24
+ ,,. Over spent expenditure
Claim  Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ PO # Fund Org Acct  Object Proj Account
138788 88000S 572 VERIZON WIRELESS 569.56
1 9966006535 06/07/24 Cell Phone Fees 249.48* 34454 1000 5 420140 220 101000
2 9966006535 06/07/24 MDT Fees 320.08 34454 2850 105 420140 345 101000
138789 -99184C 1921 MONTANA MUNICIPAL INTERLOCAL 267.52
1 443622 06/05/24 June Retiree Premiums 267.52 1000 362022 101000
138790 88021S 498 CENTURY LINK 1,941.84
1 06/21/24 9-1-1 Phone System 1,941.84 2850 105 420140 345 101000
138791 88022S 3039 UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 643.28
1 4055101 05/31/24 May Locates 56.76 34226 5210 23 430550 220 101000
2 4055101 05/31/24 56.76 34226 5310 31 430630 220 101000
3 4055101 05/31/24 113.52% 34226 2510 107 430220 220 101000
4 4065100 06/30/24 June Locates 104.06 34237 5210 23 430550 220 101000
5 4065100 06/30/24 104.06 34237 5310 31 430630 220 101000
6 4065100 06/30/24 208.12%* 34237 2510 107 430220 220 101000
138792 -99182E 373 MASTERCARD 31,229.23
1 06/20/24 51, 313 1000 3 410500 220 101000
2 06/20/24 1,474.33 1000 3 410500 370 101000
3 06/20/24 456.62* 1000 5 420140 220 101000
4 06/20/24 36.65 1000 5 420140 311 101000
o] 06/20/24 78.51% 1000 5 420140 345 101000
6 06/20/24 468.86* 1000 5 420140 350 101000
7 06/20/24 252.39* 1000 5 420140 366 101000
8 06/20/24 2,111.73* 1000 5 420140 370 101000
9 06/20/24 74.48 1000 7 420460 210 101000
10 06/20/24 102.37 1000 7 420460 230 101000
i3 06/20/24 -385.00 1000 7 420460 380 101000
14 06/20/24 483.41 1000 8 411230 230 101000
15 06/20/24 741.85% 1000 13 460433 226 101000
16 06/20/24 21.36 1000 13 460433 363 101000
17 06/20/24 510.26%* 1000 13 460434 363 101000
18 06/20/24 97.68* 1000 21 440600 311 101000
19 06/20/24 909.00 1000 21 440600 380 101000
20 06/20/24 315.04* 1000 36 411020 220 101000
21 06/20/24 69.98 1000 201 431200 210 101000
22 06/20/24 2,078.16 1000 201 431200 350 101000
23 06/20/24 98.14 2220 16 460100 311 101000
24 06/21/24 125.53 2220 16 460100 360 101000
25 06/20/24 1,811.30 2220 16 460100 382 101000
26 06/20/24 19.99 2394 18 420531 220 101000
27 06/20/24 15.17 2510 107 430220 210 101000



07/15/24
15:41:56

. Over spent expenditure

CITY OF MILES CITY
Claim Details
For the Accounting Period:

6/24

Report ID: AP100

Page: 3 of 16

Claim

Check Vendor #/Name/ Document §/ Disc $ Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ Fund Org Acct Object Proj Account
28 06/20/24 6.05* 2510 107 430220 214 101000
29 06/20/24 97.41* 2510 107 430220 220 101000
31 06/20/24 294.76* 2510 107 430220 230 101000
32 06/20/24 2.72% 2510 107 430220 311 101000
35 06/20/24 1,062.18 2510 107 430220 363 101000
37 06/20/24 3.79 2520 108 430220 210 101000
38 06/20/24 1.51 2520 108 430220 214 101000
33 06/20/24 24.40* 2520 108 430220 220 101000
40 06/20/24 73.68 2520 108 430220 230 101000
41 06/20/24 0.68* 2520 108 430220 311 101000
42 06/20/24 262.17 2520 108 430220 363 101000
43 06/20/24 68.69* 2850 105 420140 210 101000
44 06/20/24 1,000.00* 2850 105 420140 380 101000
45 06/20/24 573.24* 2880 112 460100 370 101032
47 06/20/24 95.00 2880 112 460100 350 101003
48 06/20/24 777.00 2880 112 460100 382 101000
49 06/20/24 108.97* 2985 15 450340 220 101000
50 06/20/24 14.96 2985 15 450340 311 101000
51 06/20/24 150.00 2985 15 450340 334 101000
52 06/20/24 747.00 2991 7 420460 950 8 101000
53 06/20/24 9.94 5210 22 430530 220 101000
54 06/20/24 120.26 5210 22 430530 230 101000
55 06/20/24 85.00 5210 22 430530 360 101000
56 06/20/24 246.72% 5210 22 430530 370 101000
57 06/20/24 219.52 5210 22 430530 380 101000
58 06/20/24 26.64 5210 23 430550 210 101000
60 06/20/24 272.18 5210 23 430550 220 101000
61 06/20/24 145.99 5210 23 430550 226 101000
62 06/20/24 2,196.35 5210 23 430550 230 101000
63 06/20/24 998.30 5210 23 430550 235 102270
64 06/20/24 1.70 5210 23 430550 311 101000
65 06/20/24 50.39 5210 23 430550 363 101000
66 06/20/24 5.33 5210 25 430510 220 101000
67 06/20/24 329.96%* 5210 80 430540 210 101000
68 06/20/24 9.94 5210 80 430540 220 101000
69 06/20/24 730.28 5210 80 430540 230 101000
70 06/20/24 4.35 5210 80 430540 311 101000
71 06/20/24 167.00 5210 80 430540 360 101000
74 06/20/24 246.72 5210 80 430540 370 101000
75 06/20/24 146.34 5210 80 430540 380 101000
76 06/20/24 5.33 5310 29 430610 220 101000
77 06/20/24 9.48* 5310 31 430630 210 101000
18 06/20/24 478.48 5310 31 430630 220 101000
79 06/20/24 26.00 5310 31 430630 226 101000
80 06/20/24 1,451.94* 5310 31 430630 230 101000



07/15/24

CITY OF MILES CITY

Page: 4 of 16

15:41:56 Claim Details Report ID: AP100
For the Accounting Period: 6/24
* .. Over spent expenditure
Claim  Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Disc $ Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ PO # Fund Org Acct Object Proj Account
81 06/20/24 1.70 5310 31 430630 311 101000
82 06/20/24 50.36% 5310 31 430630 363 101000
83 06/20/24 130.09 5310 32 430690 220 101000
86 06/20/24 69.48 5310 32 430690 230 101000
87 06/20/24 146.34 5310 32 430690 380 101000
88 06/20/24 77.58 5310 32 430690 360 101000
89 06/20/24 132.26 5310 32 430690 370 101000
90 06/20/24 1.98 5310 33 430640 210 101000
91 06/20/24 251.61 5310 33 430640 220 101000
92 06/20/24 47.13 5310 33 430640 230 101000
93 06/20/24 213.25 5310 33 430640 360 101000
94 06/20/24 153.47 5310 33 430640 363 101000
95 06/20/24 246.72* 5310 33 430640 370 101000
96 06/20/24 87.80 5310 33 430640 380 101000
97 06/20/24 270.57 5510 10 420730 220 101000
98 06/20/24 1,498.96 5510 10 420730 222 101000
99 06/20/24 11.22 5510 10 420730 230 101000
100 06/20/24 500.00 5510 10 420730 382 101000
101 06/20/24 9.98 5610 87 430300 210 101000
102 06/20/24 206.00* 5610 87 430300 220 101000
103 06/20/24 454.50% 5610 87 430300 230 101000
104 06/20/24 129.75 5610 87 430300 345 101000
105 06/20/24 300.40* 5610 87 430300 363 101000
106 06/20/24 476.00% 5610 87 430300 380 101000
107 06/20/24 69.99 6040 910 430220 220 101000
108 06/20/24 369.99* 6040 910 430220 226 101000
138793 -99189C 4187 MOFI 1,162.96
1 06/05/24 Fire Training Center Payment62 597.52 1000 7 490500 654 101000
2 565.44 1000 7 430500 655 101000
138794 88005s 4076 EXPRESS LAUNDRY, LLC COMMERCIAL 139.50
ol 66382 05/28/24 City Hall Rugs 34.50 34277 1000 8 411230 360 101000
2 66077 05/14/24 City Hall Rugs 34.50 34266 1000 8 411230 360 101000
5 66001 05/08/24 WWTP 15.00 33947 5310 33 430640 360 101000
6 65956 05/08/24 WWTP 19.50 33947 5210 80 430540 360 101000
i 66403 05/28/24 PD 18.00* 34034 1000 5 420140 360 101000
8 66104 05/14/24 PD 18.00* 34027 1000 5 420140 360 101000
138795 -99177E 1970 MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES 39,334.18
ol GAS/ELECTRIC ~ FD 336.14 1000 7 420460 341 101000
2 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ FD 94.25 1000 7 420460 344 101000
3 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ City Hall 442.36* 1000 8 411230 341 101000
L] GAS/ELECTRIC ~ City Hall 75.01 1000 8 411230 344 101000
5 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Parks 649.58* 1000 13 460433 341 101000



07/15/24

CITY OF MILES CITY

Page: 5 of 16

15:41:56 Claim Details Report ID: AP100
For the Accounting Period: 6/24
x .. Over spent expenditure
Claim  Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Disc $ Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ PO # Fund Org Acct Object Proj Account
6 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Parks 93.50 1000 13 460433 344 101000
7 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Bath House 441.70% 1000 14 460445 341 101000
8 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Animal Shelter 52.30* 1000 21 440600 341 101000
9 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Animal Shelter 37.26 1000 21 440600 344 101000
10 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Library 672.27 2220 16 460100 341 101000
11 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Library 67.04 2220 16 460100 344 101000
14 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ District 165 4,530.83 2400 46 430263 341 101000
15 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Rental Fee 8,829.40 2400 46 430263 533 101000
16 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ District 167 639.40* 2420 48 430263 341 101000
17 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Rental Fee 1,054.80 2420 48 430263 533 101000
18 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ District 171 59.70 2430 49 430263 341 101000
19 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ District 172 698.61 2440 50 430263 341 101000
20 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ District 202 132.63* 2470 72 430263 341 101000
21 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Rental Fee 325.90* 2470 72 430263 533 101000
22 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ District 173 38.49 2480 47 430263 341 101000
23 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Sewer Lift 145.70 2510 107 430220 341 101000
28 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Water Plant 6,005.40* 5210 22 430530 341 101000
30 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Water Plant 231.73 5210 22 430530 344 101000
31 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Fish & Game 16.47 5210 23 430550 341 101000
32 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Fish & Game 9.40 5210 23 430550 344 101000
33 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Fish & Game 16.47 5310 31 430630 341 101000
34 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Fish & Game 9.40 5310 31 430630 344 101000
35 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Sewer Lift 2,474.21% 5310 32 430690 341 101000
36 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Sewer Lift 109.23 5310 32 430690 344 101000
38 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Ambulance 151.02 5510 10 420730 341 101000
39 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Ambulance 42.35 5510 10 420730 344 101000
42 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Shop 318.56* 6040 910 430220 341 101000
43 GAS/ELECTRIC ~ Shop 31.11 6040 910 430220 344 101000
44 FISH & GAME ~ ELECTRIC 26.35 2510 107 430220 341 101000
45 FISH & GARME ~ ELECTRIC 15.04 2510 107 430220 344 101000
46 FISH & GAME ~ ELECTRIC 6.59 2520 108 430220 341 101000
47 FISH & GBME ~ ELECTRIC 3.76 2520 108 430220 344 101000
50 Airport Electric 1,021.99* 5610 87 430300 341 101000
51 Airport Gas 395.51 5610 87 430300 344 101000
54 N Daly Sewer Treatment Plant 8,259.55% 5310 33 430640 341 101000
55 419 N 7th PD 22.96 1000 5 420140 344 101000
56 418 N 7th PD 278.30 1000 5 420140 341 101000
57 419 N 7th PD 203.56 1000 5 420140 341 101000
58 419 N 7th PD 112.19 1000 5 420140 344 101000
59 Spotted Eagle Walleyes 28.04* 1000 13 460433 341 101000
60 Splash Pad 29.94* 1000 13 460433 341 101000
61 Bender MC Softball 61.37* 1000 13 460433 341 101000
62 Bender MCC Softball 36.81%* 1000 13 460433 341 101000



07/15/24

CITY OF MILES CITY

Page: 6 of 16

15:41:56 Claim Details Report ID: AP100
For the Accounting Period: 6/24
L Over spent expenditure
Claim  Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Disc § Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ PO # Fund Org Acct Object Proj Account
138796 88023S 700 CUSTER COUNTY WATER & SEWER 19,508.62
1 06/28/24 CCWSD Water/Sewer Collections 19,508.62 7980 211020 101000
138797 88024s 4034 STEVE RICE 75.00
1 06/30/24 Police Commission 75.00* 1000 5 420140 350 101000
138798 88013S 371 GENERAL DISTRIBUTING CO. 132.52
1 1387975 06/19/24 02 on Account # 47473 74.77 34310 5510 10 420730 222 101000
2 1392475 06/30/24 Nitrous 57.75 34314 5510 10 420730 222 101000
138800 880258 4233 BLAYNE WATTS 75.00
1 06/10/24 Police Commission Quarterly Pa 75.00* 1000 5 420140 350 101000
138802 88026S 721 DRLES CLEANING SERVICE 700.00
1 06/27/24 City Hall ~ June Cleaning 700.00 34295 1000 8 411230 360 101000
138803 88027s 4013 SOLESTONE REIMB SERVICES 193.58
il 13365 06/03/24 May Billing 193.58 33299 5510 10 420730 350 101000
138804 88028s 3292 MONTANA AIR CARTAGE 549.83
1 53124 06/12/24 Partners Program crate deliver 178.20 34067 2880 39 460100 311 101020
2 982449 05/01/24 Delivery 270.63* 34402 5210 80 430540 352 101000
3 837958 05/02/24 101.00 34402 5310 33 430640 352 101000
138805 87997S 1721 MID RIVERS TELEPHONE CORP 4,497.20
1 CITY COURT 174.15* 31433 1000 6 410300 345 101000
3 LIBRARY 159.62% 34066 2220 16 460100 345 101000
q 60.00 34066 2220 16 460100 347 101000
6 911 EMERGENCY 475.18* 34124 2850 105 420140 341 101000
7 911 EMERGENCY 569.87 34124 2850 105 420140 345 101000
8 RSVP 126.44* 33740 2985 15 450340 345 101000
9 AIRPORT 57.52 1757 5610 87 430300 345 101000
11 60.00% 1757 5610 87 430300 347 101000
12 MAYOR 76.08 1000 1 410200 345 101000
13 FINANCE 102.24 1000 3 410500 345 101000
14 8.69 1000 3 410500 347 101000
15 ATTORNEY 110.61% 1000 4 411100 345 101000
16 POLICE 332.74* 1000 5 420140 345 101000
17 57.86% 1000 5 420140 347 101000
18 PD/DISPATCH 194.72% 1000 5 420160 345 101000
19 FIRE 227.77 1000 7 420460 345 101000
20 50.69 1000 7 420460 347 101000
21 TREASURER 57.47 1000 9 410540 345 101000
22 PARK DEPT 76.27* 1000 13 460433 345 101000



07/15/24

CITY OF MILES CITY

Page: 7 of 16

15:41:56 Claim Details Report ID: AP100
For the Accounting Period: 6/24
* ... Over spent expenditure

Claim Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Disc $ Cash

Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ PO # Fund Org Acct  Object Proj Account
23 26.82* 1000 13 460433 347 101000
24 ANIMAL CONTROL 74,92+ 1000 21 440600 345 101000
25 44,95 1000 21 440600 347 101000
26 PLANNING 42.51 1000 36 411020 345 101000
27 Flood 53.68* 1000 201 431200 345 101000
28 BUILDING INSPECTION 79,73+ 2394 18 420531 345 101000
29 MMD #204 136.65* 2510 107 430220 345 101000
30 MMD #205 78.77* 2520 108 430220 345 101000
31 WATER PLANT 87.01 5210 22 430530 345 101000
32 22.82 5210 22 430530 347 101000
33 WATER LINES 134.44 5210 23 430550 345 101000
34 11.83 5210 23 430550 347 101000
35 WATER ADMIN 62.06 5210 25 430510 345 101000
36 1.04 5210 25 430510 347 101000
37 WASTE WATER ADMIN 62.05 5310 29 430610 345 101000
38 1.04 5310 29 430610 347 101000
39 SEWER LINES 134.45 5310 31 430630 345 101000
40 11.83 5310 31 430630 347 101000
41 WWTP 74.05* 5310 33 430640 345 101000
42 44.95 5310 33 430640 347 101000
43 AMBULANCE ©131.86 5510 10 420730 345 101000
44 24.96 5510 10 420730 347 101000
45 CITY SHOP 107.41* 6040 910 430220 345 101000
416 26.92 6040 910 430220 347 101000
48 0.03 2935 11 460461 347 101000
49 URBAN RENEWAL 42,01* 2310 11 460462 345 101000
50 0.49* 2310 11 460462 347 101000

138806 88023S 4324 DONALD NEESE 75.00
1 06/11/24 Police Commission Quarterly Pa 75.00* 1000 5 420140 350 101000

138807 88030S 316 DATA IMAGING SYSTEMS, INC 20,045.00
1 14152 06/28/24 6 MDT's Purchased 18,270.00 34140 2850 105 420140 940 101000
2 14322 06/28/24 3550 Laptop 1,775.00 34145 2850 105 420140 940 101000

138808 -99188C 523 CITY SERVICE, INC. 1,226.73

#34
1 06/01/24 5000 Gallon Truck Principle 1,093.98 1337 5610 87 490500 650 101000
2 06/01/24 5000 Gallon Truck Interest 132.75* 1337 5610 87 430500 651 101000



07/15/24

CITY OF MILES CITY

Page: 8 of 16

15:41:56 Claim Details Report ID: AP100Q
For the Accounting Period: 6/24
*+ ... Over spent expenditure
Claim  Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Disc $ Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ PO # Fund Org Acct Object Proj Account
138809 -99187E 4360 ALLEGIANCE BENEFIT PLAN MGMT 87.50
1 FSA/HSA Admin Fees 4.55 1000 13 460433 143 101000
2 0.26 1000 36 411020 143 101000
3 0.35 1000 201 431200 143 101000
4 6.65 2510 107 430220 143 101000
5 1.84 2520 108 430220 143 101000
6 0.09 2540 109 430220 143 101000
7 3.68 5210 23 430550 143 101000
8 3259 5310 31 430630 143 101000
9 5.69 5210 22 430530 143 101000
10 2.36 5310 33 430640 143 101000
11 1.49 5310 32 430690 143 101000
12 1.93 6040 910 430220 143 101000
13 0.79 5310 29 430610 143 101000
14 0.79 5210 25 430510 143 101000
15 17.06 1000 S 420140 143 101000
16 6.39 1000 5 420160 143 101000
17 1.14 1000 21 440600 143 101000
18 9.80 1000 7 420460 143 101000
19 4.81 5510 10 420730 143 101000
20 4.90 2220 16 460100 143 101000
21 2.89 1000 3 410500 143 101000
22 1.49 1000 6 410300 143 101000
23 1.23 1000 4 411100 143 101000
24 2.45 5610 87 430300 143 101000
25 1.23% 2985 15 450340 143 101000
26 0.05 2935 11 460461 143 101000
138811 88031S 4386 KIMBERLY MEES 750.00
1 06/26/24 June PD Cleaning 750.00%* 34461 1000 5 420140 350 101000
138812 88032S 4429 RICE & MARTIN, P.C. 100.00
1 06/24/24 Law Library Prof Services 100.00 1000 4 411100 350 101000
138813 -99174C 4466 Pintler 2,717.59
1 1585 06/15/24 May Bmbulance Billing 2,717.58 5510 10 420730 350 101000
138814 88B033S 4465 LITTLE BIRDIES CLEANING 1,080.00
1 Janitorial Library June 2024 1,080.00% 34076 2220 16 460100 350 101000



07/15/24 CITY OF MILES CITY
15:41:56 Claim Details

For the Accounting Period:

* ... Over spent expenditure

6/24

Page: 9 of 16

Report ID: AP100

Claim Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Disc $ Cash

Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line § PO # Fund Org Acct  Object Proj Account
138838 -939186C 1407 KLJ ENGINEERING LIC 2,747.47

1 10207394 05/28/24 GIS Data Mainenance for Cust 2,037.81* 34121 2850 105 420140 350 101000

2 10207409 05/03/24 Construction Phase Services 709.66 1758 5610 87 430300 930 7 101000
138839 -99185C 4130 IBS, Inc. 178.43

1 8468811 05/15/24 Pressure Washer & Nozzles 71.37 34279 2510 107 430220 363 101000

2 8468811 05/15/24 17.84 34279 2520 108 430220 363 101000

3 8468811 05/15/24 44.61 34279 5210 23 430550 363 101000

4 8468811 05/15/24 44.61% 34279 5310 31 430630 363 101000
138840 87998S 999999 CORPORAL MATT LEWIS 80.00

1 06/06/24 Firearm Course Gov Cup 8/10/24 40.00 34043 1000 5 420140 380 101000

2 06/06/24 40.00 340443 1000 5 420140 380 101000
138841 -99183C 523 CITY SERVICE, INC. 11,807.54

1 765643 06/06/24 3,500 Gallons Jet-A 11,807.54* 1760 5610 87 430300 237 101000
138842 87999s 268 MILES CITY SANITATION INC. 276.50

1 44X00061 04/30/24 Extra Dumpster MCFD 276.50 33280 1000 7 420460 346 101000
138843 88034S 4189 L.N. CURTIS BND SONS 18, 685.02

1 818367 04/29/24 Flow Test 2,871.00 33296 1000 7 420460 360 101000

2 906809 06/07/24 RBerial Airline Fitting 3,688.86 33300 1000 7 420460 214 101000

3 907257 06/10/24 Extractor 7,750.00 34302 1000 7 420460 940 101000

4 908724 06/14/24 Gloves 1,216.80 34305 1000 7 420460 226 101000

5 834775 06/14/24 T-13 Gasket 38.36 34303 1000 7 420460 364 101000

6 915103 06/28/24 Hydrostatic 3,120.00 34320 1000 7 420460 350 101000
138844 -99180C 523 CITY SERVICE, INC. 18,883.14

1 0765641 06/10/24 4,200 Gallons Av Gas 100LL 18,883.14* 1761 5610 87 430300 237 101000
138845 880358 870 EAST MAIN ANIMAL CLINIC 360.85

1 12422 05/29/24 Vet Services 360.85* 34044 1000 21 440600 350 101000
138846 88036S 3229 ROLLING RUBBER / POINT S 771.12

1 2104488 05/23/24 Flat Tire Repair 2015 Ford Ex 25.00* 34045 1000 5 420140 366 101000

2 2093469 05/23/24 Goodyear Eagle Tires 746.12* 34045 1000 5 420140 366 101000
138847 88037S 4308 SDI ARCHITECTS & DESIGN 1,002.50

1 2023030002 05/07/24 Contract Services for WTP 627.50 34222 5210 22 430530 360 101000

2 2023030003 06/30/24 Contract Services for WTP 375.00 34236 5210 22 430530 360 101000



07/15/24

CITY OF MILES CITY

Page: 10 of 16

15:41:56 Claim Details Report ID: AP100
For the Accounting Period: 6/24

» Over spent expenditure
Claim Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Disc $ Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ PO # Fund Org Acct Object Proj Account
138848 B8038S 1361 INTERSTATE ENGINEERING 105,858.72

1 54481 05/30/24 N 7th Construction Engineering 48,585.36 34224 5210 23 430550 940 101000

2 54481 05/30/24 8,895.91 34224 5310 31 430630 940 101000

3 54481 05/30/24 10,948.81 34224 2510 107 430237 350 101000

4 54637 06/18/24 N 7th Construction Engineering 26,575.04 34234 5210 23 430550 940 101000

5 54637 06/18/24 4,865.85 34234 5310 31 430630 940 101000

6 54637 06/18/24 5,988.75 34234 2510 107 430237 350 101000
138849 88039S 4083 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF 109.68

1 J138414801 06/10/24 Ambulance Refund 109.68 5510 342026 101000
138850 88040S 4312 VALERI RUSSELL, PA-C 1,000.00

1 10 06/05/24 QI April & May 1,000.00 33297 5510 10 420730 350 101000
138851 -99179C 4003 SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP 903.00

1 B17324906 08/31/23 3 Microsoft Office 903.00 33298 1000 7 420460 210 101000
138852 880418 4254 MC ELECTRIC, LLC 853.35

1 6402 06/10/24 Lights Park Shop, Riverside Sh 853.35* 34288 1000 13 411020 230 101000
138853 88042S 1720 MIDLAND IMPLEMENT 1,281.62

1 16310 06/10/24 Sprinklers 1,262.68% 34287 1000 13 411020 230 101000

2 254017001 06/28/24 Service 18.94* 34512 1000 13 411020 230 101000
138854 880435 4340 BILLING DOCUMENT SPECIALISTS 2,578.12

1 94994 05/31/24 Water Postage 1,289.06 34225 5210 25 430510 320 101000

2 94994 05/31/24 1,289.06 34225 5310 29 430610 320 101000
138855 B88044sS 1780 MILES CITY MOTOR SUPPLY 71.99

Ll 5985 06/10/24 Multiple Auto Parts 71.99% 34047 1000 5 420140 366 101000
138856 880458 2151 Morrison-Maierle System 2,016.00

1 47301 06/06/24 Project Services 62.50* 34049 1000 5 420140 350 101000

2 4680647301 06/06/24 Computer Work 622.50* 34459 1000 5 420140 350 101000

3 47436 06/27/24 Phone System 333.00* 34462 1000 5 420140 345 101000

4 47435 06/27/24 MCPD IT Managed Workstations 360.00* 34133 2850 105 420140 350 101000

5 47303 06/06/24 Station 3 Monitor Connection R 638.00* 34142 2850 105 420140 350 101000
138857 -99178C 2166 CIVICPLUS LLC 7,188.00

1 306862 06/13/24 Rrchive Social Standard 899.62* 1000 201 431200 330 101000

2 306862 06/13/24 899.62% 1000 5 420140 330 101000

3 306862 06/13/24 899.62% 1000 21 440600 330 101000

4 306862 06/13/24 296.88* 1000 3 410500 330 101000

5 306862 06/13/24 296.88 5310 29 430610 330 101000



07/15/24
15:41:56

* ... Over spent expenditure

CITY OF MILES CITY
Claim Details

For the Accounting Period:

6/24

Report ID: AP100

Page: 11 of 16

Claim  Check Vendor #/Name/

Document $/ Disc § Cash

Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line § PO # Fund Org Acct Object Proj Account

6 306862 06/13/24 296.88 5210 25 430510 330 101000

7 306862 06/13/24 899.62* 1000 6 410300 330 101000

8 306862 06/13/24 899,62 2220 16 460100 330 101000

9 306862 06/13/24 899.62%* 5610 87 430300 330 101000

10 306862 06/13/24 899.64* 2985 15 450330 330 101000
138858 88046S 1637 MARTIN FENCE, LLC 16,438.25

1 1099 06/13/24 Gate At Denton 6,000.00% 34291 1000 13 460433 350 101000

2 1099 06/13/24 Gate and Repair At Bender 10,438.25% 34291 1000 13 460433 360 101000
138859 88047S 2537 RDO EQUIPMENT CO 4,677.01

1 W4300112 06/11/24 Parts for Unit 37 670G 543,37 34230 5210 23 430550 363 101000

2 W4300112 06/11/24 543.38* 34230 5310 31 430630 363 101000

3  W4300112 06/11/24 869.40 34280 2510 107 430220 360 101000

4 wW4300112 06/11/24 217.36 34290 2520 108 430220 360 101000

5 W4353212 06/17/24 Unit 39 1,001.40 34294 2510 107 430220 363 101000

6  W4353212 06/17/24 250.35 34294 2520 108 430220 363 101000

7 W4353212 06/17/24 625.88 34294 5210 23 430550 363 101000

8  WA4353212 06/17/24 625.87* 34294 5310 31 430630 363 101000
138860 88048s 4000 AG PARTNERS. LLC 3,251.66

1 IB7224 06/11/24 Chemicals & Supplies 1,300.66% 34293 2510 107 430220 222 101000

2 IB7225 06/11/24 325.17* 34293 2520 108 430220 222 101000

3 IB7245 06/13/24 1,625.83* 34293 1000 13 460433 222 101000
138861 88049s 4427 2IGS AUTO SERVICE 444 .50

1 156187 05/14/24 2015 Ford Explorer Freon Work 221.01* 34455 1000 5 420140 366 101000

2 156183 05/14/24 223.49* 34455 1000 5 420140 366 101000
138862 88001S 999999 DOUG COLOMBIK 51.00

1 06/18/24 Meals for Police Conference 51.00* 34451 1000 5 420140 370 101000
138863 88002S 999999 MICHAEL MURPHY 51.00

1 06/18/24 Meals for Police Conference 51.00* 34452 1000 5 420140 370 101000
138864 880035 999999 DUSTIN SLOAN 51.00

1 06/18/24 Meals for Police Conference 51.00* 34453 1000 5 420140 370 101000
138865 880508 1120 C & J ELECTRIC 2,447.34

1 4088 05/22/24 Wiring Bender Park 1,557.87* 34292 1000 13 460433 350 101000

2 4030 05/13/24 Repaired Heater 394.74 34406 5210 22 430530 360 101000

3 4030 05/13/24 394.73 34406 5210 80 430540 360 101000

4 4031 05/13/24 100.00 34406 5310 33 430640 360 101000



07/15/24 CITY OF MILES CITY

Page:

12 of 16

15:41:56 Claim Details Report ID: AP100
For the Accounting Period: 6/24

* ... Over spent expenditure
Claim  Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Disc $ Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line § PO # Fund Org Acct Object Proj Account
138866 88051S 4350 PAPE MATERIAL HANDLING 3,043.93

1 41021151 06/18/24 Annual Service of JL 899AJ S 3,043.93* 1763 5610 87 430300 363 101000
139867 880525 999999 ASSURED PARRTNERS AEROSPACE 7,160.00

1 N07387969 06/13/24 Premium 2024/25 Aviation In 7,160.00* 1762 5610 87 430300 513 101000
138868 88053S 2580 REYNOLDS WAREHOUSE GROCERY 109.40

1 03308119 06/12/24 Cleaning Supplies 66.74 34304 1000 7 420460 220 101000

2 03308119 06/12/24 42.66 34304 5510 10 420730 220 101000
138869 88054S 999999 FELD FIRE 5,064.60

1 0341565 06/07/24 Hose 5,064.60* 34301 1000 7 420730 214 101000
138871 880558 4104 BILLINGS CLINIC OCCUPATIONAL 3,600.00

1 128EM1124 06/10/24 Annual Exams 3,600.00 34307 1000 7 420460 350 101000
138872 -99176C 523 CITY SERVICE, INC. 16,790.93

1 770270 06/19/24 5,000 Gallons Jet-A 16,790.93* 1764 5610 87 430300 237 101000
138873 88056S 273 BALCO UNIFORM CO. 454.07

1 78849 06/06/24 Shield Badges 454.07* 34456 1000 5 420140 220 101000
138874 -99175C 523 CITY SERVICE, INC. 33,015.88

1 768994 06/20/24 10,000 Gallons Jet-A 33,015.88* 1765 5610 87 430300 237 101000
138875 880575 999999 DBRLEY FIRE EQUIPMENT 3,276.79

1 06/20/24 Tester, Hose 3,276.79 34309 1000 7 420460 940 101000
138876 88058S 1943 MONTANA DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION 3435,561.90

1 50892 06/19/24 North 7th St Construction 1252,888.52 34228 2991 23 430550 940 4 101000

2 50892 06/19/24 1186,360.43 34228 5210 23 430550 940 4 101000

3 50892 06/19/24 446,623.05 34228 5310 31 430630 940 4 101000

4 50892 06/19/24 223,749.53 34228 2991 107 430235 350 4 101000

5 50892 06/19/24 325,940.37 34228 2510 107 430237 350 4 101000
138877 880595 4191 LEISURE IN MONTANA 4,434.24

1 328641 06/03/24 Chlorine 2,190.04* 34296 1000 13 460433 222 101000

2 132260 04/25/24 Chemicals 1,295.27* 34296 1000 13 460433 222 101000

3 332561 06/21/24 2 Acid Magic & Tap Samp 948.93* 34501 1000 13 460433 222 101000



07/15/24 CITY OF MILES CITY
15:41:56 Claim Details
For the Accounting Period:

6/24

Report ID: AP100

Page: 13 of 16

*+ ... Over spent expenditure
Claim  Check Vendor #/Name/ Document §/ Disc $ Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ PO # Fund Org Acct Object Proj Account
138878 88060S 4236 STITCHING 4U, LILC 647.55
1 5916 06/10/24 Lifeguard Prints 647.55% 34297 1000 14 460445 226 101000
138879 8B061S 2560 REGAN PLUMBING & HEATING 296.14
1 16067 06/13/24 Jaycee Park 110.60 34298 1000 13 460433 230 101000
2 16066 06/13/24 Wibaux 14.38 34298 1000 13 460433 230 101000
3 16064 06/13/24 Parks Supplies 38.71 34298 1000 13 460433 230 101000
4 16065 06/13/24 Parks Supplies 50.35 34298 1000 13 460433 230 101000
5 16196 06/24/24 Supplies for Triangle Park, Pa 82.10 34507 1000 13 460433 230 101000
138880 88062S 4171 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1701 6,213.94
1 0891080 06/19/24 Program to 100Gal Macro Coup 966.92 34229 5210 23 430550 230 101000
2 0888534 06/21/24 3/4 S All, Meter 3 Term 1 USG 2,540.40 34230 5210 23 430550 214 101000
3 0892949 06/26/24 DI 2BLT Macro Coup 746.62 34232 5210 23 430550 230 101000
4 0894321 06/28/24 Meter Account 1,960.00 34238 5210 23 430550 230 101000
138881 88063S 636 CRIDCO, LLC 1,780.00
1 067426 06/25/24 RO Filter System and Install 1,790.00* 1767 5610 87 430300 230 101000
138882 880645 429 BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY 6,312.62
1 24005918 06/13/24 Land Lease 6,312.62 34299 2510 107 430235 230 101000
138883 88065S 4464 GREAT WEST ENGINEERING 8,536.65
1 32863 06/24/24 Growth Policy Update 8,148.15 34300 1000 36 411020 350 101000
2 32860 06/24/24 Eng Services Sub MFE 194.25 34235 5210 23 430550 350 101000
3 32860 06/24/24 194.25 34235 5310 31 430630 350 101000
138884 88066S 4346 MOUNTAIN ALARM 42.00
1 4892830 07/01/24 Monthly Alarm Fees 42.00%* 34458 1000 5 420140 220 101000
138885 B8B067S 97% FIREMANS COMPANY 522.60
1 16928 06/12/24 Annual Service Inspection Libr 522.60 34069 2220 16 460100 360 101000
138886 88068S 1321 HOLMLUND MOBILE LOCK & KEY 7,429.00
1 96863 06/26/24 Installation of Automatic Door 7,429.00 34072 2880 112 460100 350 101000
138887 88063S 4276 BRUCO, INC 96.04
1 425355 06/17/24 Crate Liners 96.04 34070 2220 16 460100 360 101000



07/15/24

CITY OF MILES CITY

Page: 14 of 16

15:41:56 Claim Details Report ID: AP100
For the Accounting Period: 6/24

* ... Over spent expenditure
Claim  Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ PO # Fund Org Acct Object Proj Account
138688 88070S 999999 SUE LACKEY 50.00

1 06/13/24 Refund for Ryno Rental 50.00 34504 1000 323060 101000
138889 88006S 4426 APG YELLOWSTONE NEWS 48.00

1 51556 05/18/24 Legal Notice Building 24.00 34231 5210 23 430550 331 101000

2 51556 05/18/24 24.00 34231 2394 18 420531 331 101000
138890 88071S 999999 DIXIE HOFER 42.99

1 06/27/24 DAV Meal Reimbursement 42:99 33744 2985 15 450330 379 101000
138891 88007S 4250 EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS 752.25

1 135486 06/27/24 Tow Unit 21 601.80 34508 2510 107 430220 363 101000

2 135486 06/27/24 150.45 34508 2520 108 430220 363 101000
138892 88008S 4431 GLENDIVE RECREATION DEPARTMENT 1,200.00

1 06/27/24 Lifeguard Certification 1,200.00 1000 14 460445 380 101000
138893 880728 910 EVERGREEN LANDSCBPING 77.85

1 2630 06/24/24 Hunter Solenoid, DC Latching 77.85 34509 1000 13 460433 230 101000
138895 88010s 4432 PUBLIC RISK INSURANCE MANAGEMENT 316.11

1 06/28/24 4th of July Parade & BBQ 316.11 30845 1000 2 410100 350 101000
138896 88073s 4258 EXECUTIVE BUILDING 1,950.00

1 06/28/24 RSVP Quarterly Rent Jul-Sep 1,950.00* 33745 2985 15 450340 530 101000
138897 880118 4253 DOUBLE J CONCRETE & CARPENTRY, 6,429.00

1 0038 06/27/24 Sudlow, Doeden, Tompy, Sutton, 6,429.00 34510 2510 107 430234 350 101000
138898 8B074sS 2920 TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT CO 97.89

1 0839156 06/19/24 Coupling 97.89 34233 5310 33 430640 363 101000
138899 88075S 999999 GABE MARTINSEN 40.00

1 06/29/24 Monthly Milage for Inspections 40.00* 2394 18 420531 370 101000
138900 88012S 4417 GEOPLAND 7,128.00

1 2404 04/24/24 Planning April 1,536.00 30846 1000 36 411020 350 101000

2 2405 05/28/24 Planning May 1,992.00 30846 1000 36 411020 350 101000

3 2406 06/26/24 Planning June 3,600.00 30846 1000 36 411020 350 101000



07/15/24
15:41:56

* ... Over spent expenditure

CITY OF MILES CITY
Claim Details

For the Accounting Period:

6/24

Claim Check Vendor #/Name/

Report ID: AP100

Page: 15 of 16

Document $/ Disc § Cash

Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ PO # Fund Org Bcct Object Proj Account
138901 B88076S 999999 TRAVIS ISAACS 300.00

1 06/27/24 Democracy Project Stipend 300.00 34074 2880 112 460100 350 101000
138902 88077S 999999 JEFF LANGKAU 50.00

1 39944 06/28/24 Reimburse Water Test Fee 50.00* 1769 5610 87 430300 230 101000
138903 88078S 999999 KELLY DODD 39.60

1 06/29/24 Refund Water Deposit 39.60 5210 214010 101000
138904 88079S 999999 BRANDON BATEY 69.64

1 06/29/24 Refund Water Deposit 69.64 5210 214010 101000
138905 88080S 999999 DODGE RUIZ 114.94

1 06/29/24 Refund Water Deposit 114.94 5210 214010 101000
138906 880818 999999 KEN STEIN 17.70

1 06/26/24 Certified Mail 17.70% 31438 1000 6 410300 334 101000
138907 88082S 869 EAST MONT COMMUNICATIONS 330.00

1 29956 06/24/24 Repairs/AR Radio 70.00 34312 1000 7 420460 214 101000

2 29958 06/21/24 Telemetry Repair 260.00 34411 5210 80 430540 360 101000
138908 88083S 4002 MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES, 393.95

1 1928038 06/27/24 Helmet 393.95 34311 1000 7 420460 226 101000
138909 88014S 999999 MALLORY DOUGHERTY 322.25

1 07/03/24 Meal Allowance for 911 Basic & 32:21%2/5% 34129 2850 105 420140 370 101000
138910 880155 9999939 MAHRIA FREDRICKSON 813.77

1 07/03/24 Travel & Meals for 911 Basic & 813.77* 34130 2850 105 420140 370 101000
138944 88084S 572 VERIZON WIRELESS 1,859.32

1 06/20/24 MCFD, MCPD, GCSO, PCSO, Sims C 1,289.64 34131 2850 105 420140 345 101000

2 9968440553 07/07/24 Cell Phone Fees 249.60* 34471 1000 5 420140 220 101000

&) 9968440553 07/07/24 MDT Fees 320.08 34471 2850 105 420140 345 101000
138946 880858 4008 PITNEY BOWES 267.18

1 3319334580 06/26/24 Postage Meter 89.06* 1000 3 410500 220 101000

2 3319334580 06/26/24 89.06 5210 25 430510 220 101000

3 3319334580 06/26/24 89.06 5310 29 430610 220 101000



07/15/24

CITY OF MILES CITY

Page:

16 of 16

15:41:56 Claim Details Report ID: AP100
For the Accounting Period: 6/24

* ... Over spent expenditure
Claim  Check Vendor #/Name/ Document $/ Disc $ Cash
Line # Invoice #/Inv Date/Description Line $ PO # Fund Org Acct  Object Proj Account
138947 880865 4357 MCCONE ELECTRIC CO-OP INC 191.85

1 06/30/24 Sheep Mountain Tower 191.85* 34137 2850 105 420140 341 101000
138948 880875 999999 RURAL HEALTH DEVELOPMENT INC 7.00

1 5651 06/18/24 CPR Certification 7.00% 34136 2850 105 420140 380 101000
138950 880885 4342 Secure Warrant 3,250.00

1 348 05/01/24 Search Warrant Online Applicat 3,250.00% 34041 1000 5 420140 220 101000
138953 88089S 4218 CUSTER COUNTY TRANSIT 92.00

1 070320242 07/03/24 Volunteer Rides May 43.00 33748 2985 15 450330 379 101004

2 070320241 07/03/24 Volunteer Rides June 49.00 33748 2985 15 450330 379 101004
138956 88090S 999999 CINDY ERICKSON 14.34

1 07/11/24 Travel Reimbursement Ap-Jn 14.34 33749 2985 15 450330 370 101004
138958 88091S 1145 GRAINGER INC 83.33

1 9161303327 06/24/24 Water Strainer 83.33 34410 5310 33 430640 230 101000
138959 880928 3032 USA BLUE BOOK 435.44

1 00386150 06/06/24 Aqua Plates 435.44* 34409 5310 33 430640 222 101000
138960 88093S 1896 HAWKINS, INC 2,375.05

1 6773699 06/04/24 Flouride, Demurrage, 5 1501b 658.62* 34408 5210 B0 430540 222 101000

2 6779450 06/04/24 1,716.43* 34408 5310 33 430640 222 101000
138961 880948 902 ENERGY LABORATORIES INC 516.00

1 634654 06/07/24 Bacti's, Nitrogen, Flouride, 463.00* 34405 5210 80 430540 352 101000

2 636477 06/14/24 53.00 34405 5310 33 430640 352 101000
138962 880858 2871 THATCHER COMPANY OF MONTANA 14,751.00

1 350100469 06/28/24 Aluminum Sulfate 14,751.00% 34404 5210 80 430540 222 101000
138963 880965 4349 HAUCK SALES AND SERVICES LLC 10,000.00

1 190803 06/30/24 40' Storage Container 10,000.00 34319 1000 7 420460 380 101000
138965 88097S 504 Cintas 317.17

1 5220138324 07/11/24 Med Kit Refill for Staff 317.17% 34470 1000 5 420140 220 101000

# of Claims 116 Total: 3949,987.07
Total Electronic Claims 182,155.26 Total Non-Electronic Claims 3767831.81



